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reporting company. See the definitions of “largeeherated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b<f
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND FACTORS THAT MAY AFF ECT FUTURE RESULTS

The discussion below contains forward-looking stegets, which are subject to safe harbors under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securiet®), and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ametite
“Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements includéerences to our ability to utilize our defertes assets, as
well as statements including words such as “exgegians,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates;predicts,”
“projects,” and similar expressions. In additiotatements that refer to projections of our futimarcial
performance, anticipated growth and trends in asirtesses and in our industries, the anticipat@adats of
acquisitions, and other characterizations of fuewents or circumstances are forward-looking stateém These
statements are only predictions, based on our meseectations about future events and may natepio be
accurate. We do not undertake any obligation tatgthese forward-looking statements to reflech&s/eccurring
or circumstances arising after the date of thiemeT hese forward-looking statements involve riaks
uncertainties, and our actual results, performancachievements could differ materially from thes@ressed or
implied by the forward-looking statements on theibaf several factors, including those that weutis under
Item 1A, Risk FactorsWe encourage you to read that section carefully.
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PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview

Symantec is a global provider of security, storagel systems management solutions that help bssisesd
consumers secure and manage their information. Mvduct our business in three geographic regioneraas,
which is comprised of the United States, Canada Latin America; Europe, the Middle East and Afr{tBMEA”);
and Asia Pacific Japan (“APJ").

Our go-to-market network includes direct, insided ahannel sales resources that support our eeosysit
more than 40,000 partners worldwide. We also maintarious distribution and services relationshigth original
equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), Internet senpeaviders (“ISPs”), and retail and online stores Wovide
customers with software and services that proteahage, and control information risks related tusgy, backup
and recovery, storage, compliance, and systemsgearent.

Founded in 1982, Symantec has operations in mare4l countries and our principal executive offiaes
located at 350 Ellis Street, Mountain View, Califia, 94043. Our telephone number at that locagon i
(650) 527-8000. Our home page on the Interneis.symantec.comther than the information expressly set forth
in this annual report, the information containediederred to, on our website is not part of thmawaal report.

Strategy

Symantec’s strategy is to provide software andiseswto secure and manage information regardledsvite,
platform, or where it resides. We help individuaisiall businesses, and global organizations erkateheir
information, technology infrastructures, and redgbeocesses are protected, managed easily, anchibeeht
automatically. In addition to providing customerighatraditional software solutions, we continuestqpand our
Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) based solutionsagpiiance based solutions, giving customers the&ceHor how
they secure and manage information.

We operate primarily in three diversified markeithim the software sector: security, storage, arsfesns
management. We believe these markets are conveaigingstomers increasingly require our help mitiggtheir
risk profiles and managing their storage needsdermto secure and manage their most valuable asset
information. We have taken a proactive and polidgyah approach to protecting and managing inforamatis the
tools and processes from these formerly discreteaitts become more integrated.

The security market includes mission-critical proithat protect consumers and enterprises froeathito
electronic information, endpoint devices, and cotapnetworks. Over the past year, we have seemntinced rise
in the volume of security threats. Threats areioairig to grow more targeted with a focus on steationfidential
information for financial gain. Attackers are exgarg their tactics to include targeting users veiticialengineering
attacks, such as phishing websites that stealdinbimformation, passwords, and other persona.dBite Internet
has become the primary conduit for attack actiwiih hackers increasingly funneling threats throlegitimate
websites, placing a much larger percentage of dipailation at risk than in the past. Data lossesateealized
solely from external attacks but are increasinglynmistered by malicious or well-meaning insid&scurity
continues to be a top priority for enterprisesrdisrimation security is increasingly relevant tommate
competitiveness, regulatory compliance, cloud campguand the proliferation of mobile devices.

The storage software market includes productsrtizaitage, archive, backup, and recover businessatritata.
Key drivers of demand in this market include thevgih of information that organizations must mandge,need fc
data to be protected and accessible at all tirhesransition from tape to disk-based backup, Aedatioption of
data deduplication technology. Other factors dgvitemand in this market include the pressure orpemies to
lower storage and server management costs witlomapomising performance and the need for a growingber
of critical applications to be continuously avaliab
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The systems management market includes produdtsdahgol the IT environment by streamlining effort
associated with deploying, managing, patching,rantkediating enterprise client and server assets dfilers for
demand in this market include customers’ desiutomate management and security remediation teskasure
business productivity, and to reduce costs and tsiityp.

Business Developments and Highlights
During fiscal 2010, we took the following actiomssupport of our business:

« We strengthened our leadership in security. Wethtced our new reputation-based malware detection
security technology in our 2010 Consumer produidtss technology leverages data from our extensive
Global Intelligence Network to derive safety rasrfgr files on the Internet, and allows us to dithtihe
reputation of a program based on a number of diffefactors (including its origin, age, and prevaky). We
also launched security products and suites desigpecifically for the small and medium sized busge
(“SMB") and enterprise markets. These productsa®y to use and install, and provide easy to use
enterprise-level protection that optimizes perfanoceand offers simplified management capabilities gre-
configured settings

» We focused on the migration to next-generationrmfgtion management. We integrated our backup,
archiving and deduplication technologies and expdraur multi-platform support for physical and wvat
environments. We released updated backup prochatsniclude expanded deduplication capabilitieshat
client, media server, and via third party applia)cehich products will allow customers to reduoe t
amount of data they store and the volume of datg titansmit on their networks. We enhanced our yrtsd
support for VMware and Microsoft Hyper-V virtualtean technologies in order to allow customers tuee
management complexity and operational costs im thual environments. We introduced our new Data
Insight technology to help customers identify thast critical information and give users accessatia
based on information intelligence and owners

* We expanded our cloud based offerings. We extettteegartner distribution network associated with ou
Symantec Hosted Services business, primarily irsSaassaging and web security. We launched a new
hosted medical image archiving and sharing solutomealthcare providers that is designed to ki
lower image storage costs and provide secure, vasbebimage sharing. In addition, we developed lalsiea
file server solution that combines our file syst@na clustering technologies, and integrates owrggand
backup software in order to deliver an optimizefdaistructure for public or private storage cloud& also
expanded distribution of our consumer online backaiption through various channel partn

* We completed two acquisitions during fiscal 201@ ¥panded our SaaS security leadership by acgquirin
SoftScan, a privately-held SaaS security comparnlyeérNordic region. We also acquired privately-held
Gideon Technologies, Inc., a company with a leadagurity Content Automation Protocol (“SCAP”)
validated configuration and vulnerability assesshsetution to enhance our ability to serve the 13eafd
public sector customer

* We reduced our cost structure in order to imprgwerational efficiencies across our business. Sdrtigeo
actions included: carefully managing our headcaosts; outsourcing certain back office functions;
consolidating facilities; relocating certain resgaand development functions to lower cost locati@nd
reducing travel and entertainment expenses and diberetionary expenses. Offsetting these costatiahs
were investments in our new Symantec-developedpardcated consumer eCommerce platform, increased
investments in certain consumer OEM distributioreagnents and acquisition related exper

« We launched a global eCommerce platform which aloa to host and manage consumer online stores. Thi
is a strategic move, consistent with our ongoirgufoon eCommerce and SaasS, in support of our carsum
business. The benefits of managing an in-house et@ooe capability include building a closer relasibip
with our customers and enabling greater speed gility do take advantage of market tren

» We repurchased 34 million shares of our commorksimcan aggregate amount of $553 milli
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Operating Segments and Products

Our operating segments are significant strategsiness units that offer different products and isesy
distinguished by customer needs. During fiscal 20d®had five operating segments: Consumer, Sgcami
Compliance, Storage and Server Management, Senandther.

Consumer

Our Consumer segment provides Internet securitypaoigction solutions, suites and services to iddial
users and home offices through a dual-brand styatétf Norton™ and PC Tool$" . Our Norton brand offers
premium, full-featured security suites as wellelated services such as online backup, family gafetd PC
tune-up across multiple platforms. PC Tools proslace designed specifically for the valmé@ded consumer whic
allows Symantec to extend its reach into emergimymice-sensitive market segments. Products iecldNdrton
360™ , Norton Internet Security* , Norton AntiVirus™ , Norton Online Backup*, PC Tools Spyware Doctdr ,
and PC Tools Registry Mecharilt.

Our consumer business is driven by increasinglyperithreats, the proliferation of mobile devicé® need
for identity protection, and the rapid increaseligital consumer data, such as photos, music, aebyOur award-
winning Norton 2010 products include our innovatieputation-based security, a technology that plesreal-time
threat detection. Our online backup offering sed/2snillion customers and hosts over 56 petabytesmasumers’
data.

We continue to acquire customers through a divietsithannel strategy. In fiscal year 2010, Symantec
introduced its own eCommerce platform to enhanstotner’'s end-to-end experience and capitalize cergimg
market trends. We retain and leverage our strorgieg customer base through auto-renewal subsmnigt
migrating customers from point products to mulibghuct suites, and cross-selling additional prodaoctservices.

Security and Compliance

Our Security and Compliance segment helps our mest® standardize, automate, and reduce the costs of
day-to-day security activities in order to secund enanage their information. We have focused oerioff) security
suite solutions that tie together multiple layerpimtection and simplified management. Our primssjutions in
this segment address the following areas:

Enterprise Security

Enterprise Security customer demand is driven byetlolving threat environment, the adoption of atent-
aware approach to information protection, and #edrto implement and ensure regulatory compliaDce.
Symantec Protection Suite creates a protected amdptessaging, and Web environment that is seagainst
today’s complex malware, data loss and spam thraatsrecovers endpoint data in the event of fail@ur
Symantec Data Loss Prevention Suite helps companigsrstand where important information residestaids
ensure the appropriate access and movement ofriafan into and out of the company. Our Symantect@b
Compliance Suite allows businesses to prioritizks; define and assess global IT policies, and dateeidentified
deficiencies.

Systems Management

Demand for Systems Management is driven by the fezeitomated asset management, patch management,
and remediation solutions that offer better visipiinto IT assets and simplify day-to-day operaibmanagement.
Our solutions help companies realize value fronir lvasting IT investments. Our Altiris IT ManagenteSuite
provides client, server and asset management ulitedrvice desk and automation capabilities thdtice IT costs
and enhance IT effectiveness.

SaaS

Symantec Hosted Services, our SaasS offerings, emaltomers to increase their messaging and weébchiom
by blocking email, web and IM threats before thegah the network. Our SaaS security solutions
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simplify global management through use of a cemtoatal. Our Saa$S offerings provide our customieesfexibility
to manage their business using hosted servicégsargh a mix of onsite and hosted solutions. Prtsdinclude:
MessagelLabs Hosted Email, Web and Instant Mess&gngrity.

Storage and Server Management

Our Storage and Server Management segment focaga®widing enterprise customers with storage
management, high availability, and backup and a&habisolutions across heterogeneous storage aadrser
platforms. These solutions enable companies talatdize on a single layer of infrastructure sofevirat works on
every major distributed operating system and suppeery major storage device, database, and afiplicin both
physical and virtual environments. Our primary atg and server management solutions address tbeifal
areas:

Information Management

Our Information Management business, which incluziskup and archiving, is driven by the rapid giowt
information, data duplication, virtual environmentsanagement inefficiencies, and legal e-disconesds.
Symantec helps organizations protect themselvdsihging together archiving, deduplication, andkgec
functionality into a fully integrated solution. Samtec helps customers back up information and dede closer
to information sources in order to reduce storagesamption as well as archive and enable a comntizch
litigation-ready information infrastructure. Prodsiinclude: NetBackup", NetBackup PureDisk', Backup Exec
™ and Enterprise Vault'.

Storage Management and High Availability

Our Storage Management and High Availability bus@is driven by our customers’ need to reduce dlvera
storage costs through improved utilization of érggisystems, virtualization, and cloud infrastruetofferings. The
decline in server sales put pressure on this bssjiparticularly with respect to new license saleshe Solaris
platform. Our products help customers simplify thigita centers by standardizing storage managesweds their
environment for more efficient use of their exigtstorage investment. In addition, these produels tustomers
build scalable, high-performance file-based stomygtems for their enterprise, including privatd aablic clouds.
They also enable enterprises to manage large steragronments and ensure the availability of @itapplication:s
Products include: Veritas Storage FoundaftbnVeritas Cluster Servé¥ , and Symantec FileStore.

Services

Symantec Global Services help customers addressnation security, availability, storage, and coicpte
challenges at the endpoint and in complex, multiels data center environments. Our Services segdediners
consulting, education, business critical, and madagrvices that help our customers maximize theewa their
investment in our products and solutions.

Consulting, Education and Business Critical Sersice

Symantec Consulting Services provide advisory, pcodnablement, and residency services to enable
customers to assess, design, transform, and opkeaténfrastructure, leveraging Symantec prodacts solutions.
Education Services provide a full range of programduding technical training and security awarsngaining, to
help customers optimize their Symantec solutionsitess Critical Services, our highest level ofiser, provide
personalized, proactive support from technical etsgier enterprises that require secure, unintéedipccess to
their data and applications.

Managed Services

Symantec Managed Services enable customers toq@agarce-intensive IT operations under the managém
of experienced Symantec specialists in order tovopé existing resources and focus on strategigrtiects. This
helps customers by reducing IT complexity, manadjingsk, and lowering the cost of operations. Tdhes
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services include: Managed Security Services, Mash&gelpoint Protection Services and Managed Baclanpi&s.

Other

The Other segment includes sunset products andajextiministrative, unallocated costs and is nosaered
an active business component of the company.

Financial Information by Segment and Geographic Reg

For information regarding our revenue by segma&venue by geographical area, and long-lived aksets
geographical area, see Note 11 of the Notes todlidased Financial Statements in this annual repreot
information regarding the amount and percentagaiofevenue contributed in each of our segmentsand
financial information, including information abogéographic areas in which we operate, see IteMahagement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d&elsults oOperations and Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report. Fasrimftion regarding risks associated with our irdéomal
operations, see Item 1Rjsk Factors.

Sales and Go-To-Market Strategy
Consumer

We sell our consumer products and services to iddials and home offices globally through a netwafrk
distribution partners and eCommerce channels. @uyets are available to customers through retailer
distributors, direct marketers, Internet-basedllerse system builders, and ISPs. We have partigstith nine of
the top 10 OEMs globally to distribute our secestsuites and with six of the top 10 OEMs globaildistribute ot
online backup product. We broadened our presencetail stores, with our products now carried inrenthan
30,000 locations worldwide.

Sales in the Consumer business through our eléctdistribution channel, which includes sales dedifrom
OEMs, subscriptions, upgrades, online sales, amelvals, represented approximately 80 percent &fmes in the
Consumer segment in fiscal 2010. Products areaadaibable through our new global in-house eCommstokes,
which improves our ability to identify and capitadion emerging customer needs and market trendslbas
enhance the end-to-end customer experience.

Enterprise

We sell and market our products and related sesuenterprise customers through our direct Sates of
more than 3,500 sales representatives and throughiety of indirect sales channels, which inclyd&ie-added
resellers, large account resellers, and systergrati@s. We also sell our products in more thaoalihtries through
authorized distributors and OEMs who incorporateteahnologies into their products, bundle our picid with
their offerings, or serve as authorized resellé@uo products. Symantec has more than 40,000Glligion partners
in its partner program worldwide. Our sales effents primarily targeted to senior executives anddpartment
personnel responsible for managing a company’sitiatives.

Marketing and Advertising

Our marketing expenditures relate primarily to atiseng and promotion, which includes demand geti@ma
and brand recognition of our consumer and enterfmieducts. Our advertising and promotion effartdude, but
are not limited to, electronic and print advertigitrade shows, collateral production, and all fewhdirect
marketing. We also invest in cooperative marketiampaigns with distributors, resellers, retail@&Ms, and
industry partners.

We invest in various retention marketing and custoloyalty programs to help drive renewals and enage
customer advocacy and referrals. We also providesed vertical marketing programs in targeted itvtessand
countries.




Table of Contents

We typically offer two types of rebate programshiitmost countries: volume incentive rebates tanaea
partners and promotional rebates to distributotseard users. Distributors and resellers earn volncentive
rebates primarily based upon product sales to satcsuWe also offer rebates to individual users pdnchase
products through various resale channels. Bothmelincentive rebates and end-user rebates areegicasuan
offset to revenue.

Research and Development

Symantec embraces a global research and develogtR&iD") strategy to drive organic innovation acsothe
company. Engineers throughout the company pursuanaéd projects and work with our engineering asnte
research labs and global services teams to trarRi&bD into next-generation technologies and integgoaur unique
set of technology assets across the portfolio. $yeeafocuses on short, medium, and long-term aghpéisearch,
develops new products in emerging areas, partespatgovernment-funded research projects, andgrartvith
universities to conduct research to support Synegsrategy. Symantec holds more than 900 patents.

Symantec’s Security Technology and Response orgtmizis a global team of security engineers, threa
analysts, and researchers that provides the undgffiynctionality, content, and support for all Symbec enterprise,
SMB and consumer security products. Symantec’srég@xperts monitor malicious code reports colecthrough
the Global Intelligence Network to provide insigfto emerging attacks, malicious code activity spimg, spam,
and other threats. The team uses this vast intellig to develop new technologies and approachelsasu
Symantec'’s reputation-based security technologgrdtect customer’s information.

Research and development expenses, exclusiveppboess research and development associated with
acquisitions, were $857 million, $870 million an@3% million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respesyi,
representing approximately 14%, 14% and 15% ofrregén the respective periods. We believe thatrtieah
leadership is essential to our success and we etgpeontinue to commit substantial resources seaech and
development.

Support

Symantec has centralized support facilities througlhe world that provide rapid, around-the-cloekponse,
and are staffed by technical product experts kndgdable in the operating environments in whichproducts are
deployed. Our technical support experts assisbousts with product implementation and usage, issselution
and countermeasures, and threat detection.

Symantec provides customers various levels of prniger support offerings. Our enterprise securifypsut
program offers annual maintenance support contraxctisiding content, upgrades, and technical suparr
standard technical support includes: unlimitedihetservice delivered by telephone, fax, email, avetr the
Internet; immediate patches for severe problemsogie software updates; and access to our techkimavledge
base and frequently asked questions.

Our consumer product support program providestsdff-online services, phone, chat, email suppod,fae-
based premium support and diagnostic servicesrtsurners worldwide. Customers that subscribe tolpdate
receive automatic downloads of the latest virusnitédns, application bug fixes, and patches forstraf our
consumer products.

Customers

In fiscal 2010 and 2008, one distributor, Ingrantidiaccounted for 10% of our total net revenueathb
periods. In fiscal 2009, Ingram Micro did not acabfor 10% of total net revenue. Our distributaraagements wi
Ingram Micro consist of several hon-exclusive, ipgiedently negotiated agreements with its subseiagach of
which cover different countries or regions. Eaclthafse agreements is separately negotiated andapéndent of
any other contract (such as a master distributipaeanent), and these agreements are not based eartte form of
contract. In fiscal 2009 and 2008, one resellegjtBi River accounted for 10% and 11% of our toit revenues,
respectively. In fiscal 2010, we launched a newerimally-developed eCommerce platform which wiluee our
reliance on Digital River.
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Acquisitions

Our acquisitions are designed to enhance the fesmfand functionality of our existing products artkad our
product leadership in core markets. We consideg tarmarket, synergies with existing products, jpoigntial
market share gains when evaluating the economiasapiisitions of technologies, product lines, anpanies. We
may acquire and/or dispose of other technologiegjyzts and companies in the future.

During fiscal 2010, we completed the following aisifions:

Company Name Company Descriptior Date Acquired

Gideon Technologies, Inc. A provider of standardbased information security compliar ~ January 22, 201
solutions

SoftScan A provider of hosted security solutions for e-namld web in October 31, 200

the Nordic region

For further discussion of our acquisitions, seeeNbbf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesniarthis
annual report.

Competition

Our markets are consolidating, highly competitiaed subject to rapid changes in technology. Weéamesed
on integrating across the product portfolio andude nextgeneration technology capabilities into our solutet ir
order to differentiate ourselves from the compaititiwe believe that the principal competitive fastoecessary to
be successful in our industry include time to mgrgece, reputation, financial stability, breadthproduct
offerings, customer support, brand recognition, effielctive sales and marketing efforts.

In addition to the competition we face from direompetitors, we face indirect or potential compatifrom
retailers, application providers, operating syspgoviders, network equipment manufacturers, andrafEMs, wh
may provide various solutions and functions inttleeirrent and future products. We also competaéoess to reta
distribution channels and for the attention of oustrs at the retail level and in corporate accountaddition, we
compete with other software companies, operatistesy providers, network equipment manufacturersodinelr
OEMs to acquire technologies, products, or comaai® to publish software developed by third psrti®e also
compete with other software companies in our etfmgilace our products on the computer equipmddttso
consumers and enterprises by OEMs.

The competitive environments in which each segropetates are described below.

Consumer

Some of the channels in which our consumer produet®ffered are highly competitive. Our compesitare
intensely focused on customer acquisition, which lbd such competitors to offer their technologyffee, engage
in aggressive marketing, or enter into competifigetinerships. Our primary competitors in the Corsusegment
are McAfee, Inc. (“McAfee”), and Trend Micro In¢Tgend Micro”). There are also several smaller osgil
security companies and freeware providers thatomepete against primarily in the EMEA and APJ regidfor oul
consumer backup offerings, our primary competitsesMozy, Inc., owned by EMC Corporation (“EMC")ich
Carbonite, Inc.

Security and Compliance

In the security and management markets, we conggeti@st many companies that offer competing pradiact
our solutions. Our primary competitors in the séguand management market are LANDesk Software, Inc
McAfee, Microsoft Corporation (“Microsoft”), and &nd Micro. There are also several smaller regisaalirity
companies that we compete against primarily inrBNEA and APJ regions.

In the SaaS security market our primary competidoesGoogle Inc.’s Postini Services and Microsoft.

10
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Storage and Server Manageme

The markets for storage and backup are intensehpetitive. Our primary competitors are CA, Inc.,
CommVault Systems, Inc., EMC, Hewlett-Packard Comyp@HP"), IBM Corp. (“IBM”), Microsoft, Sun
Microsystems, Inc. (acquired by Oracle Corporatiamd VMware, Inc.

Services

We believe that the principal competitive factas dur services segment include technical capgpdiistomer
responsiveness, and our ability to hire and rdtdanted and experienced services personnel. Quapr
competitors in the services segment are EMC, HRI, l@d regional specialized consulting firms. Ie thanaged
security services business, our primary competaocedBM, and SecureWorks, Inc.

Intellectual Property
Protective Measures

We regard some of the features of our internal atpmrs, software, and documentation as proprieaadyrely
on copyright, patent, trademark and trade secwet,laonfidentiality procedures, contractual arrangets, and othi
measures to protect our proprietary information: @tellectual property is an important and val@aa$set that
enables us to gain recognition for our productsjises, and technology and enhance our compefidgiion.

As part of our confidentiality procedures, we geatfigrenter into non-disclosure agreements with our
employees, distributors, and corporate partneyanenter into license agreements with respestitsoftware,
documentation, and other proprietary informationede license agreements are generally non-trabieaad have
a perpetual term. We also educate our employeéside secret protection and employ measures tegirour
facilities, equipment, and networks.

Trademarks, Patents, Copyrights, and Licenses

Symantec and the Symantec logo are trademarkgstesed trademarks in the U.S. and other countires
addition to Symantec and the Symantec logo, we haed, registered, and/or applied to register apecific
trademarks and service marks to help distinguistpoaducts, technologies, and services from théseio
competitors in the U.S. and foreign countries amglictions. We enforce our trademark, serviceknand trade
name rights in the U.S. and abroad. The duratiasuotrademark registrations varies from countrgdantry, and
in the U.S. we generally are able to maintain calémark rights and renew any trademark registratior as long
as the trademarks are in use.

We have a number of U.S. and foreign issued patamtpending patent applications, including patants
rights to patent applications acquired throughtstyia transactions, which relate to various aspefctair products
and technology. The duration of our patents isrdateed by the laws of the country of issuance amdtfe U.S. is
typically 17 years from the date of issuance ofggatent or 20 years from the date of filing of ag¢ent application
resulting in the patent, which we believe is adéguelative to the expected lives of our products.

Our products are protected under U.S. and intematicopyright laws and laws related to the prad@cof
intellectual property and proprietary informati®e take measures to label such products with theogpiate
proprietary rights notices, and we actively enfaaeh rights in the U.S. and abroad. However, thesasures may
not provide sufficient protection, and our intetlead property rights may be challenged. In additiza license somr
intellectual property from third parties for useoar products, and generally must rely on the thady to protect
the licensed intellectual property rights. While ladieve that our ability to maintain and protegt mtellectual
property rights is important to our success, we algieve that our business as a whole is not madlfedependent
on any particular patent, trademark, license, bewointellectual property right.

Seasonality

As is typical for many large software companies, lmusiness is seasonal. Software license and mainte
orders are generally higher in our third and fodigbal quarters and lower in our first and secbschl quarters. A
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significant decline in license and maintenance rietypical in the first quarter of our fiscalareas compared to
license and maintenance orders in the fourth queftée prior fiscal year. In addition, we gengrakceive a highe
volume of software license and maintenance ordetisd last month of a quarter, with orders conegatt in the
later part of that month. We believe that this seatity primarily reflects customer spending patteand budget
cycles, as well as the impact of compensation iteemplans for our sales personnel. Revenue gdpeedlects
similar seasonal patterns but to a lesser extantéinders because revenue is not recognized wntitder is shipped
or services are performed and other revenue retiogmiriteria are met, and because a significantiqguo of our in-
period revenue is provided by the ratable recogmitif our deferred revenue balance.

Employees

As of April 2, 2010, we employed more than 17,4@0me worldwide, approximately 47 percent of whom
reside in the U.S. Approximately 6,200 employeeskvwio sales and marketing; 5,600 in research andldpment;
4,200 in support and services; and 1,400 in manageand administration.

Other Information

Our Internet address veww.symantec.corilVe make available free of charge on our websiteaonual reports
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, catrreports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosertefiled
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(dhefExchange Act as soon as reasonably practiedtelewe
electronically file such material with, or furnigho, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“3EQther than
the information expressly set forth in this anmegdort, the information contained, or referredaio,our website is
not part of this annual report.

The public may also read and copy any materialfilevgvith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference iRad
100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, DC 2054@.public may obtain information on the operatdihe
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-8BG-$330. The SEC also maintains a websitevaitv.sec.gov
that contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding issuers, sisals, that file
electronically with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

A description of the risk factors associated witin business is set forth below. The list is notaaiive and
you should carefully consider these risks and uag#res before investing in our common stc

Adverse global economic events may harm our busieperating results and financial condition.

Adverse macroeconomic conditions could negativélscaour business, operating results or financtaddition
under a number of different scenarios. During @mging economic times and periods of high unemplym
current or potential customers may delay or forgoislons to license new products or additionakinsgés of
existing products, upgrade their existing hardwareperating environments (which upgrades are afteatalyst fo
new purchases of our software), or purchase sexvidgstomers may also have difficulties in obtajrtime requisite
third-party financing to complete the purchase of oudpots and services. An adverse macroeconomic emiga
could also subject us to increased credit risk Ehoustomers be unable to pay us, or delay paysndon previously
purchased products and services. Accordingly, veseor doubtful accounts and write-offs of acceueiceivable
may increase. In addition, weakness in the markegtfid users of our products could harm the cash dif our
distributors and resellers who could then delayingatheir obligations to us or experience otheafficial
difficulties. This would further increase our credsk exposure and, potentially, cause delayaiinrecognition of
revenue on sales to these customers.

In addition, financial institution difficulties mayake it more difficult either to utilize our exisg debt capacit
or otherwise obtain financing for our operatioms,@sting activities (including potential acquisit&) or financing
activities. Specific economic trends, such as deslin the demand for PCs, servers, and other dimgpaevices, ¢
softness in corporate information technology spegdeould have an even more direct, and harmfupaichon our
business.
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Fluctuations in demand for our products and serviare driven by many factors, and a decrease in dechfor
our products could adversely affect our financiagsults.

We are subject to fluctuations in demand for owdpcts and services due to a variety of factoduding
general economic conditions, competition, prodingtatescence, technological change, shifts in bupatterns,
financial difficulties and budget constraints of @urrent and potential customers, levels of breadbusage,
awareness of security threats to IT systems, amer dactors. While such factors may, in some pa&siditrease
product sales, fluctuations in demand can alsothegaimpact our product sales. If demand for ptoducts
declines because of general economic conditioferarther reasons, our revenues and gross margid be
adversely affected.

If we are unable to develop new and enhanced praduand services that achieve widespread market
acceptance, or if we are unable to continually ingwe the performance, features, and reliability afroexisting
products and services or adapt our business modéddgep pace with industry trends, our business and
operating results could be adversely affected.

Our future success depends on our ability to redponhe rapidly changing needs of our customers by
developing or introducing new products, productrapgs, and services on a timely basis. We haveeipast
incurred, and will continue to incur, significamisearch and development expenses as we striven&irre
competitive. New product development and introdwcinvolves a significant commitment of time andaerces
and is subject to a number of risks and challeigeading:

* Managing the length of the development cycle faw peoducts and product enhancements, which has
frequently been longer than we originally expec

« Adapting to emerging and evolving industry standamdd to technological developments by our congostit
and customer

« Extending the operation of our products and sesviomew and evolving platforms, operating systants
hardware products, such as netba

« Entering into new or unproven markets with whichlve&e limited experienc

« Managing new product and service strategies, imofuithtegrating our various security and storage
technologies, management solutions, customer seraied support into unified enterprise security and
storage solution

« Incorporating acquired products and technolo
« Addressing trade compliance issues affecting ollityato ship new or acquired produc
« Developing or expanding efficient sales chan

» Obtaining sufficient licenses to technology anchteécal access from operating system software venolor
reasonable terms to enable the development andydepht of interoperable products, including soweege
licenses for certain products with deep technicggration into operating systel

In addition, if we cannot adapt our business motielseep pace with industry trends, our revenuddcbe
negatively impacted. In connection with our entegsoftware offerings, we license our applications variety of
bases, such as per server, per processor, or bagaformance criteria such as per amount of plateessed or
stored. If enterprises continue to migrate towaalations, such as virtualization, which allow eptéses to run
multiple applications and operating systems omglsiserver and thereby reduce the number of sethiey are
required to own and operate, we may experiencerltieanse revenues unless we are able to succlyssifizainge
our enterprise licensing model or sell additioradtware to take into account the impact of thes# selutions.

If we are not successful in managing these riskisciuallenges, or if our new products, product uggsaand
services are not technologically competitive omdbachieve market acceptance, our business amdtoeresults
could be adversely affected.
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We operate in a highly competitive environment, amagr competitors may gain market share in the matkéor
our products that could adversely affect our bussseand cause our revenues to decline.

We operate in intensely competitive markets thaeeence rapid technological developments, chaitges
industry standards, changes in customer requireanant! frequent new product introductions and imgnaents. If
we are unable to anticipate or react to these ctitivgechallenges or if existing or new competitgesin market
share in any of our markets, our competitive posittould weaken and we could experience a dropvernue that
could adversely affect our business and opera#nglts. To compete successfully, we must maintaucaessful
research and development effort to develop newyatscand services and enhance existing productsemites,
effectively adapt to changes in the technologyrodpct rights held by our competitors, appropriatelspond to
competitive strategies, and effectively adapt thtmlogical changes and changes in the ways thiahfmrmation i<
accessed, used, and stored within our enterprge@msumer markets. If we are unsuccessful in retipg to our
competitors or to changing technological and custodemands, we could experience a negative effeoto
competitive position and our financial results.

Our traditional competitors include independentwafe vendors that offer software products thataly
compete with our product offerings. In additiorctimpeting with these vendors directly for salesridusers of ou
products, we compete with them for the opportutdthave our products bundled with the product affgs of our
strategic partners such as computer hardware OBM$SPs. Our competitors could gain market shama fus if
any of these strategic partners replace our predwmith the products of our competitors or if thegrmactively
promote our competitors’ products than our produatsiddition, software vendors who have bundledpsaducts
with theirs may choose to bundle their softwarénwliteir own or other vendors’ software or may limitr access to
standard product interfaces and inhibit our abtlitglevelop products for their platform.

We face growing competition from network equipmantl computer hardware manufacturers and large
operating system providers. These firms are inanghsdeveloping and incorporating into their pratiidata
protection and storage and server management geftivat competes at some levels with our proddetiofys. Our
competitive position could be adversely affectethmextent that our customers perceive the funatity
incorporated into these products as replacing ¢eel fior our products.

Security protection is also offered by some of campetitors at prices lower than our prices ogdme cases
bundled for free. Some companies offer the lowéregt or free security products within their computardware or
software products that are inferior to our produ€sr competitive position could be adversely affddo the extent
that our customers perceive these security prodigcteplacing the need for more effective, fultdead products
such as those that we provide. The expansion eéthempetitive trends could have a significant tiegampact on
our sales and financial results.

Another growing industry trend is the SaaS busimesdel, where software vendors develop and host the
applications for use by customers over the Inteffigis allows enterprises to obtain the benefitsashmercially
licensed, internally operated software withoutalksociated complexity or high initial set-up anérmapional costs.
Advances in the SaaS business model could enablgrewth of our competitors and could affect thecgss of our
traditional software licensing models. We are offgrour own SaasS offerings, including those relatedur fiscal
2009 acquisition of Message Labs, and we contiauedorporate these offerings into our licensingdeio
However, we may not be able to successfully inc@tgoour SaaS offerings into our current licensmaglels. Our
inability to successfully develop and market new aristing SaaS product offerings could cause Ussi® business
to competitors.

Many of our competitors have greater financialhtécal, sales, marketing, or other resources thaevand
consequently may have the ability to influence eomrs to purchase their products instead of ouesalsb face
competition from many smaller companies that spieeign particular segments of the markets in whigh
compete.
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If we fail to manage our sales and distribution chaels effectively or if our partners choose notrmarket and
sell our products to their customers, our operatingsults could be adversely affected.

We sell our products to customers around the wbrlough multi-tiered sales and distribution netvgorRales
through these different channels involve distiigits, including the following:

Direct Sales. A significant portion of our revenues from entésp products is derived from sales by our direct

sales force to end-users. Special risks assoaidthdhis sales channel include:

Longer sales cycles associated with direct safeste
Difficulty in hiring, retaining, and motivating outirect sales forc

Substantial amounts of training for sales repregaas to become productive, including regular ugslido
cover new and revised produ

Indirect Sales ChannelsA significant portion of our revenues is derifeain sales through indirect channels,
including distributors that sell our products taarsers and other resellers. This channel invavesmber of risks,
including:

Our lack of control over the timing of delivery ofir products to er-users

Our resellers and distributors are not subjectitmum sales requirements or any obligation to retdur
products to their custome

Our reseller and distributor agreements are gdgarahexclusive and may be terminated at any tiritbout
cause

Our resellers and distributors frequently market distribute competing products and may, from ttme
time, place greater emphasis on the sale of theskipts due to pricing, promotions, and other teoffered
by our competitor:

Recent consolidation of electronics retailers nasciased their negotiating power with respect td\ware
and software provide!

OEM Sales ChannelsA significant portion of our revenues is derivieain sales through our OEM partners
that incorporate our products into, or bundle awdpcts with, their products. Our reliance on #afes channel
involves many risks, including:

Our lack of control over the shipping dates or weduof systems shippe

Our OEM partners are generally not subject to mimmsales requirements or any obligation to market o
products to their custome

Our OEM partners may terminate or renegotiate ieangements with us and new terms may be less
favorable due, among other things, to an incredsicmmpetitive relationship with certain partni

Sales through our OEM partners are subject to aaimggeneral economic conditions, strategic dact
competitive risks, and other issues that couldltésa reduction of OEM sale

The development work that we must generally unétertmder our agreements with our OEM partners may

require us to invest significant resources andrisaynificant costs with little or no associategiarues

The time and expense required for the sales anklatiiag organizations of our OEM partners to become
familiar with our products may make it more difficto introduce those products to the mai

Our OEM partners may develop, market, and distettiaéir own products and market and distribute petsd
of our competitors, which could reduce our si

In many cases we must incur up-front costs to acttesOEM channel, particularly in the consumerkeir
and we may not recoup those-front costs if customers do not ultimately activatel purchase our produ
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If we fail to manage our sales and distributionretels successfully, these channels may conflidi otite
another or otherwise fail to perform as we anti@pahich could reduce our sales and increasexqperses as well
as weaken our competitive position. Some of ouritigtion partners have experienced financial diffiies in the
past, and if our partners suffer financial diffities$ in the future because of general economicitiond or for other
reasons, these partners may delay paying theativins to us and we may have reduced sales @ased bad de
expense that could adversely affect our operagsglts. In addition, reliance on multiple chanrseibjects us to
events that could cause unpredictability in demaridch could increase the risk that we may be umédplan
effectively for the future, and could result in adse operating results in future periods.

We have grown, and may continue to grow, througlgagsitions that give rise to risks and challengdmt
could adversely affect our future financial results

We have in the past acquired, and we expect toi@ciuthe future, other businesses, business, ants
technologies. Acquisitions can involve a numbesmécial risks and challenges, including:

« Complexity, time, and costs associated with thegrdation of acquired business operations, workforce
products, and technologies into our existing bussneales force, employee base, product lines, and
technology

« Diversion of management time and attention fromedasting business and other business opportur

 Loss or termination of employees, including cossoaiated with the termination or replacement oséh
employees

» Assumption of debt or other liabilities of the azgd business, including litigation related to #eguired
busines:

« The addition of acquisitic-related debt as well as increased expenses andngar&pital requiremen
« Dilution of stock ownership of existing stockholg
« Increased costs and efforts in connection with d@npe with Section 404 of the Sarba-Oxley Act

» Substantial accounting charges for restructurirjrefated expenses, write-off of in-process reseand
development, impairment of goodwill, amortizatidnrdangible assets, and stock-based compensation
expense, such as the $7.4 billion goodwill v-down we recorded during fiscal 20

Integrating acquired businesses has been andamtirue to be a complex, time consuming, and expens
process, and can impact the effectiveness of aerrial control over financial reporting.

If integration of our acquired businesses is natsasful, we may not realize the potential benefitsn
acquisition or suffer other adverse effects thatweently do not foresee. To integrate acquiresimsses, we mu
implement our technology systems in the acquirestations and integrate and manage the persontigd @icquire:
operations. We also must effectively integratedifierent cultures of acquired business organizetioto our own
in a way that aligns various interests, and maylieenter new markets in which we have no or échiéxperience
and where competitors in such markets have strangeket positions.

Any of the foregoing, and other factors, could haum ability to achieve anticipated levels of ptafility from
acquired businesses or to realize other anticigateefits of acquisitions. In addition, becauseau@itions of high
technology companies are inherently risky, no assue can be given that our previous or future aitipis will be
successful and will not adversely affect our bussn@perating results, or financial condition.

We have not historically maintained substantial kg of indebtedness, and our financial condition @nesults
of operations could be adversely affected if werad effectively manage our liabilities.

In June 2006, we sold $2.1 billion in aggregatagpal amount of convertible senior notes. As altes the
sale of the notes, we have a substantially greaweunt of long-term debt than we maintained piahtt sale. In
addition, we have entered into a credit facilitghwa borrowing capacity of $1 billion. As of Apél 2010, we had
no borrowings under our credit facility. From titeetime in the future, we may also incur indebtesdnia addition
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to the amount available under our credit facilur maintenance of substantial levels of debt cadikersely affect
our flexibility to take advantage of certain corgia opportunities and could adversely affect auaritial condition
and results of operations. Of our outstanding cdible notes, $1.1 billion matures and is repayabléune 2011
and the balance is due in June 2013. We may béreédo use all or a substantial portion of ourhchalance to
repay these notes on maturity unless we can ob&infinancing.

Our international operations involve risks that céiincrease our expenses, adversely affect our agieg
results, and require increased time and attentiohooir management.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuemfooistomers located outside of the U.S. and we have
significant operations outside of the U.S., inchglengineering, sales, customer support, and ptiotudVe plan tc
expand our international operations, but such esiparis contingent upon the financial performanteuw existing
international operations as well as our identifamaibf growth opportunities. Our international ogéons are subject
to risks in addition to those faced by our domesgierations, including:

 Potential loss of proprietary information due teappropriation or laws that may be less proteaifveur
intellectual property rights than U.S. laws or nmay be adequately enforc

» Requirements of foreign laws and other governmertatrols, including trade and labor restrictions a
related laws that reduce the flexibility of our mess operation

» Regulations or restrictions on the use, imporgxgort of encryption technologies that could delapreven
the acceptance and use of encryption products aloidcpetworks for secure communicatic

« Central bank and other restrictions on our abtlityepatriate cash from our international subsidsor to
exchange cash in international subsidiaries inth @vailable for use in the U.

 Fluctuations in currency exchange rates and ecanarsiability such as higher interest rates inh®. and
inflation that could reduce our customers’ abitityobtain financing for software products or thatilcd make
our products more expensive or could increase astsof doing business in certain count

« Limitations on future growth or inability to mairtecurrent levels of revenues from internationdésaf we
do not invest sufficiently in our international epgons

« Longer payment cycles for sales in foreign countard difficulties in collecting accounts receivs

« Difficulties in staffing, managing, and operatingranternational operations, including difficultieslated to
administering our stock plans in some foreign coas

« Difficulties in coordinating the activities of ogeographically dispersed and culturally diverserafiens

» Seasonal reductions in business activity in thersanmonths in Europe and in other periods in other
countries

» Reduced sales due to the failure to obtain anyiredjexport approval of our technologies, partidylaur
encryption technologie

« Costs and delays associated with developing softaad providing support in multiple languay
« Political unrest, war, or terrorism, particulantyareas in which we have faciliti

A significant portion of our transactions outsidele U.S. are denominated in foreign currencieokdingly,
our revenues and expenses will continue to be suttjdluctuations in foreign currency rates. Weeot to be
affected by fluctuations in foreign currency raiteshe future, especially if international salesittoue to grow as a
percentage of our total sales or our operationsideithe United States continue to increase.

The level of corporate tax from sales to our noB:ldustomers is less than the level of tax frorasstd our
U.S. customers. This benefit is contingent uposteng tax regulations in the U.S. and in the caaatin which our
international operations are located. Future chaumgdomestic or international tax regulations doadversely
affect our ability to continue to realize these exefits.
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Our products are complex and operate in a wide edyiof computer configurations, which could resuift
errors or product failures.

Because we offer very complex products, undeteetaats, failures, or bugs may occur, especiallynhe
products are first introduced or when new versimsreleased. Our products are often installeduard in large-
scale computing environments with different opeiggystems, system management software, and equiigme
networking configurations, which may cause errariadures in our products or may expose undeteeteats,
failures, or bugs in our products. Our customeosnputing environments are often characterized Wide variety
of standard and non-standard configurations th&enpae-release testing for programming or compétil@rrors
very difficult and time-consuming. In addition, gée testing by us and others, errors, failurefugs may not be
found in new products or releases until after comeeenent of commercial shipments. In the past, we ha
discovered software errors, failures, and bug®itain of our product offerings after their intration and, in some
cases, may have experienced delayed or lost resesua result of these errors.

Errors, failures, or bugs in products released$gauld result in negative publicity, damage to lotand,
product returns, loss of or delay in market acasgeaf our products, loss of competitive positionclaims by
customers or others. Many of our end-user customsrour products in applications that are critioaheir
businesses and may have a greater sensitivityféztdan our products than to defects in others dical, softwars
products. In addition, if an actual or perceivedamh of information integrity or availability ocauin one of our
end-user customer’s systems, regardless of whtthdareach is attributable to our products, theketgoerception
of the effectiveness of our products could be harmdleviating any of these problems could requsignificant
expenditures of our capital and other resourcescanttl cause interruptions, delays, or cessatiauofproduct
licensing, which could cause us to lose existingatential customers and could adversely affectoperating
results.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified ggtoyees, lose key personnel, fail to integrate ss@ment
personnel successfully, or fail to manage our emyse base effectively, we may be unable to devedap and
enhanced products and services, effectively managexpand our business, or increase our revenues.

Our future success depends upon our ability taureand retain our key management, technical, sales
marketing, finance, and other critical personneir 6fficers and other key personnel are employéegth and we
cannot assure you that we will be able to retaémthCompetition for people with the specific skilsit we require
is significant. In order to attract and retain persel in a competitive marketplace, we believe Wamust provide
competitive compensation package, including casheguity-based compensation. The volatility in starck price
may from time to time adversely affect our abilibyrecruit or retain employees. In addition, we rbayunable to
obtain required stockholder approvals of futureéases in the number of shares available for issuander our
equity compensation plans, and accounting rulegiregs to treat the issuance of employee stodkpand other
forms of equity-based compensation as compensatipanse. As a result, we may decide to issue feggity-
based incentives and may be impaired in our effortdtract and retain necessary personnel. Ifiveiaable to hire
and retain qualified employees, or conversely,gffail to manage employee performance or redudirgtdevels
when required by market conditions, our businessagerating results could be adversely affected.

From time to time, key personnel leave our compé&ilyile we strive to reduce the negative impactuits
changes, the loss of any key employee could r@sslgnificant disruptions to our operations, irdihg adversely
affecting the timeliness of product releases, tleesssful implementation and completion of compaitiatives, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesiand our internal control over financial repgrtand the
results of our operations. In addition, hiringjrirag, and successfully integrating replacemergsahd other
personnel could be time consuming, may cause additdisruptions to our operations, and may be coessful,
which could negatively impact future revenues.
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From time to time we are a party to class actiomvkuits, which often require significant managemetitne and
attention and result in significant legal expenseand which could, if not determined favorably, neijaely
impact our business, financial condition, result$ operations, and cash flows.

We have been named as a party to class actionilawanod we may be named in additional litigatibhe
expense of defending such litigation may be caatig divert management’s attention from the dayapaperation
of our business, which could adversely affect aigitbess, results of operations, and cash flowadtition, an
unfavorable outcome in such litigation could negasi impact our business, results of operationd,cash flows.

Third parties claiming that we infringe their propetary rights could cause us to incur significantgdal
expenses and prevent us from selling our products.

From time to time, we receive claims that we hafgriged the intellectual property rights of othéreluding
claims regarding patents, copyrights, and trademankaddition, former employers of our former,remt, or future
employees may assert claims that such employeesiimproperly disclosed to us the confidential agsretary
information of these former employers. Any suchnalawith or without merit, could result in costljigation and
distract management from day-to-day operationselfare not successful in defending such claims;auéd be
required to stop selling, delay shipments of, diesign our products, pay monetary amounts as damneageer into
royalty or licensing arrangements, or satisfy inddiwation obligations that we have with some of oustomers.
We cannot assure you that any royalty or licensimgngements that we may seek in such circumstavitidse
available to us on commercially reasonable termet atl.

In addition, we license and use software from tpiadties in our business. These third party sofviaenses
may not continue to be available to us on acceetims or at all, and may expose us to addititiaility. This
liability, or our inability to use any of this tlirparty software, could result in shipment delaystber disruptions i
our business that could materially and adversdgcabur operating results.

If we do not protect our proprietary information ahprevent third parties from making unauthorized esf our
products and technology, our financial results caube harmed.

Most of our software and underlying technologyrigietary. We seek to protect our proprietary tsghrougt
a combination of confidentiality agreements andcpdures and through copyright, patent, trademautk tiade
secret laws. However, all of these measures afiolyl limited protection and may be challenged, lidated, or
circumvented by third parties. Third parties magyall or portions of our products or otherwiseaibt use,
distribute, and sell our proprietary informatiorthgiut authorization. Third parties may also devediopilar or
superior technology independently by designing adoour patents. Our shrink-wrap license agreensmetsiot
signed by licensees and therefore may be unenfoleceader the laws of some jurisdictions. Furtheenthe laws
of some foreign countries do not offer the samelle¥ protection of our proprietary rights as thev$ of the U.S.,
and we may be subject to unauthorized use of mdymts in those countries. The unauthorized copgingse of
our products or proprietary information could ré$nlreduced sales of our products. Any legal act@mprotect
proprietary information that we may bring or be @ged in with a strategic partner or vendor coulkeaskly affect
our ability to access software, operating systam, lmrdware platforms of such partner or vendocanise such
partner or vendor to choose not to offer our presltm their customers. In addition, any legal actio protect
proprietary information that we may bring or be @ged in, alone or through our alliances with theiBess
Software Alliance (“BSA”"), or the Software & Infortion Industry Association (“SIIA”), could be costimay
distract management from day-to-day operations,naag lead to additional claims against us, whichldo
adversely affect our operating results.

Some of our products contain “open source” softwaand any failure to comply with the terms of one more
of these open source licenses could negativelyaftrir business.

Certain of our products are distributed with softsviicensed by its authors or other third partiedar soealled
“open source” licenses, which may include, by wagxample, the GNU General Public License (“GPIGNU
Lesser General Public License (“LGPL"), the Moziablic License, the BSD License, and the Apache

19




Table of Contents

License. Some of these licenses contain requirestikat we make available source code for modificestior
derivative works we create based upon the opercemaftware, and that we license such modificattrderivative
works under the terms of a particular open soucemse or other license granting third partiesatentights of
further use. By the terms of certain open soukes, we could be required to release the soadmeof our
proprietary software if we combine our proprietaoftware with open source software in a certainmaarin
addition to risks related to license requiremenssge of open source software can lead to gresksrthan use of
third party commercial software, as open soura@nbors generally do not provide warranties or astwn origin o
the software. We have established processes tahelpate these risks, including a review prodesscreening
requests from our development organizations foueeof open source, but we cannot be sure thapaii source |
submitted for approval prior to use in our produtiisaddition, many of the risks associated witagesof open
source cannot be eliminated, and could, if not priypaddressed, negatively affect our business.

Our software products and website may be subjedhtentional disruption that could adversely impaotir
reputation and future sales.

Although we believe we have sufficient controlgplace to prevent intentional disruptions, we expedie an
ongoing target of attacks specifically designeahtpede the performance of our products and harnmeputation a
a company. Similarly, experienced computer progransrmay attempt to penetrate our network securitfjie®
security of our website and misappropriate proprietnformation and/or cause interruptions of aenvices.
Because the techniques used by such computer progges to access or sabotage networks change frihgaad
may not be recognized until launched against a&tavge may be unable to anticipate these techniquestheft
and/or unauthorized use or publication of our treglerets and other confidential business informaa®a result of
such an event could adversely affect our competjisition, reputation, brand and future salesuofpsoducts, and
our customers may assert claims against us refatexulting losses of confidential or proprietarfpormation. Our
business could be subject to significant disruptaord we could suffer monetary and other losseggmatational
harm, in the event of such incidents and claims.

Increased customer demands on our technical supgatvices may adversely affect our relationshipswaur
customers and our financial results.

We offer technical support services with many of products. We may be unable to respond quicklyughdo
accommodate short-term increases in customer defoasdpport services. We also may be unable toifntae
format of our support services to compete with ¢fegnn support services provided by competitorsuccessfully
integrate support for our customers. Further custalemand for these services, without correspondingnues,
could increase costs and adversely affect our tipgreesults.

We have outsourced a substantial portion of outdwdde consumer support functions to third partysee
providers. If these companies experience finartiffitulties, do not maintain sufficiently skillegtorkers and
resources to satisfy our contracts, or otherwigdedgerform at a sufficient level under these ttaats, the level of
support services to our customers may be significaisrupted, which could materially harm our t&aships with
these customers.

Accounting charges may cause fluctuations in ourayterly financial results.

Our financial results have been in the past, ang eoatinue to be in the future, materially affectlgdnon-cash
and other accounting charges, including:

* Amortization of intangible assets, including acegdiproduct right:

* Impairment of goodwil

» Stoclk-based compensation expel

» Restructuring charge

 Impairment of lon-lived asset:

* Loss on sale of a business and similar \-downs of assets held for s:
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For example, during fiscal 2009, we recorded a casti goodwill impairment charge of $7.4 billionsukting
in a significant net loss for the year. Goodwilkigaluated annually for impairment in the fourttadar of each
fiscal year or more frequently if events and cirstances warrant as we determined they did in the guarter of
fiscal 2009, and our evaluation depends to a ldeggee on estimates and assumptions made by o@geraent.
Our assessment of any impairment of goodwill issbdasn a comparison of the fair value of each ofreporting
units to the carrying value of that reporting uitir determination of fair value relies on managetseassumptions
of our future revenues, operating costs, and a#levant factors. If management’s estimates ofr&uiperating
results change, or if there are changes to otheaksumptions such as the discount rate appliaduce operating
results, the estimate of the fair value of our répg units could change significantly, which couésult in a
goodwill impairment charge. In addition, we evatuatir other long-lived assets, including intangéssets
whenever events or circumstances occur which iteliteat the value of these assets might be impdifrede
determine that impairment has occurred, we coudrian impairment charge against the value of thesets.

The foregoing types of accounting charges may ladsimcurred in connection with or as a result tieot
business acquisitions. The price of our commonkstoeild decline to the extent that our financiaulés are
materially affected by the foregoing accountingrges.

Our effective tax rate may increase, which coulctiease our income tax expense and reduce (increase)net
income (loss).

Our effective tax rate could be adversely affettgdeveral factors, many of which are outside afcmntrol,
including:

« Changes in the relative proportions of revenuesiacome before taxes in the various jurisdictiansvhich
we operate that have differing statutory tax ri

» Changing tax laws, regulations, and interpretatiomsultiple jurisdictions in which we operate aslixas the
requirements of certain tax rulin

» The tax effects of purchase accounting for acqarstand restructuring charges that may causeufiticins
between reporting perioc

» Tax assessments, or any related tax interest @dte=s) could significantly affect our income taxpense for
the period in which the settlements take pl:

The price of our common stock could decline if boancial results are materially affected by anexde
change in our effective tax rate.

We report our results of operations based on ot@ragnations of the amount of taxes owed in théouertax
jurisdictions in which we operate. From time todimve receive notices that a tax authority in @i@aar
jurisdiction in which we are subject to taxes hatdmined that we owe a greater amount of tax Wehave
reported to such authority. We are regularly endagealiscussions and sometimes disputes with tteese
authorities. We are engaged in disputes of thisraadt this time. If the ultimate determinationoof taxes owed in
any of these jurisdictions is for an amount in esscef the tax provision we have recorded or reskfoe our
operating results, cash flows, and financial caaditould be adversely affected.

Fluctuations in our quarterly financial results hag affected the price of our common stock in the pasd
could affect our stock price in the future.

Our quarterly financial results have fluctuatedha past and are likely to vary significantly iretuture due to
a number of factors, many of which are outsidewfamntrol and which could adversely affect ourragiens and
operating results. If our quarterly financial reéswr our predictions of future financial resuld fo meet the
expectations of securities analysts and investansstock price could be negatively affected. Aojatility in our
quarterly financial results may make it more diffidor us to raise capital in the future or pursweuisitions that
involve issuances of our stock. Our operating tegok prior periods may not be effective predistof our future
performance.
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Factors associated with our industry, the operaifovur business, and the markets for our prodmetg cause
our quarterly financial results to fluctuate, irgilg:

Reduced demand for any of our prodt

Entry of new competition into our marke

Competitive pricing pressure for one or more of cdasses of produc

Our ability to timely complete the release of nawenhanced versions of our produ
Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ri

The number, severity, and timing of threat outbse@kg. worms and viruse

Our resellers making a substantial portion of tpeichases near the end of each qui
Enterprise custome’ tendency to negotiate site licenses near the eeddf quarte
Cancellation, deferral, or limitation of orders &yystomer:

Movement in interest rate

The rate of adoption of new product technologias mew releases of operating syste

Weakness or uncertainty in general economic orstighiconditions in any of the multiple markets ihiah
we operate that could reduce customer demand alitgf &bbpay for our products and servic

Political and military instability, which could slospending within our target markets, delay sajetes, and
otherwise adversely affect our ability to generateenues and operate effectiv

Budgetary constraints of customers, which are arfbed by corporate earnings and government budget
cycles and spending objectiv

Disruptions in our business operations or targakata caused by, among other things, earthquakesld,
or other natural disasters affecting our headqrshteated in Silicon Valley, California, an arazokvn for
seismic activity, or our other locations worldwi

Acts of war or terrorisn
Intentional disruptions by third parti

Health or similar issues, such as a pande

Any of the foregoing factors could cause the trggirice of our common stock to fluctuate signifittan

Our stock price may be volatile in the future, aydu could lose the value of your investment.

The market price of our common stock has experigs@mnificant fluctuations in the past and may curg to
fluctuate in the future, and as a result you cées@ the value of your investment. The market poiceur common
stock may be affected by a number of factors, uticlg:

Announcements of quarterly operating results amdimee and earnings forecasts by us that fail td melge
consistent with our earlier projections or the estptons of our investors or securities anal

Announcements by either our competitors or custertteat fail to meet or be consistent with theiliear
projections or the expectations of our investorsemurities analys

Rumors, announcements, or press articles regaadingompetitors’ operations, management, orgamigati
financial condition, or financial statemel

Changes in revenue and earnings estimates by us\v@astors, or securities analy
Accounting charges, including charges relatindhtoimpairment of goodwi
Announcements of planned acquisitions or dispasstimy us or by our competitc
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< Announcements of new or planned products by uscommpetitors, or our custome
« Gain or loss of a significant custon
« Inquiries by the SEC, NASDAQ, law enforcement, tivew regulatory bodie

Acts of terrorism, the threat of war, and othesesi or emergency situatia

» Economic slowdowns or the perception of an onconeicgnomic slowdown in any of the major markets in
which we operat

The stock market in general, and the market pa€asocks of technology companies in particulakeha
experienced extreme price volatility that has aslelgraffected, and may continue to adversely afteetmarket
price of our common stock for reasons unrelatenliobusiness or operating results.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

There are currently no unresolved issues with i@dpeany Commission staff’s written comments thate
received at least 180 days before the end of eaalfiyear to which this report relates and thateeio our periodic
or current reports under the Exchange Act.

Item 2. Properties

Our properties consist primarily of owned and |elasffice facilities for sales, research and develept,
administrative, customer service, and technicapsttpersonnel. Our corporate headquarters iséddatMountain
View, California in a 667,000 square foot facilitf,which 592,000 square feet is owned and 75,00@re feet is
leased. We also lease an additional 83,000 sqaatérfthe San Francisco Bay Area. Our leasedtfasiare
occupied under leases that expire at various tthmesigh 2029. The following table presents the apipnate squar
footage of our facilities as of April 2, 201 thousands)

Approximate Total Square

Footage®
Location Owned Leased
Americas 1,721 1,37¢
Europe, Middle East, and Afric 28t 68¢
Asia Pacific/Japa — 1,35¢
Total 2,00¢ 3,421

@ Included in the total square footage above arentaexailable-for-lease properties totaling appnuadely
253,000 square feet, and certain properties clyrbatd-for-sale totaling approximately 251,000 acpifeet.
Total square footage excludes approximately 180g0@@re feet relating to facilities subleased i@l tparties.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequat our current needs and that the productivacigpof our
facilities is substantially utilized, except forsass held for sale.
Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

Information with respect to this ltem may be foumtier the heading “Litigation Contingencies” in B& of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsignannual report which information is incorporatet this
Item 3 by reference.

Item 4. Removed and Reservi
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities
Market for Our Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg Globa@cs#arket under the symbol “SYMC.” The high and/lo
sales prices set forth below are as reported oh&selaq Global Select Market.

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $19.1¢ $18.2¢ $17.71 $18.17 $16.3t $17.27 $22.8(C $21.9¢
Low $16.1: $15.6¢ $14.68 $13.97 $12.5¢ $10.0: $16.8¢ $16.5:

As of April 2, 2010, there were 2,502 stockholdefrsecord of Symantec common stock. Symantec hasrne
declared or paid any cash dividends on its cagitalk. We currently intend to retain future earsifigr use in our
business, and, therefore, we do not anticipatengagmny cash dividends on our capital stock in tedeeable
future.

Repurchases of our equity securities
Stock repurchases during the three months endedt 22010 were as follows:

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares
That May Yet be
Total Number of Shares Purchased Unde
Total Number of Average Price  Purchased Under Publicly the Plans
Shares Purchase Paid Per Share Announced Plans or Program or Programs
(In millions, except per share data’

January 2, 2010 to January 29, 2! — $ — — $ 93¢
January 30, 2010 to February 26, 2 10 $ 16.9¢ 10 $ 75€
February 27, 2010 to April 2, 20: 1% 16.67 19 747
Total 11 $ 16.9¢ 11

We have had stock repurchase programs in the pddiave repurchased shares on a quarterly bases tsie
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 under new and exgnograms. Our current program was authorizedusyBoard of
Directors on October 27, 2009 to repurchase ug tbilion of our common stock. This program does mave an
expiration date, and as of April 2, 2010, $747 imillremained authorized for future repurchasesiriformation
with regard to our stock repurchase programs, sdge B of the Notes to Consolidated Financial &tatgs in this
annual report.
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Stock Performance Graphs

These performance graphs shall not be deemed™fitegurposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or
otherwise subject to the liabilities under thatt®eg and shall not be deemed to be incorporatecfeyence into
any filing of Symantec under the Securities Acther Exchange Act.

Comparison of cumulative total return — March 310P5 to March 31, 2010

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return on Symantec common stock from Marth 3
2005 to March 31, 2010 with the cumulative totaline on the S&P 500 Composite Index and the S&Brinktion
Technology Index over the same period (assumingnthestment of $100 in Symantec common stock arehah o
the other indices on March 31, 2005, and reinvestrakall dividends, although no dividends othartistock
dividends have been declared on Symantec commok)sithe comparisons in the graph below are based o
historical data and are not intended to forecasptissible future performance of Symantec commmrkst

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Symantec Corporation, The S & P 500 Index
And The S & P Information Technology Index

200
—F+ Symantec Corporation

L S &PS500
150 | —O— S & PInformation Technology

7 4]
;Hﬂ /O Fay
- L0004
]
8 O— DM*D
50
f] T T T T T
305 306 307 308 309 10

*$100 invested on 3/31/05 in stock or index. Fisedr ending March 31.

3/05 3/06 3/07 3/08 3/09 3/10
Symantec Corporation 100.0( 78.9( 81.11 77.92 | 70.0¢ 79.3¢€
S & P 500 100.0C | 111.7¢ | 124.9% [ 118.6( | 73.4% | 109.9:
S & P Information Technology 100.0C | 113.5¢ | 117.0¢ | 116.5¢ | 81.51 | 128.7¢
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Comparison of cumulative total retur— June 23, 1989 to March 31, 201

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return on Symantec common stock from June 23
1989 (the date of Symantec’s initial public offgfirio March 31, 2010 with the cumulative total reton the S&P
500 Composite Index and the S&P Information Tecbgplindex over the same period (assuming the invest of
$100 in Symantec common stock and in each of therandices on June 30, 1989, and reinvestmerit of a
dividends, although no dividends other than stdelddnds have been declared on Symantec commok)stoc
Symantec has provided this additional data to gie@the perspective of a longer time period whiatoissistent with
Symantec’s history as a public company. The corspas in the graph below are based on historical alad are not
intended to forecast the possible future perforrmafcSymantec common stock.

3500

COMPARISON OF 21 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Symantec Corporation, The S & P 500 Index
And S & P Information Technology Index

3001 A g & P s00

2500 | —O— 5 & P Information Technology

= Symantec Corporation

200

1500

DOLLARS

1000

500

0

BARG 300 301 302 3/03 3/04 3505 3096 3097 TOR 3500 300 3001 3002 A3 3048 305 306 307 308 300 310

*$100 invested on 6/23/89 in stock or 5/31/89 iddr. Fiscal year ending March 31.

6/89 3/90 3/91 3/92 3/93 3/94 3/95 3/96 3/97 3/98 3/99

Symantec Corporation 100.0C | 173.9! | 419.57 | 743.4¢ | 223.97 | 271.7¢ | 400.00 | 223.91 | 247.8: | 468.4¢ 294.5%
S & P 500 100.0C | 108.97 | 124.6¢ | 138.4¢ | 159.5: [ 161.8¢ | 187.0¢ | 247.1% | 296.1¢ | 438.2¢ 519.1¢
S & P Information
Technology 100.0C | 102.3¢ | 120.6¢ | 135.21 | 154.4( | 181.9¢ | 247.9% | 326.7: | 469.9¢ | 721.2. | 1214.7¢

3/00 3/01 3/02 3/03 3/04 3/05 3/06 3/07 3/08 3/09 3/10
Symantec Corporatior | 1306.5: 727.17 | 1433.3¢ | 1362.7¢ | 3220.8" | 2967.6! | 2341.5" | 2406.9¢ | 2312.3" | 2078.6. | 2355.1:
S & P 500 612.32 479.5¢ 480.7¢ 361.7: 488.7¢ 521.4¢ 582.6( 651.5% 618.4¢ 382.8¢ 573.4¢
S&P Information
Technology 2408.8: | 1014.2¢ | 1015.6° 723.8F | 1044.4¢ | 1035.6¢ | 1198.0: | 1246.0¢ | 1247.3: 898.4( | 1418.5°
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected consolidated financial datderived from the Consolidated Financial Stateismen
included in this annual report. This data is qigdifin its entirety by and should be read in coofiom with the mor:
detailed Consolidated Financial Statements andectlaotes included in this annual report and wiiml 7,
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operationklistorical results may nc
be indicative of future results.

During the past five fiscal years, we have madddhiewing significant acquisitions:

» AppStream, Inc., SwapDrive, Inc., PC Tools Pty. itéd, MessagelLabs Group Limited during fiscal 2
« Altiris Inc. and Vontu Inc. during fiscal 20(

» Veritas Software Corporation, WholeSecurity, II8ygate Technologies, Inc., BindView Development
Corporation, IMlogic, Inc., Relicore, Inc. duringdal 200€

Each of these acquisitions was accounted for asiaéss purchase and, accordingly, the operatswdtseof
these businesses have been included in the CoaaliFinancial Statements included in this anrebnt since
their respective dates of acquisition.

Five-Year Summary

Fiscal @.b)
2010() 2009 2008 2007@ 2006
(In millions, except per share data’

Consolidated Statements of Operations C

Net revenue $ 5,98t $ 6,15 $ 5,874 % 5,19¢ $ 4,14:
Operating income (los:® 93z (6,470) 60z 52C 274
Net income (loss® $ 714 %$(6,78)% 41C$ 36€ $ 157
Net income (loss) per sha— basic(f) $ 08 $ (8B.17)% 047% 03¢ $ 0.1€
Net income (loss) per sha— diluted® $ 087%$ (8.17)$ 04¢$ 037 $ 0.1t
Shares used to compute earnings per <— basic 81C 831 86¢ 961 99¢
Shares used to compute earnings per <— diluted 81¢ 831 884 98%  1,02¢
Balance Sheet Dat
Cash and cash equivalel 3,02¢ 1,79¢ 1,89C 2,65¢ 2,31¢
Total asset(® 11,23: 10,63¢ 18,08t 17,74 17,911
Convertible subordinated not() — — — — 51z
Convertible Senior Note( 1,871 1,766 1,66¢ 1,57¢ —
Other lon¢-term liabilities® 50 90 10€ 21 25
Stockholder equity $ 4,54¢ $ 4,147 $11,22¢ $11,91: $13,66¢

@ We have a 52/53-week fiscal year. Fiscal 2010, 22087, and 2006 was comprised of 52 weeks of tipem
Fiscal 2009 was comprised of 53 weeks of operat

®) The summary reflects adjustments for the retrospeeidoption of new authoritative guidance on catible deb
instruments in the first quarter of fiscal 20

© In the fourth quarter fiscal 2010, we adopted netharitative guidance on revenue recognition. Gloggion of
this guidance was applied to the beginning of @aaal year and did not have a material impact an ou
consolidated financial statements. Our joint vemtaiso adopted this guidance during its period @nde
December 31, 2009, which was applied to the begaof its fiscal year. As a result of the joint uare’s
adoption of the guidance, our net income incredse®12 million during our fiscal 201!
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@ In fiscal 2007, we adopted new authoritative guedaon share-based compensation. The adoptionedsnlt
stock-based compensation charges of $155 millia7 $nillion, $164 million, and $154 million for fial years
2010, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectiv

(®) We acquired Veritas Software Corporation on Jul2@5 and its results of operations are includethfthe date
of acquisition.

() During fiscal 2009, we recorded a noash goodwill impairment charge of $7.4 billionrfeore information, se
Note 5 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finandiate®nents in this annual repc

@ In fiscal 2006, in connection with our acquisitiohVeritas, we assumed $520 million of 0.25% cotiloés
subordinated notes. These notes were paid offein émtirety in August 200¢

(M In fiscal 2007, we issued $1.1 hillion principal amt of 0.75% Convertible Senior Notes and $1.[obil
principal amount of 1.00% Convertible Senior Notest more information, see Notes 1 and 7 of theehltd
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annyzdnte

() Beginning in fiscal 2008, we entered into OEM plaeat fee contracts, which is the primary drivertfo
increase in liabilities

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

Our Business

Symantec is a global provider of security, storage systems management solutions that help busmassl
consumers secure and manage their information. Midde customers worldwide with software and sersithat
protect, manage and control information risks eslgb security, data protection, storage, compéaaod systems
management. We help our customers manage cost)e&datg@nd compliance by protecting their IT infrasture
as they seek to maximize value from their IT inmestts.

Fiscal Calendar

We have a 52/53-week fiscal year ending on thealyridosest to March 31. Unless otherwise statddrarces
to fiscal years in this report relate to fiscal yaad periods ended April 2, 2010, April 3, 2009 &march 28, 2008.
Fiscal 2010 and 2008 each consisted of 52 weelkit fidtal 2009 consisted of 53 weeks. Our 201daliyear will
consist of 52 weeks and will end on April 1, 2011.

Our Operating Segments

Our operating segments are significant strategsinass units that offer different products and isesy
distinguished by customer needs. Since the Mart gliarter, we have operated in five operating segsn
Consumer, Security and Compliance, Storage anceSbtanagement, Services, and Other. During thedirarter
of fiscal 2010, we changed our reporting segmenkbetter align to our operating structure, resglimthe
Enterprise Vault products that were formerly in@ddn the Security and Compliance segment beingechéw the
Storage and Server Management segment. Also, @8 &ifierings moved to either the Security and Céanpke
segment or the Storage and Server Management seforarthe Services segment, based on the natutesof
service delivered. As a result, the revenue comtiob from our SaaS offering primarily benefited &ecurity and
Compliance segment following the move. We revisedsegment information for the prior year to confdo the
new presentation. For further descriptions of querating segments, see Note 11 of the Notes todlidated
Financial Statements in this annual report. Ouorigble segments are the same as our operatingeségm

Financial Results and Trends

Revenue decreased for fiscal 2010 compared td 28€9. The challenging economic environment resbib
corporate IT budgets being reduced and spendinglbagd from previous levels. Smaller IT budgetgehied som
of our corporate customers to purchase smallemvetuof our products, particularly in the Storage Sarver
Management segment. In addition, our storage bssiwéhin the Storage and Server Management segmasnt
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been adversely affected for the last several qusabtethe deceleration of demand in the server ataAdditionally,
we were also particularly affected by lower nevefise sales of our storage products on the Solatfeqm. If the
economic conditions affecting global markets camtior IT spending remains tight, we may continuexjperience
slower or negative revenue growth and our busiaedsoperating results might suffer. In light ofgheeconomic
conditions, we will continue to align our cost stture with our revenue expectations. During fit10, we
experienced significantly higher year-over-year Oplscement fee payments resulting from an increaB& unit
shipments on which our products were bundled. Thegeased payments had an adverse impact on euatogy
income and operating margins during the fiscal 20d@ods, particularly for our Consumer segment.aXjgect to
see the revenue benefit from these increased pixteiees in future periods.

We launched a new, internaltieveloped and operated eCommerce platform duringlf2010 that will replac
the current online store for the company’s Nortoarded consumer products worldwide, excluding Jaysn
believe this will improve our ability to identifynd capitalize on emerging customer needs and maskeds and
enhance the end-to-end experience our customeeswigtvus. We have been transitioning custometkdmew
online store in a phased approach. The new ontore & gradually ramping up worldwide coverage snelkpected
to reach full capacity by June 30, 2010. The dgwmlent and roll-out of our new eCommerce platformeasely
affected the operating margins for our Consumemsey during fiscal 2010.

The fees we have paid to Digital River have histlly been recorded as an offset to revenue. Asaltrof
bringing the eCommerce business in-house, our coestevenue is expected to increase due to thénaliion of
this offset to revenue. We expect revenue to irseéathe range of $80 to $100 million in fiscall2Grom this
change. Conversely, the cost of running our ownne@erce platform will be classified primarily in apéng
expenses with some amounts flowing through costwénue. Therefore, operating expenses and cagstaafs sold
will both rise by a corresponding amount in 2014 ame believe the net impact to earnings per star2d11 will be
neutral. Over time, we expect our new eCommer@gesly to increase consumer operating margins. \Weatxo
capture the differential between what we have tiatklly paid Digital River and the ongoing costagferating our
own eCommerce platform.

Fluctuations in the U.S. dollar compared to foreigmrencies favorably impacted our internationakraie by
approximately $14 million for fiscal 2010 as comgxto fiscal 2009. Foreign currency fluctuationd helatively
little overall impact on our international revergrewth for fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008. #e unable to
predict the extent to which revenue in future pasiwill be impacted by changes in foreign curreexghange rate
If our level of international sales and expensesdase in the future, changes in foreign exchaatgs may have a
potentially greater impact on our revenue and dpeyaesults.

As discussed above under “Fiscal Calendar,” fi264l0 and 2008 consisted of 52 weeks, whereas 204
consisted of 53 weeks. The extra week contributeatitlitional amortization of deferred revenue gfragimately
$75 million in fiscal 2009.

Our net income was $714 million for fiscal 2010 avak positively impacted by a decrease of $128aniin
cost of revenue related to certain acquired prodghbts from our acquisition of Veritas becomindyftamortized
during the first quarter of our fiscal 2010. Netame was also positively impacted by a $78.5 mmltiax benefit in
the third quarter of fiscal 2010 resulting from thecember 200¥eritas v. Commissionét.S. Tax Court decision
relating to the Veritas 2000 and 2001 tax yeargddition, net income for fiscal 2010 was positvi@hpacted by
$47 million of net gain from the liquidation of ¢ein foreign legal entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial &tatgs and related notes included in this annuairtep
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeecin the United States, requires us to makenasts, which
include judgments and assumptions, that affecte¢perted amounts of assets, liabilities, revenod,expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and ltadsliWe have based our estimates on historicadréxqce and on
various assumptions that we believe to be reasenatder the circumstances. We evaluate our essnoata
regular basis and make changes accordingly. Histidyj our critical accounting estimates have ritieced
materially from actual results; however, actuautissmay differ from these estimates under diffe@nditions. If

29




Table of Contents

actual results differ from these estimates andratbesiderations used in estimating amounts reftest the
Consolidated Financial Statements included indhisual report, the resulting changes could havatenmal advers
effect on our Consolidated Statements of Operatiand in certain situations, could have a mateadaierse effect
on liquidity and our financial condition.

A critical accounting estimate is based on judgmanid assumptions about matters that are unceaitéie
time the estimate is made. Different estimatesrbadonably could have been used or changes inaticg
estimates could materially impact the operatinglte®r financial condition. We believe that théiresites describe
below represent our critical accounting estimaasshey have the greatest potential impact on ansalidated
financial statements. See also Note 1 of the Notéise Consolidated Financial Statements includetiis annual
report.

Revenue Recoghnitio

We recognize revenue in accordance with generallgfated accounting principles that have been phestfor
the software industry. We recognize revenue primatrsuant to the requirements under the author@aguidance
on software revenue recognition, and any applicablendments or modifications. Revenue recognition
requirements in the software industry are very dempnd require us to make many estimates.

For arrangements that include multiple elementduding perpetual software licenses and maintenance
and/or services, packaged products with contenat@sgd managed security services, and subscriptianallocate
and defer revenue for the undelivered items basadndor specific objective evidence (“VSOE") oé tfair value
of the undelivered elements, and recognize therdiffce between the total arrangement fee and tbaerdardeferred
for the undelivered items as revenue. Our defereednue consists primarily of the unamortized bedaof
enterprise product maintenance, consumer produténbupdates, and arrangements where VSOE doexistt
such as managed security services and subscripbafisrred revenue totaled approximately $3.2dillas of
April 2, 2010, of which $371 million was classified Long-term deferred revenue in the ConsolidBeddnce
Sheets. VSOE of each element is based on thefprieghich the undelivered element is sold sepayaitle
determine fair value of the undelivered elementeban historical evidence of our stand-alone s#Hldsese
elements to third parties or from the stated reheata for the undelivered elements. When VSOE dm¢®Xxist for
undelivered items, the entire arrangement feedsgeized ratably over the performance period. Chang the
elements in a software arrangement, the abilifgeatify VSOE for those elements, the fair valuetef respective
elements, and increasing flexibility in contractaelangements could materially impact the amowtgeized in th
current period and deferred over time.

For arrangements that include both software andsodivare elements that are within the scope ohthely
adopted accounting standards, further describemhbehder “Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidanceg
allocate revenue to the software deliverablesgreap and non-software deliverables based on takitive selling
prices. In such circumstances, the new accountiimgiples establish a hierarchy to determine thkngeprice to be
used for allocating revenue to deliverables a®fedt (i) VSOE, (ii) third-party evidence of sellipgice (“TPE”")
and (iii) best estimate of the selling price (“E3RVhen we are unable to establish selling pricgegu§ SOE or
TPE, we use ESP to allocate the arrangement fabs teliverables.

For our consumer products that include content igxlave recognize revenue and the associated fcost o
revenue ratably over the term of the subscriptiporusell-through to end-users, as the subscriptésiod
commences on the date of sale to the end-user.efée tvenue and cost of revenue amounts for unsoldiict
held by our distributors and resellers.

We expect our distributors and resellers to maingaiequate inventory of consumer packaged prodocteet
future customer demand, which is generally fousieweeks of customer demand based on recent btrgngs.
We ship product to our distributors and resell¢itheir request and based on valid purchase or@ensdistributors
and resellers base the quantity of orders on #stimates to meet future customer demand, whichereged the
expected level of a four or six week supply. Weepfimited rights of return if the inventory helg bur distributors
and resellers is below the expected level of a éwgix week supply. We estimate future returnseundese limited
rights of return in accordance with the authonttjuidance on revenue recognition. We typicalferliberal right:
of return if inventory held by our distributors arebellers exceeds the expected level. Because
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we cannot reasonably estimate the amount of exeesstory that will be returned, we primarily oftsteferred
revenue against trade accounts receivable forrttmuat of revenue in excess of the expected invgidaels.

Arrangements for managed security services and 8#@$1gs are generally offered to our customessr @
specified period of time, and we recognize theteelaevenue ratably over the maintenance, subgmripir service
period.

Reserves for product returnsWe reserve for estimated product returns as &etao revenue based primarily
on historical trends. We fully reserve for obsoleteducts in the distribution channels as an ofiseleferred
revenue. If we made different estimates, mateifédr@nces could result in the amount and timingaif net
revenues for any period presented. More or lesdyatanay be returned than what was estimated atftdaamount
of inventory in the channel could be different thamat was estimated. These factors and unanticipdtanges in
the economic and industry environment could makeadcesults differ from our return estimates.

Reserves for rebatesWe estimate and record reserves for channel agidiger rebates as an offset to revenue.
For consumer products that include content updegbstes are recorded as a ratable offset to revever the term
of the subscription. Our estimated reserves fonobhvolume incentive rebates are based on distrisuand
resellers’ actual performance against the termscanditions of volume incentive rebate programsiciviare
typically entered into quarterly. Our reservesdod-user rebates are estimated based on the tadw®aditions of
the promotional programs, actual sales during thenption, amount of actual redemptions receivestohical
redemption trends by product and by type of proomati program, and the value of the rebate. Weaisgider
current market conditions and economic trends wdstimating our reserves for rebates. If actualmgatmns differ
from our estimates, material differences may rdaauthe amount and timing of our net revenues for j@eriod
presented.

Valuation of goodwill, intangible assets and loniy#d assets

When we acquire businesses, we allocate the purgitase to tangible assets and liabilities and tifiable
intangible assets acquired. Any residual purchaise 5 recorded as goodwill. The allocation of fuechase price
requires management to make significant estimatdstermining the fair values of assets acquiretliabilities
assumed, especially with respect to intangibletas$bese estimates are based on information autdiom
management of the acquired companies and hist@igedrience. These estimates can include, butad@mited to,
the cash flows that an asset is expected to genier#te future, the appropriate weighagerage cost of capital, &
the cost savings expected to be derived from aioguén asset. These estimates are inherently aicanmd
unpredictable, and if different estimates were ubedourchase price for the acquisition could hbecated to the
acquired assets and liabilities differently frora @illocation that we have made. In addition, ufrated events at
circumstances may occur which may affect the acyuna validity of such estimates, and if such esextcur we
may be required to record a charge against the\asaribed to an acquired asset or an increabe ianhounts
recorded for assumed liabilities.

Goodwill. We review goodwill for impairment on an annuasisaon the first day of the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, and on an interim basis whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that thigiogrvalue ma
not be recoverable, at the reporting unit levelr @porting units are consistent with our operaiegments. Before
performing the goodwill impairment test, we firssass the value of long-lived assets in each riegarhit,
including tangible and intangible assets. We thenrfigpm a two-step impairment test on goodwill. e first step,
we compare the estimated fair value of equity eha&porting unit to its allocated carrying valbedgk value) of
equity. If the carrying value of the reporting uexceeds the fair value of the equity associated thiat unit, there
an indicator of impairment and we must performsbeond step of the impairment test. This secorgist®lves
determining the implied fair value of that repogtinnit's goodwill in a manner similar to the pursharice
allocation for an acquired business, using themémpunit's calculated fair value as an assumentipase price. If
the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodveidceeds its implied fair value, then we would recan
impairment loss equal to the excess.

The process of estimating the fair value and cagyialue of our reporting units’ equity requiregrsficant
judgment at many points during the analysis. Massets and liabilities, such as accounts receiatideproperty
and equipment, are not specifically allocated ténadividual reporting unit, and therefore, we applgggment to
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allocate the assets and liabilities, and this alion affects the carrying value of the respectemorting units.
Similarly, we use judgment to allocate goodwilthe reporting units based on relative fair validse use of
relative fair values has been necessary for cerggiarting units due to changes in our operatingcsire in prior
years. To determine a reporting r's fair value, we use the income approach underhwiii calculate the fair vali
of each reporting unit based on the estimated diged future cash flows of that unit. We evaluate t
reasonableness of this approach with the markebaph, which involves a review of the carrying wabf our
assets relative to our market capitalization anithéovaluation of publicly traded companies opeatn the same or
similar lines of business.

Applying the income approach requires that we nekember of important estimates and assumptions. We
estimate the future cash flows of each reportinghased on historical and forecasted revenue gedating costs.
This, in turn, involves further estimates, suclestimates of future revenue and expense growth eaite foreign
exchange rates. In addition, we apply a discousttmthe estimated future cash flows for the psepaf the
valuation. This discount rate is based on the egéthweighted-average cost of capital for eachrteygpounit and
may change from year to year. For example, in aluation process in the fourth quarter of fiscal@We used a
lower discount rate than in the prior year duetédisized risk associated with the global econoauinditions.
Changes in these key estimates and assumptioimsptiter assumptions used in this process, couténadly affect
our impairment analysis for a given year.

As of April 2, 2010, our goodwill balance was $4iBion. Based on the impairment analysis perforrad
January 2, 2010, we determined that the fair vafueach of our reporting units exceeded the cagryaiue of the
unit by more than 20% of the carrying value. Whiiscount rates are only one of several importatitnases used i
the analysis, we determined that an increase opengentage point in the discount rate used fon eagpective
reporting unit would not have resulted in an impegnt indicator for any unit at the time of this bys#s.

A number of factors, many of which we have no &bt control, could affect our financial conditiomperatin
results and business prospects and could causa aesults to differ from the estimates and assionptwe
employed. These factors include:

« a prolonged global economic cris

« a significant decrease in the demand for our prisgl

« the inability to develop new and enhanced prodantsservices in a timely mann
« a significant adverse change in legal factors dhénbusiness climat

< an adverse action or assessment by a regu

* successful efforts by our competitors to gain meskare in our market

 aloss of key personng

 our determination to dispose of one or more ofreporting units

* the testing for recoverability of a significant @esgroup within a reporting unit; a
« recognition of a goodwill impairment lo

Intangible Assets.We assess the impairment of identifiable intalegdssets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset group’s cayigmount may not be recoverable. In additionjrftangible
assets with indefinite lives, we review such asketémpairment on an annual basis consistent thightiming of the
annual evaluation for goodwill. An impairment lagsuld be recognized when the sum of the undiscaunte
estimated future cash flows expected to result fiteenuse of the asset group and its eventual disposs less than
its carrying amount. Such impairment loss wouldri#asured as the difference between the carryingianud the
asset group and its fair value. Our cash flow aggiams are based on historical and forecasted tejesperating
costs, and other relevant factors. If managerseggtimates of future operating results changi tbere are chang:
to other assumptions, the estimate of the fairevaluour identifiable intangible assets could cleasignificantly.
Such change could result in impairment chargeaturé periods, which could have a significant intgatour
operating results and financial condition.
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We record impairment charges on developed techgalogcquired product rights when we determine that
net realizable value of the assets may not be srable. To determine the net realizable value efi$sets, we use
the estimated future gross revenue from each pto@ur estimated future gross revenue of each mtddased ¢
company forecasts and is subject to change.

Long-Lived Assets (including Assets Held for SaMje assess long-lived assets to be held and osed f
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstimdicate that the carrying value of the longdi assets
may not be recoverable. Based on the existencaebomore indicators of impairment, we measureimmpairmen
of long-lived assets based on a projected undigedurash flow method using assumptions determiged b
management to be commensurate with the risk inh@reyur current business model. Our estimatesashdlows
require significant judgment based on our histd@eal anticipated results and are subject to maatpfs which
could change and cause a material impact to ouatipg results or financial condition. We recordpimrment
charges on long-lived assets held for sale whedetermine that the carrying value of the long-liesdets may not
be recoverable. In determining our fair value, Wweam and consider market value appraisal inforomafiom third-
parties.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The assessment of fair value for our financialrinsents is based on the authoritative guidanceinrvélue
measurements which establishes a fair value higyahat is based on three levels of inputs andiregan entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtfirzeuse of unobservable inputs when measuriny&ire.

We use inputs such as actual trade data, benchyigdds, broker/dealer quotes and other similar datech are
obtained from independent pricing vendors, quotadket prices or other sources to determine theatg fair
value of our assets and liabilities. We use suating data as the primary input, to which we hagemade any
material adjustments, to make our assessmentsedadrdnations as to the ultimate valuation of owmestment
portfolio, and we are ultimately responsible fog financial statements and underlying estimates.fain value and
inputs are reviewed for reasonableness, may bleciuvialidated by comparison to publicly availalitormation an
could be adjusted based on market indices or atf@mation that management deems material to #stimate of
fair value.

As of April 2, 2010, our financial instruments meged at fair value on a recurring basis included $llion of
assets. Our cash equivalents primarily consistariey market funds, bank securities, and governsexurities an
represent 99% of our total financial instrumentasuged at fair value on a recurring basis.

As of April 2, 2010, $2.1 billion of investments weeclassified as Level 1, most of which representsstment
in money market funds. These were classified aglLebecause their valuations were based on quwiegs for
identical securities in active markets. Determiriiaig value for Level 1 instruments generally doesrequire
significant management judgment.

As of April 2, 2010, $342 million of investments meeclassified as Level 2, of which $216 million and
$116 million (representing a combined 97% of Le¥&hancial instruments) represent investmentsainkb
securities and government securities, respectivélgse were classified as Level 2 because eithehélestimated
fair value is based on the fair value of similazis#ties or (2) their valuations were based onipganodels with all
significant inputs derived from or corroborateddibservable market prices for identical securitiemarkets with
insufficient volume or infrequent transactions ¢lestive markets). Level 2 inputs generally areetias non-
binding market consensus prices that are corrobdtay observable market data; quoted prices foitegim
instruments; and/or model-derived valuations inclibdll significant inputs are observable or camérved
principally from or corroborated with observablerket data for substantially the full term of theets or liabilities
or quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiéhile determining the fair value for Level 2 ingtrents does not
necessarily require significant management judgmegeénerally involves the following level of judgent and
subjectivity:

« Determining whether a market is considered acthreassessment of an active market for marketable
securities generally takes into consideration wiethtrading market exists for a given instrumeritading
volume for each instrument type. Our Level 2 firahmstruments were classified due to either loading
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activity in active markets or no active market &rig. For those securities where no active markisted,
amortized cost was used and approximates fair \@dgause of their short maturities. For certaiarfizial
instruments classified as Level 2 as of April 21@0we used identical securities for determinirig\alue.

» Determining which model-derived valuations to useétermining fair value#/hen observable market pric
for identical securities or similar securities am# available, we may price marketable securiti&sgi non-
binding market consensus prices that are corrobdnaith observable market data; or pricing modsish a:
discounted cash flow approaches, with all signiftdaputs derived from or corroborated with obsélga
market data. In addition, the credit ratings fauisrs of debt instruments in which we are investadd
change, which could lead to lower fair values. Ag\pril 2, 2010, the fair value of $6 million ofed-
income securities was determined using benchmaelagrmodels for identical or similar securitit

As of April 2, 2010, we have no financial instruntewith unobservable inputs classified in Levelngier the
hierarchy set forth under the authoritative guigaon fair value measurements. Level 3 instrumesteiglly woulc
include unobservable inputs to be used in the Walanethodology that are significant to the meament of fair
value of assets or liabilities. The determinatidfiair value for Level 3 instruments requires theshmanagement
judgment and subjectivit

Stock-based Compensation

We account for stockased compensation in accordance with the auttiveitguidance on stock compensati
Under the fair value recognition provisions of tgisdance, stock-based compensation is measutbd gtant date
based on the fair value of the award and is re@aghas expense over the requisite service peribidhvis generall
the vesting period of the respective award.

Determining the fair value of stock-based awardbafgrant date requires judgment. We use the Batioles
option-pricing model to determine the fair valuestifick options. The determination of the grant daitevalue of
options using an option-pricing model is affectgcolor stock price as well as assumptions regardingmber of
complex and subjective variables. These varialolelside our expected stock price volatility over then of the
options, actual and projected employee stock omia@rcise and cancellation behaviors, risk-freeredt rates, and
expected dividends.

We estimate the expected life of options grantesthan an analysis of our historical experiencengbloyee
exercise and post-vesting termination behavior idensd in relation to the contractual life of thgion. Expected
volatility is based on the average of historicahuitity for the period commensurate with the exjgelclife of the
option and the implied volatility of traded optiofidhe risk free interest rate is equal to the Or@asury constant
maturity rates for the period equal to the expetifedWe do not currently pay cash dividends on @mmon stock
and do not anticipate doing so in the foreseealiled. Accordingly, our expected dividend yieldéso.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance oakstompensation, we only record stock-based cosgtieam
expense for awards that are expected to vest.rAsuit, judgment is also required in estimatingah®unt of stock-
based awards that are expected to be forfeiteoAgh we estimate forfeitures based on historixpégence,
actual forfeitures may differ. If actual result$feli significantly from these estimates, stock-lthsempensation
expense and our results of operations could berrayempacted when we record a true-igp the difference in th
period that the awards vest.

Contingencies and Litigation

We evaluate contingent liabilities including thexagd or pending litigation in accordance with ththaritative
guidance on contingencies. We assess the likelibbady adverse judgments or outcomes from a pateriaim or
legal proceeding, as well as potential ranges albgible losses, when the outcomes of the claimsomepdings are
probable and reasonably estimable. A determinatidhe amount of accrued liabilities required,nifyafor these
contingencies is made after the analysis of eaphrage matter. Because of uncertainties relatéuege matters, we
base our estimates on the information availabtheatime of our assessment. As additional inforarebiecomes
available, we reassess the potential liabilityteslgo its pending claims and litigation and

34




Table of Contents

may revise our estimates. Any revisions in thenegties of potential liabilities could have a matearngact on our
operating results and financial position.

Income Taxes

We are required to compute our income taxes in ézddral, state, and international jurisdictiominich we
operate. This process requires that we estimateuttient tax exposure as well as assess tempaiféasedces
between the accounting and tax treatment of aasétsabilities, including items such as accruald allowances
not currently deductible for tax purposes. The inedax effects of the differences we identify deessified as
current or long-term deferred tax assets and itaslin our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Our juslgs)
assumptions, and estimates relative to the cuprenision for income tax take into account currextlaws, our
interpretation of current tax laws, and possibleeomes of current and future audits conducted bgign and
domestic tax authorities. Changes in tax laws olirtterpretation of tax laws and the resolutiorcefrent and futur
tax audits could significantly impact the amountsvided for income taxes in our Consolidated BagaSbeets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant toogiétive guidance based on a two-step approach to
recognize and measure uncertain tax positions takerpected to be taken in a tax return. The $itesp is to
determine if the weight of available evidence iadés that it is more likely than not that the tasifon will be
sustained on audit, including resolution of anptedl appeals or litigation processes. The secepdisto measure
the tax benefit as the largest amount that is rtiae 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate setéat. We adjust
reserves for our uncertain tax positions due toghmy facts and circumstances, such as the clagingax audit,
refinement of estimates, or realization of earniogdeductions that differ from our estimates. e ¢xtent that the
final outcome of these matters is different thamadamounts recorded, such differences will impactaxi provision
in our Consolidated Statements of Operations irptréd in which such determination is made.

We must also assess the likelihood that deferredgaets will be realized from future taxable inecand,
based on this assessment establish a valuatiomaaltz, if required. Our determination of our valoatallowance i
based upon a number of assumptions, judgmentesimates, including forecasted earnings, futuralike
income, and the relative proportions of revenueinndme before taxes in the various domestic atedniational
jurisdictions in which we operate. To the extenteggablish a valuation allowance or change theati@ln allowanc
in a period, we reflect the change with a corresljfamincrease or decrease to our tax provisiorumGonsolidated
Statements of Operations.

In July 2008, we reached an agreement with thecddtfeerning our eligibility to claim a lower tax eatn a
distribution made from a Veritas foreign subsidiprior to the July 2005 acquisition. The distrilaatiwvas intended
to be made pursuant to the American Jobs Creat@m®2004, and therefore eligible for a 5.25% etffee
U.S. federal rate of tax, in lieu of the 35% statytrate. The final impact of this agreement is yeitknown since
this relates to the taxability of earnings thatatieerwise the subject of the tax years 2000-2@dxisfer pricing
dispute which in turn is being addressed in the Wa& Court. To the extent that we owe taxes &salt of the
transfer pricing dispute, we anticipate that therémental tax due from this negotiated agreemehtiedcrease. We
currently estimate that the most probable outcaimm this negotiated agreement will be that we wille
$13 million or less, for which an accrual has alseheen made. We made a payment of $130 milliaghédRS for
this matter in May 2006. We applied $110 milliontleis payment as a deposit on the outstandingfeapsicing
matter for the tax years 2000-2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Total Net Revenue

Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009  Fiscal 2009 vs. 2008  Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
($ in millions)
Net revenue $5,988 $(165) (3% $6,15( $27¢€ 5% $5,87¢
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Net revenue decreased for fiscal 2010, as comparkstal 2009, primarily due to a $336 million dease in
License revenue partially offset by a $171 millinarease in Content, subscription, and maintenaexenue. The
net decrease was primarily due to decreased liaewsaue from our Storage and Server Managementesggs a
result of the overall market weakness in servarssahd tight IT spending due to the global econatoivdown and
the uncertainty surrounding the acquisition of $iorosystems, Inc. by Oracle Corporation. This éase was
partially offset by strength in our Consumer segnag the items discussed above under “Financislifeand
Trends.”

Net revenue increased for fiscal 2009, as compiaréidcal 2008, primarily due to a $302 million rease in
Content, subscription, and maintenance revenue. ibrease was primarily related to increased nexém our
Storage and Server Management and Services segamhtbe items discussed above under “FinanciallBeasnd
Trends.”

Content, subscription, and maintenance revenue

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200 Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % _ 2008
(% in millions)
Content, subscription, and maintenance rev $5,03¢ $171 4% $4,86: $30z 7% $4,561
Percentage of total net rever 84% 79% 78%

Content, subscription, and maintenance revenueased for fiscal 2010, as compared to fiscal 286% resu
of strength in our Consumer segment primarily dumt¢reases in revenue from acquired security prisdand the
gradual global ramp up of our eCommerce platforsnyall as revenue from our fiscal 2009 acquisitiohs
Messagelabs and PC Tools, and the items discubsee ander “Financial Results and Trends.”

Content, subscription, and maintenance revenueased for fiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal 2p08arily
due to an aggregate increase in content, subsuoriptid maintenance revenue from the Storage aneSer
Management and Services segments of $237 milliba.ificrease in these two segments’ revenue waalyarg
attributable to demand for our Storage and Senamnagement products and consulting services asib oés
increased demand for security and storage solutinis increased demand was driven by the protifamaof
structured and unstructured data and increasimg sdiservices in conjunction with our license saléhe increased
demand was also a result of our focus on offerimgcostomers a more comprehensive IT solution heaniore,
growth in our customer base through acquisitiortsraw license sales resulted in an increase toe@gnt
subscription, and maintenance revenue becausgearamber of our customers renew their annual iaémtce
contracts.

License revenue

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200 Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
License revenu $951  $(33€) (26)% $1,287 $(26) (2% $1,31:
Percentage of total net rever 16% 21% 22%

License revenue decreased for fiscal 2010, as c@dpa fiscal 2009, primarily due to the global momic
slowdown and customers emphasizing purchases diesmalumes of new licenses consistent with timeiar term
needs during the periods presented, as well abdédtems discussed above under “Financial ReanlisTrends.”

License revenue decreased slightly for fiscal 2@@%ompared to fiscal 2008, primarily due to aeese in
revenue related to our Security and Complianceymtsd offset by an increase in revenue relateditdstorage and
Server Management products. The decreases in §eand Compliance license revenue was primarilgsalt of
the challenging economic environment and a dedtirkemand from small and medium businesses. Thethiig
increases in Storage and Server Management licemeaue are a result of increased demand for s@algtions
driven by the proliferation of structured and uunstured data.
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Net revenue and operating income by segm

Consumer Segment

2009 vs.
Fiscal 2010vs. 200"  Fiscal 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 ~$ % _ 2008
($ in millions)

Consumer revent $1,871 $98 6% $1,77¢ $27 2% $1,74¢
Percentage of total net rever 31% 29% 30%
Consumer operating incon $ 86C $B88 9% $ 94 $9 1% $ 93¢
Percentage of Consumer revel 46% 53% 54%

Consumer revenue increased for fiscal 2010, as amedpo fiscal 2009, primarily due to increaseseivenue
from acquired security products, our core consupneducts in the electronic channel, and the iteissudsed aboy
under “Financial Results and Trends.”

Our electronic channel sales are derived from OEMBscriptions, upgrades, online sales, and resewal
Electronic channel revenue has increased yearymaarsince fiscal 2008. Electronic sales accoufaed
approximately 81%, 78%, and 73% of Consumer revémuiiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Operating income for the Consumer segment decrdaséidcal 2010, as compared to fiscal 2009, geaze
growth outpaced revenue growth. Total expensethéosegment increased primarily as a result ohitleer OEM
placement fees and costs associated with our dewelot and operation of our new proprietary eCommerc
platform, both discussed above under “FinanciallResnd Trends.”

Consumer revenue increased for fiscal 2009, as apgdpo fiscal 2008, primarily due to an increasenfour
core consumer security products in our electrohanaels, partially offset by a decrease in ouilretannels. In
addition, Consumer revenue increased from thecfader consumer services and acquired securityymtsd

Operating income for this segment increased feafi009, as compared to fiscal 2008, as the iserga
revenue more than offset the increase in expefisésl expenses for fiscal 2009 increased primadiya result of
the PC Tools acquisition.

Security and Compliance Segment

2009 vs.
Fiscal 2010vs. 200  Fiscal 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 ~$ % _ 2008
(% in millions)

Security and Compliance reven $1,411 $(39 (@)% $1,45( $8 1% $1,44:
Percentage of total net rever 24% 24% 25%
Security and Compliance operating inca $ 371 $6°) (16)% $ 44C $21 5% $ 41¢
Percentage of Security and Compliance reve 26% 30% 29%

Security and Compliance revenue decreased for {60, as compared to fiscal 2009, as a resulioftems
discussed above under “Financial Results and Trépdstially offset by increases in revenue from acephisecurit
products.

Operating income for the segment decreased faalf&@10, as compared to fiscal 2009, as revenuedsed
while expenses increased as a result of our fR@@9 acquisitions, partially offset by our cost anment
measures.

Security and Compliance revenue was relatively istest for fiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal 2008.

Operating income for the Security and Complianeggrent increased for fiscal 2009, as compared talfis
2008, as expenses decreased while revenue gromtined relatively consistent. Total expenses fardi 2009
benefited from our ongoing focus on cost efficiency
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Storage and Server Management Segment

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs.200 Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Storage and Server Management segr $2,287  $(20€) (8)% $2,49¢ $19C 8% $2,30:
Percentage of total net rever 38% 40% 39%
Storage and Server Management operating inc $1,097 $ 16 1% $1,081 $361 50% $ 72C
Percentage of Storage and Server Management re 48% 43% 31%

Storage and Server Management revenue decreaskstfdr2010, as compared to fiscal 2009, primatile to
the overall market weakness in server sales andumiomers buying smaller volumes of new licensesistent
with their near term needs, particularly with restge our storage management products, as wetleaigms
discussed above under “Financial Results and Trénds

Operating income for the Storage and Server Managesegment increased for fiscal 2010, as compared
fiscal 2009, as the decrease in expenses moreffsmt the decrease in revenue due to our ongaiogsfon cost
efficiency.

Storage and Server Management revenue increas@ddalr2009, as compared to fiscal 2008, primatig to
increased sales of products related to storage geament, data protection, disaster recovery anduyatedsupportin
high availability. The demand for these products waven by the increase in the proliferation ofistured and
unstructured data, as well as the increasing derfuaraptimization of storage systems.

Operating income for the Storage and Server Managesegment increased for fiscal 2009, as comgared
fiscal 2008, as the growth in revenue was coupligh svdecrease in expenses. Total expenses fait 2909
decreased partly as a result of fiscal 2008 ditestiof a business.

Services Segment

2009 vs.
Fiscal 2010vs. 200! Fiscal 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 _$ % 2008
($ in millions)

Services segmel $41€  $(17) (D% $43: $52 14% $381
Percentage of total net rever 7% 7% 6%
Services operating income (lo: $42 $ 9 27% $33 $56 24% $(293
Percentage of Services rever 10% 8% (6)%

Services revenue decreased for fiscal 2010, as a@d o fiscal 2009, primarily due to a reduction i
consulting revenue associated with new licensessaleaddition to the items discussed above unBirahcial
Results and Trends.”

Operating income for the Services segment increfisdiscal 2010, as compared to fiscal 2009, agua cos
control initiatives led to better margins.

Services revenue increased for fiscal 2009, as aoadpto fiscal 2008, primarily due to an increaseevenue
in our consulting services and Business Critica/i8es, as a result of increased demand for mamgeehensive
software implementation assistance and increaseeia for our Business Critical Services. Custorpershased
our service offerings in conjunction with the puask of our products and augmented the capabtifidweir own IT
staff with our onsite consultants.

The operating loss for the Services segment desiefas fiscal 2009, as compared to fiscal 2008egasnue
growth exceeded expense growth for the segmentfd@us on margin improvement contributed to theréase in
operating loss.
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Other segment

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200t Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Other segmer $ — $ (1) (100%$ 1 $ (1) B50%$ 2
Percentage of total net rever 0% 0% 0%
Other operating los $(1,437) $7,53¢ * $(8,972) $(7,519 * $(1,459
* * *

Percentage of Other reven

* Percentage not meaning

Revenue from our Other segment consists primafiuaset products and products nearing the enldedf life
cycle. The operating loss of our Other segmentuhes general and administrative expenses; amaotizat
acquired product rights, other intangible assetd,aher assets; impairment charges for goodwill @ssets held for
sale; charges such as stock-based compensatioestnacturing; and certain indirect costs thatrevecharged to
the other operating segments. The operating lossioOther segment for fiscal 2009 primarily cotesisof a non-
cash goodwill impairment charge of $7.4 billion.

Net revenue by geographic region

2009 vs.
Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009  Fiscal 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
($ in millions)

Americas (U.S., Canada and Latin Ameri $3,241 $ (75 (2% $3,31€ $22C 7% $3,09¢
Percentage of total net rever 54% 54% 53%
EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africe $1,83¢  $(120) (6)% $1,95¢ $ (5) 0% 9$1,96:
Percentage of total net rever 31% 32% 33%
Asia Pacific/Japa $ 90€ $ 30 3% $ 87¢ $61 7% $ 8it
Percentage of total net rever 15% 14% 14%
Total net revenu $5,98¢ $6,15( $5,87¢

Americas revenue decreased for fiscal 2010 as cadpa fiscal 2009 primarily due to decreased rexeen
related to our Storage and Server Management, Beaud Compliance and Services segments, paridibet by
increased revenue related to our Consumer segment.

EMEA revenue decreased for fiscal 2010 as comparéidcal 2009 primarily due to decreased reveraess
all of our segments, particularly Storage and SeM@nagement.

Asia Pacific Japan revenue increased for fiscaD2slcompared to fiscal 2009 primarily due to insesl
revenue related to our Consumer and Security amdpGance segments, partially offset by decreaseemae in ou
Storage and Server Management segment.

Americas revenue increased for fiscal 2009 as coadp@ fiscal 2008 primarily due to increased rexen
related to our Storage and Server Management awit&g segments. In addition, for fiscal 2009 aseared to
fiscal 2008, Americas revenue related to our Corgisagment increased driven by demand for our Gonasu
segment products suites.

EMEA revenue decreased slightly for fiscal 200@@spared to fiscal 2008 primarily due to decreassdnue
related to our Consumer and Security and Compliaegenents as a result of a strengthening U.S.rdoild a
decrease in endpoint security product sales tolsmdlmedium sized businesses. This decrease wiallpaffset
by an increase in revenue related to our Storagesenver Management and Services segments.

Asia Pacific Japan revenue increased for fiscabZcompared to fiscal 2008 primarily due to insea
revenue related to our Storage and Server Managesagment.

Our international sales are and will continue talsignificant portion of our net revenue. As aiteset
revenue will continue to be affected by foreignrency exchange rates as compared to the U.S. ddlkaare
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unable to predict the extent to which revenue tarki periods will be impacted by changes in foreigrrency
exchange rates. If international sales becomeatereortion of our total sales in the future, aemin foreign
currency exchange rates may have a potentiallytgr@apact on our revenue and operating results.

Cost of Revenue

Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009 Fiscal 2009 vs. 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
($ in millions)
Cost of revenu $1,108  $(122) (10)% $1,227 $7 1% $1,22(
Gross margir 82% 80% 79%

Cost of revenue consists primarily of the amori@abf acquired product rights, fee-based techrsogbport
costs, costs of billable services, payments to OEMEer revenue-sharing arrangements, manufactaridglirect
material costs, and royalties paid to third partieder technology licensing agreements.

Gross margin increased in fiscal 2010, as comp@arédcal 2009, primarily due to a decrease in drpation of
acquired product rights related to our acquisitibveritas.

Gross margin increased slightly in fiscal 2009c@sipared to fiscal 2008, primarily due to highemrmue and,
to a lesser extent, lower OEM royalty payments @isttibution costs, partially offset by a year-oyearincrease it
technical support costs.

Cost of content, subscription, and maintenance

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200!  Fiscal 2009 vs. 200¢  Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Cost of content, subscription, and maintenz $84¢ %9 1% $84C $14 2% $82¢€
As a percentage of related revel 17% 17% 18%

Cost of content, subscription, and maintenanceistsngrimarily of fee-based technical support coststs of
billable services, and payments to OEMs under regesharing agreements. Cost of content, subsanipdiod
maintenance as a percentage of related revenuéneinalatively consistent for fiscal 2010, as canagl to fiscal
2009, as increases in royalty and technical supposts were partially offset by decreases in sesvand distributic
costs for the respective periods.

Cost of content, subscription, and maintenancems@ntage of related revenue for fiscal 2009eadesed
slightly as compared to fiscal 2008. The decreaa pvimarily driven by higher revenue, lower OEMaties and
distribution costs, partially offset by a year-oyear increase in technical support costs.

Cost of license

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200! Fiscal
2010 _ $ % 2009 _$ % 2008
($ in millions)
Cost of licenst $22  $(13) (37% $35  $(10) (22)% $45
As a percentage of related revel 2% 3% 3%

Cost of license consists primarily of royaltiescotn third parties under technology licensing agreets and
manufacturing and direct material costs. Costaafrise remained relatively consistent as a percemtfte related
revenue for fiscal 2010, as compared to fiscal 2009

Cost of license remained consistent as a perceofape related revenue for fiscal 2009 as comptrdiscal
2008. Decreases in manufacturing and site liceasts evere partially offset by higher royalties.
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Amortization of acquired product right

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200¢  Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Amortization of acquired product rigr $234  $(11€) (34)% $352 $3 1% $34¢
Percentage of total net rever 4% 6% 6%

Acquired product rights are comprised of develogathnologies and patents from acquired compantes. T
decrease in amortization for fiscal 2010, as corbéw fiscal 2009, was primarily due to certainudeed product
rights from our acquisition of Veritas becominglyuhmortized during the first quarter of our fis@&l10. This
decrease was partially offset by additional amatitn from product rights acquired from SwapDriR€ Tools and
Messagel abs during fiscal 2009.

The increase in amortization for fiscal 2009, aspared to fiscal 2008, was primarily due to amaitom
associated with our SwapDrive, PC Tools and Medsamgeacquisitions during fiscal 2009, offset intgar the
APM business divestiture in fiscal 2008.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses overview

As discussed above under “Financial Results andd&;& our operating expenses for fiscal 2010 inelud
52 weeks of activity as compared to 53 weeks fardi 2009, which had a favorable impact on the
yeal-over-year comparison of our operating expenses operating expenses for fiscal 2010, as compardddal
2009, were not materially impacted by changestiaifm exchange rates.

Our operating expenses for fiscal 2009, as comparédcal 2008, increased as a result of an aatditiweek
during fiscal 2009, which was partially offset bgteonger U.S. dollar in fiscal 2009 compared sodi 2008.

Our operating expenses for Fiscal 2010, 2009 a08 2@re favorably impacted by the restructuringipla
discussed below.

Sales and marketing expense

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200t Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Sales and marketing exper $2,367  $(19) (D)% $2,38¢  $(29 )% $2,41¢
Percentage of total net rever 40% 39% 41%

Sales and marketing expense remained relativelylfiang fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009c&i 2010
sales and marketing expense reflects the impamtioprior year restructuring plan, partially offéstincreases in
headcount related expenses from our fiscal 200@isitigns and increases in Consumer OEM fees ast$co
associated with the development and operationsiiohew proprietary eCommerce platform. As a peroéniet
revenue, sales and marketing expense increasecktaslbof these factors coupled with the decr@asatal net
revenue.

Sales and marketing expense decreased during %868l as compared to fiscal 2008, as a resufivafrable
foreign exchange rates and our restructuring plaadially offset by an additional week of operasdor fiscal
2009. As a percent of net revenue, sales and niagkestpense decreased as a result of these factopted with th
increase in total net revenue.

Research and development expense

Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009 Fiscal 2009 vs. 2008 Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Research and development expe $857 $(13) ()% $87C $(25  (3)% $89E
Percentage of total net rever 14% 14% 15%
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As a percent of net revenue, research and develtpmpense has remained relatively consistensaafi201C
2009 and 2008.

General and administrative expense

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200¢  Fiscal 2009 vs. 200t Fiscal

2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
($ in millions)
General and administrative expel $35z %9 3% $34z  $(5) (D)% $34¢
Percentage of total net rever 6% 6% 6%

General and administrative expense has remainativedly consistent for the periods presented, tbsolut
dollars and as a percentage of net revenue.

Amortization of other purchased intangible assets

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200"  Fiscal 2009 vs. 200:i Fiscal

2010 ~$ % 2009 $ % 2008
($ in millions)
Amortization of other purchased intangible as $247  $14 6% $23: $8 4% $22t
Percentage of total net rever 4% 4% 4%

Other purchased intangible assets are comprisedstdmer relationships and tradenames. Amortizdtion
fiscal 2010, compared to fiscal 2009, increasea @sult of our fiscal 2009 acquisitions. As a petage of net
revenue, amortization of other purchased intangibkets remained relatively consistent for fis€dl®compared to
fiscal 2009. Amortization for fiscal 2009 compatediscal 2008 was relatively consistent.

Restructuring and transformation

2010 vs. 2009 vs.
Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal
2000 $ % 2009 @ $ % 2008
($ in millions)

Severanci $ 56 $ 64 $ 59

Facilities and othe 10 11 15

Transition, transformation and other cc 28 21 —

Restructuring and transformati $94 $2 (%P9 $22 30% $74
Percentage of total net rever 2% 2% 1%

The restructuring charges for fiscal 2010 primacityisisted of severance and charges related @0t
Restructuring Plan (“2010 Plan”) and 2008 RestmictuPlan (“2008 Plan”)and transition and transformation cc
related to the outsourcing of certain back offigadtions. The restructuring charges for fiscal 2866 fiscal 2008,
primarily consisted of severance charges relatedg®008 Plan and prior plans and acquisitiortediplans.

Total remaining severance charges are estimatethge from $50 million to $80 million, primarily féhe
2010 Plan. Total remaining facilities charges atineated to range from $35 million to $45 millicelated to the
2010 Plan. Total remaining costs for the transitiod transformation activities associated with outsing back
office functions are estimated to be approxima$dl§ million to $20 million. For further informatioon
restructuring, see Note 8 of the Notes to Constdti&inancial Statements.
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Impairment of goodwill and Loss and impairment ofsets held for sal

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200¢  Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Impairment of goodwil $—  $(7,419 (100)% $7,41¢ $7,41¢ 10C% $—
Percentage of total net rever 0% 121% 0%
Loss and impairment of assets held for ! $30 $ (16) (3H%$ 46 $ (49 (52)% $95
Percentage of total net rever 1% 1% 2%

In accordance with the authoritative guidance omdgdgll and other intangibles, we evaluate goodfuaitl
impairment at least annually and any time busicesslitions indicate a potential change in recoviéitpbDuring
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we performed annual impairment analysis and determined thatiggdbwas not
impaired. During the third quarter of fiscal 200& concluded that there were impairment indicatoduding the
challenging economic environment and a declineuinnearket capitalization, which required us to perf an
interim goodwill impairment analysis. The analys@s not completed during the third quarter of fi09 and an
estimated impairment charge of $7.0 billion warded. The analysis was subsequently finalizedsanadditional
impairment charge of $413 million was included ur cesults for the fourth quarter of fiscal 200% #&result, we
incurred a total impairment charge of $7.4 billfonfiscal 2009. We also performed our annual impant analysis
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 and deferd that no additional impairment charge was rexgs

For the purposes of this analysis, our estimatdaiofalue are based on a combination of the ireapproach,
and the market approach. The income approach dssrttee fair value of our reporting units basedhenfuture
discounted cash flows. We also consider the maetoach, which estimates the fair value of ouorépg units
based on comparable market prices.

During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, we recognizepaiinments of $20 million, $46 million, and $93 n,
respectively, on certain land and buildings clasgdifis held for sale. The impairments were recondl@dcordance
with the authoritative guidance that requires aylived asset classified as held for sale to beseal at the lower
of its carrying amount or fair value, less cossédl. Also, in fiscal 2010 and 2008, we sold astmt$42 million anc
$98 million, which resulted in losses of $10 mifliand $2 million, respectively. We sold properirefiscal 2009
for $40 million with an immaterial loss.

Non-operating income and expense

Fiscal 2010 vs. 200 Fiscal 2009 vs. 2008 Fiscal
2010 $ % 2009 $ % 2008
(% in millions)
Interest incom $ 6 $ 37 $ 77
Interest expens (129 (125) (119
Other income, ne 55 8 63
Total $ (68 $12 (15%$ (80) $(101) (481)% $ 21
Percentage of total net rever ()% (1)% 0%

The decrease in interest income during fiscal 2@%@Gompared to fiscal 2009, is due to a loweraneyield
on our invested cash and short-term investmennbata Interest expense for fiscal 2010, as comparfscal
2009, remained relatively consistent. Other inconat for fiscal 2010 includes net gains of $47 imillfrom the
liquidation of certain foreign legal entities. Tlhguidations resulted in the release of cumulatraslation
adjustments from accumulated other comprehensea@me related to these entities.
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Interest income decreased during fiscal 2009 a8 2oimarily due to lower average cash balancestandling
and lower average yields on our invested cash aod-germ investment balances. Interest expensgsfeal 2009,
as compared to fiscal 2010, remained relativelysistent. Other income, net for fiscal 2008 includeset gain fron
settlements of litigation of approximately $59 oifi.

Provision for income taxes

Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
(% in millions)
Provision for income taxe $11z $18z $218
Effective tax rate on earnini 13% ()% 34%

Our effective tax rate was approximately 13%, (28d 34% in fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, respegtivel

The tax expense in fiscal 2010 was significantjueed by the following benefits recognized in tieary
(1) $78.5 million tax benefit arising from théeritas v. Commissionffax Court decision (see further discussion
below), (2) $11 million tax benefit from the rediact of our valuation allowance for certain defertad assets,
(3) $17 million tax benefit from lapses of statubédimitation, (4) $9 million tax benefit from theonclusion of
U.S. and foreign audits, (5) $7 million tax bend#ditadjust taxes provided in prior periods, andd®p million tax
benefit from current year discrete events. The ghan the valuation allowance follows discussiorithwish
Revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, theuheof which accelerates the timing of the useefain Irish tax
loss carryforwards in the future. The tax expensistcal 2009 was materially impacted by the indof a
$56 million tax benefit associated with the $7.Midn impairment of goodwill in the third quartef fiscal 2009.

The effective tax rates for all periods presentitavise reflects the benefits of lower-taxed fgregarnings
and losses from our joint venture with Huawei (fjioventure”) fiscal 2010 and 2009 only), domestic manufactu
incentives, and research and development creditSafly offset by state income taxes.

As a result of the impairment of goodwill in fis@009, we have cumulative pre-tax book losses,essaored
by the current and prior two years. We considenediegative evidence of this cumulative tae-book loss positic
on our ability to continue to recognize deferreddasets that are dependent upon future taxaldenador
realization. Levels of future taxable income arbjsct to the various risks and uncertainties disedsn Part I,

Item 1A, Risk Factorsset forth in this annual report. We consideredftfiewing as positive evidence: the vast
majority of the goodwill impairment is not dedudgilfor tax purposes and thus will not result in li@sses; we have
a strong, consistent taxpaying history; we havestauttial U.S. federal income tax carryback poténdiad we have
substantial amounts of scheduled future reverdatsxable temporary differences from our defereedltabilities.
We have concluded that this positive evidence oigfvgethe negative evidence and, thus, that the@ef¢ax assets
as of April 2, 2010 of $519 million, after applizat of the valuation allowances, are realizabl@admore likely
than not” basis.

On May 27, 2009, the U.S. Court of Appeals forfeth Circuit overturned a 2005 U.S. Tax Courtmgliin
Xilinx v. Commissione, holding that stock-based compensation related R&3t be shared by the participants of a
R&D cost sharing arrangement. The Ninth Circuithtblat related parties to such an arrangement shiasé stock
option costs, notwithstanding the U.S. Tax Coitiding that unrelated parties in such an arranggmmeuld not
share such costs. Symantec has a similar R&D basing) arrangement in place. The Ninth Circuit'gemsal of the
U.S. Tax Court’s decision changed our estimateaifksoption related tax benefits previously recagdiunder the
authoritative guidance on income taxes. As a refutie Ninth Circuit’s ruling, we increased owbility for
unrecognized tax benefits, recording a tax expehspproximately $7 million and a reduction of adshal paid-in
capital of approximately $30 million in the firstarter of fiscal 2010. On January 13, 2010, theiN@ircuit Court
of Appeals withdrew its issued opinion. On March 2@10, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issueased
decision affirming the decision of the Tax CourtteNinth Circuit’s decision agreed with the Tax @ufinding
that related companies are not required to shate sosts. As a result of the Ninth Circuit’'s redseling, we
released the liability established in our first danof fiscal 2010, which resulted in a $7 millitax benefit and
increase of additional paid-in capital of approxieiya$30 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20. For fiscal
2010, there was no net income tax expense impact.
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On March 29, 2006, we received a Notice of Deficiefrom the IRS claiming that we owe $867 millioh o
additional taxes, excluding interest and penalfi@sthe 2000 and 2001 tax years based on an abdiritas. On
June 26, 2006, we filed a petition with the U.Sx Taurt protesting the IRS claim for such additiclaaes. During
July 2008, we completed the trial phase of the Taurt case, which dealt with the remaining issueeoed in the
assessment. At trial, the IRS changed its posititin respect to this remaining issue, which deadahe remainin
amount at issue from $832 million to $545 milli@xcluding interest. We filed our post-trial briéfisOctober 2008
and rebuttal briefs in November 2008 with the O.&x Court.

On December 10, 2009, the U.S. Tax Court issuenpitsion, finding that our transfer pricing methéatyy,
with appropriate adjustments, was the best metboddsessing the value of the transaction at isstveeen Veritas
and its offshore subsidiary. The Tax Court judgeviited guidance as to how adjustments would be raderrect
the application of the method used by Veritas. Weeasured and decreased our liability for unreaeghiax
benefits accordingly, resulting in a $78.5 millimx benefit in the third quarter of fiscal 2010n&licomputations as
directed by the Ruling are not complete and, adoghg, we may make further adjustments to our takility in the
future. The Tax Court ruling is subject to app&%é have $110 million on deposit with the IRS peritag to this
matter. We do not anticipate making any furtheefatitax payments for these years.

On December 2, 2009, we received a Revenue AgRep®rt from the IRS for the Veritas 2002 througB%0
tax years assessing additional taxes due. We agtie&30 million of the tax assessment, excludinigiest, but wil
contest the other $80 million of tax assessed #mkRpalties. The unagreed issues concern trapsiging matters
comparable to the one that was resolved in ourrfaevtheVeritas v. Commission@rax Court decision. On
January 15, 2010 we filed a protest with the IR8dnnection with the $80 million of tax assessed.

We continue to monitor the progress of ongoingdamtroversies and the impact, if any, of the exgetdlling
of the statute of limitations in various taxingiggictions.

Loss from joint venture

Fiscal 2010vs. 200! Fiscal 2009 vs. 200: Fiscal
2010 _$ % 2009 _$ % 2008
($ in millions)
Loss from joint ventur: $39  $(14) (26)% $53 $53 10(% $—
Percentage of total net rever 1% 1% 0%

On February 5, 2008, Symantec formed a joint vemivith a subsidiary of Huawei Technologies Co., itéuh
(“Huawei”). The joint venture is domiciled in Horgpng with principal operations in Chengdu, ChinheToint
venture develops, manufactures, markets and siugppecurity and storage appliances for global tetcanication:
carriers and enterprise customers.

As described in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolid&ieéncial Statements in this annual report, th jpenture
adopted new authoritative guidance on revenue geraents with multiple deliverables during its pdremded
December 31, 2009, which was applied to the begof its fiscal year. As a result of the joint were’'s adoption
of the guidance, our net income was $12 milliorhkigfor fiscal 2010 than it would have been unbergreexisting
accounting guidance. We account for our investrretite joint venture under the equity method ofcantding.
Under this method, we record our proportionateeslofithe joint venture’s net income or loss basethe quarterly
financial statements of the joint venture. We rdoaur proportionate share of net income or lossquagter in
arrears.

For fiscal 2010, we recorded a loss of approxinyeB89 million related to our share of the joint ume’s net
loss incurred for the period from January 1, 2@a0Bécember 31, 2009. For fiscal 2009, we recordedsof
approximately $53 million related to our sharets joint venture's net loss incurred for the peffiain February 5,
2008 (its date of inception) to December 31, 2008.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources of Cash

We have historically relied on cash flow from opinas, borrowings under a credit facility and issces of
convertible notes and equity securities for ouniliity needs.

In fiscal 2007, we entered into a five-year $litwllsenior unsecured revolving credit facility tleapires in
July 2011. In order to be able to draw on the ¢riedtility, we must maintain certain covenants|uiing a specifie
ratio of debt to earnings (before interest, tadlegpreciation, amortization and impairment) as wsltertain other
non-financial covenants. As of April 2, 2010, weravén compliance with all required covenants aratéhvas no
outstanding balance on the credit facility.

As of April 2, 2010, we had cash and cash equitaleh$3.0 billion and short-term investments o $iillion
resulting in a net liquidity position of approxinest $4.0 billion, which is defined as unused auallty of the credit
facility, cash and cash equivalents and short-fexastments.

We believe that our existing cash and investmelainoas, our borrowing capacity, our ability to issiew debt
instruments, and cash generated from operatiohdevsufficient to meet our working capital and itap
expenditures requirements for at least the nexhdgths.

Uses of Cash

Our principal cash requirements include workingitzdpcapital expenditures, payments of principad anteres
on our debt and payments of taxes. In additionregelarly evaluate our ability to repurchase stqay debts and
acquire other businesses.

Line of Credit. There were no borrowings under our credit facfiitr the fiscal year ended April 2, 2010. For
the fiscal year ended April 3, 2009, we repaidehtre $200 million principal amount, plus $3 nali of accrued
interest, that we borrowed during fiscal 2008 urttiercredit facility.

Acquisition-related. For fiscal 2010, we acquired two companies foaggregate payment of $31 million, net
of cash acquired. For fiscal 2009, we acquired gskabs, PC Tools, SwapDrive and several other aoiep for
an aggregate payment of $1.1 billion, net of casjused. For fiscal 2008, we acquired Altiris amatother
companies for an aggregate payment of $1.2 billiehof cash acquired. Also, in fiscal 2008, weeezd into a join
venture with Huawei Technologies Co., Limited andtcibuted $150 million in cash.

Convertible Senior Notesln June 2006, we issued $1.1 billion principabamt of 0.75% Convertible Senior
Notes due June 15, 2011, and $1.0 billion princgmabunt of 1.00% Convertible Senior Notes (colledi the
“Senior Notes”) due June 15, 2013. Concurrenthhulie issuance of the Senior Notes, we enterechivtid hedge
transactions for $592 million with affiliates ofrtain of the initial purchasers whereby we havedpton to
purchase up to 110 million shares of our commooks#d a price of $19.12 per share. For the fiseary ended
April 2, 2010, April 3, 2009 and March 28, 2008, have not repaid any of this debt other than treed interest
costs.

Stock RepurchasesWe repurchased 34 million, 42 million and 81 il shares for $553 million,
$700 million and $1.5 billion during fiscal 2010M@ and 2008, respectively. As of April 2, 2010, heel
$747 million remaining under the plan authorizedftdure repurchases.
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Cash Flows
The following table summarizes, for the periodsdatkd, selected items in our Consolidated Statésyan
Cash Flows:
Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
(In millions)

Net cash provided by (used |

Operating activitie! $1,69¢ $1.671 $1,81¢

Investing activities (65) (961)  (1,52¢)

Financing activitie: (447) (677)  (1,06¢)

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $illlibn for fiscal 2010, which resulted from netmme of
$714 million adjusted for non-cash items, includ@epreciation and amortization charges of $837ioniland stock-
based compensation expense of $155 million. Thesriats were partially offset by a decrease in inedaxes
payable of $105 million primarily related to thetoome of theVeritas v. Commissionffax Court decision (see
Note 13).

Net cash provided by operating activities was $illibn for fiscal 2009, which resulted from nonstacharges
related to depreciation and amortization expen&&823 million and the $7.4 billion goodwill impaient charge
offset by the net loss of $6.8 billion.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $ill®n for fiscal 2008, which resulted from netome of
$410 million adjusted for non-cash items, includilepreciation and amortization charges of $915anillstock-
based compensation expense of $164 million, inc@xes payable of $196 million and an increase farded
revenue of $127 million. These amounts were pértaifset by a decrease in non-cash deferred incaxes of
$216 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $65 onillior fiscal 2010 and was primarily due to $248iom paid
for capital expenditures, partially offset by nedgeeds from the sale of available-for-ssdeurities of $190 millior

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.0dwilfor fiscal 2009 and was primarily due to an raggte
payment of $1.1 billion in cash payments for acigjoiss, net of cash acquired, and $272 million faidcapital
expenditures, partially offset by net proceeds386million from the sale of short-term investmentsch were
used to partially fund acquisitions.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.5dwilfor fiscal 2008 and was primarily due to an raggte
payment of $1.3 billion in cash paid for acquisiscand the joint venture, net of cash acquired.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities of $441 rnoillifor fiscal 2010 was due to repurchases of comstoek of
$553 million, partially offset by net proceeds freales of common stock through employee stock péns
$124 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was $677ianilfor fiscal 2009 and was primarily due to refhases of
common stock of $700 million and the repayment2d@million on our revolving credit facility, paatly offset by
net proceeds from sales of common stock througHaree stock plans of $229 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was $1.Jdvilfor fiscal 2008 and was primarily due to refhases of
common stock of $1.5 billion, partially offset dyetnet proceeds from sales of common stock threuagbloyee
stock plans of $224 million and a borrowing on mwolving credit facility of $200 million.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our significant caotual obligations and commitments as of Apri2@10:

Payments Due by Perioc
Fiscal 201: Fiscal 201: Fiscal 2016
Total Fiscal 201: and 2013 and 2015 and Thereafter Other

(In millions)
Convertible Senior Note® $2,10C $ — $ 1,10C$ 1,00C $ — % —
Interest payments on Convertible Senior N1 42 18 22 2 —_ —
Purchase obligatior(?) 421 334 85 2 - —
Operating lease® 39z 90 133 87 82 —
Norton royalty agreeme|®@ 5 3 2 — - —
Uncertain tax position(® 42€ — — — — 42¢
Total contractual obligatior $3,38¢ $ 445 $ 134:$ 1091% 82 $42¢€

@

@

(©)

4)

®)

Senior Notes are due in fiscal 2012 and 2014. HeldEthe Senior Notes may convert their SenioreNqrior tc

maturity upon the occurrence of certain circumstant/pon conversion, we would pay the holder tish calue
of the applicable number of shares of our commoakstup to the principal amount of the note. Amauint
excess of the principal amount, if any, may be jraicash or in stock at our option. As of AprilZ010, the
conditions to conversion had not been met. Intgraginents were calculated based on terms of theetehotes

These amounts are associated with agreementsifciigaes of goods or services generally includingeagents
that are enforceable and legally binding and thatsy all significant terms, including fixed or mimum
guantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum, oratale price provisions; and the approximate timifithe
transaction. The table above also includes agresnempurchase goods or services that have catiorlla
provisions requiring little or no payment. The amtsuunder such contracts are included in the taibe
because management believes that cancellatioresé ttontracts is unlikely and the Company expeatsaike
future cash payments according to the contractdenmnin similar amounts for similar materie

We have entered into various non-cancellable ojpgyttase agreements that expire on various datesgh
2029. The amounts in the table above include $2iomielated to exited or excess facility costated to
restructuring activities

In June 2007, we amended an existing royalty ageeemith Peter Norton for the licensing of certpirblicity
rights. As a result, we recorded a long-term lijpileflecting the net present value of expectddrteiroyalty
payments due to Mr. Norto

As of April 2, 2010, we reflected $426 million iarlg term taxes payable related to uncertain taiipos. At
this time, we are unable to make a reasonablyhleliestimate of the timing of payments in indivitly@ars
beyond the next twelve months due to uncertaiimigise timing of the commencement and settlement of
potential tax audits and controversi

Indemnifications

As permitted under Delaware law, we have agreenveidseby we indemnify our officers and directors fo

certain events or occurrences while the officedicector is, or was, serving at our request in staghacity. The
maximum potential amount of future payments we @¢dd required to make under these indemnification
agreements is not limited; however, we have dirstend officers’ insurance coverage that reduegsaposure
and may enable us to recover a portion of any éuauimnounts paid. We believe the estimated fair vafubese
indemnification agreements in excess of applicatdarance coverage is minimal.

We provide limited product warranties and the migjasf our software license agreements contain isions

that indemnify licensees of our software from daesagnd costs resulting from claims alleging thatsoftware
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infringes the intellectual property rights of arthparty. Historically, payments made under thesipions have
been immaterial. We monitor the conditions thatsargject to indemnification to identify if a losaoccurred.

Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidance

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reasthoritative guidance on convertible debt instats that
requires the issuer of convertible debt instrumevitls cash settlement features to separately acdouthe liability
and equity components of the instrument. The del@dognized at the present value of its cash fiissounted
using the issuer’s nonconvertible debt borrowirtg &t the time of issuance. The equity componergdegnized as
the difference between the proceeds from the igsuahthe note and the fair value of the liabilithis guidance
also requires interest to be accreted as intexgetnse of the resultant debt discount over the @ggdife of the
debt. This guidance applies to the 0.75% Convertg#nior Notes due June 15, 2011 and the 1.00%etidrie
Senior Notes due June 15, 2013, collectively refkto as the Senior Notes. Prior to the adoptighisfguidance,
the liability of the Senior Notes was carried atptincipal value and only the contractual inteexgtense was
recognized in our Consolidated Statements of OgErmtBecause this guidance requires retrospeatioption, we
were required to adjust all periods for which tlemisr Notes were outstanding before the date optalo. See
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial $tat&s in this annual report for additional inforioaton the
adoption.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reathoritative guidance on business combinatioasréquires
an acquiring entity to measure and recognize itlebté assets acquired and liabilities assumebeatquisition
date fair value with limited exceptions. The changelude the treatment of acquisition relatedgeation costs, th
valuation of any noncontrolling interest at acctiosi date fair value, the recording of acquiredtoagent liabilities
at acquisition date fair value and the subsequenteasurement of such liabilities after the actjorsidate, the
recognition of capitalized in-process researchdaglopment, the accounting for acquisition-relatsdructuring
cost accruals subsequent to the acquisition datkthe recognition of changes in the acqué@rcome tax valuatic
allowance. Our acquisitions during fiscal 2010 hbgen accounted for using this new authoritatividance. See
Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial $t&t&s in this annual report for information on busines:
combinations. The adoption of this guidance didhete a material impact on our consolidated fir@rstatements,
however, it could have a material impact on fupeeods.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reathoritative guidance on the recognition and mesasent o
other-than-temporary impairments for debt securitiet replaced the pre-existing “intent and afilindicator. Thi
guidance specifies that if the fair value of a d&daturity is less than its amortized cost basis, an
impairment is triggered in circumstances in whithgn entity has an intent to sell the security,t(s more likely
than not that the entity will be required to skk security before recovery of its amortized cestid or (3) the enti
does not expect to recover the entire amortizetlrass of the security (that is, a credit lossesyi
Other-than-temporary impairments are separatedaimounts representing credit losses, which arggrézed in
earnings, and amounts related to all other facteing;h are recognized in other comprehensive incfloss). The
adoption of this guidance did not have a matenmgdact on our consolidated financial statements.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reashoritative guidance on noncontrolling (minayiiyterests
in consolidated financial statements, which inchidequiring noncontrolling interests be classifesda component
of consolidated stockholders’ equity and to idgnéidrnings attributable to noncontrolling interesgsorted as part
of consolidated earnings. The guidance also resjtlire gain or loss on the deconsolidated subsithampeasured
using the fair value of the noncontrolling equityéstment. The adoption of this guidance did neermmaterial
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reamhoritative guidance that specifies the way Imicl fair
value measurements should be made for non-finaasgats and liabilities that are not measured ecwtded at fair
value on a recurring basis, and specifies additidisalosures related to these fair value measunésn&he adoptic
of this guidance did not have a material impacbonconsolidated financial statements.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted rithoritative guidance on revenue recognitiomifaitiple-
element arrangements. The new standard changescghieements for establishing separate units of
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accounting in a multiple element arrangement agdires the allocation of arrangement consideratosach
deliverable to be based on the relative sellinggprihe new standard establishes a selling prexatohy that allow
for the use of an estimated selling price to deiieerthe allocation of arrangement consideratioa teliverable in a
multiple element arrangement where neither VSOETRE is available for that deliverable. Concurngtdl issuing
the new standard, the FASB also issued new autivgtguidance that excludes tangible productsdbatain
software and non-software elements that functigettoer to provide the tangible products’ essefitiattionality
from the scope of software revenue guidance. We kéacted to adopt the new accounting standardbthe
beginning of fiscal 2010 for applicable transacsianiginating from or materially modified after A2, 2009. Our
adoption did not have a material impact on ourrfoial statements. Our joint venture also adoptedhttounting
standards during its period ended December 31,,2@0i@h was applied to the beginning of its fisgaér. As a
result of the joint venture’s adoption of the aauiing standards, our Loss from joint venture desedaby

$12 million during our fiscal 2010. See Note 6 fiarther details regarding the impact of this guitkaon our joint
venture.

Recently Issued Authoritative Guidance

In June 2009, the FASB issued revised guidancelwthanges the model for determining whether arnyenti
should consolidate a variable interest entity (“YJIE he standard replaces the quantitative-bastd @and rewards
calculation for determining which enterprise hamatrolling financial interest in a VIE with an apach focused ¢
identifying which enterprise has the power to ditke activities of a VIE and the obligation to afislosses of the
entity or the right to receive the entity’s resitreturns. The statement is effective as of the fijuarter of our fiscal
2011, and early adoption is prohibited. We do et the adoption of this new authoritative guimato have a
material impact on our consolidated financial steats.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to various market risks relatethtiuations in interest rates, foreign currencyhexme rates,
and equity prices. We may use derivative finanicistruments to mitigate certain risks in accordanith our
investment and foreign exchange policies. We daisetderivatives or other financial instrumentstfading or
speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk relates primaoilour short-term investment portfolio and thégmtial losses
arising from changes in interest rates. Our investnobjective is to achieve the maximum return catibye with
capital preservation and our liquidity requiremeQsir strategy is to invest our cash in a manrergheserves
capital, maintains sufficient liquidity to meet azash requirements, maximizes yields consistertit approved
credit risk, and limits inappropriate concentrasiarf investment by sector, credit, or issuer. Wassify our cash
equivalents and short-term investments in accorlarnth the authoritative guidance on investments.ddhsider
investments in instruments purchased with an aaigimaturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivaléie classify
our short-term investments as available-for-sat@rSterm investments consist of marketable deletoprity
securities with original maturities in excess ofd#ys. Our cash equivalents and short-term invegtpatfolios
consist primarily of money market funds, commerpiaper, corporate debt securities, and U.S. govenhiand
government-sponsored debt securities. Our shart-tevestments do not include equity investmenisrivately
held companies. Our short-term investments arertegat fair value with unrealized gains and losees of tax,
included in Accumulated other comprehensive incevitkin Stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated &ate
Sheets. The amortization of premiums and discoumthe investments, realized gains and lossesdacithes in
value judged to be other-than-temporary on availdit-sale securities are included in Other incong,in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. We usepthafie identification method to determine costaiculating
realized gains and losses upon sale of short-tevestments.

50




Table of Contents

The following table presents the fair value anddtlptical changes in fair values on short-term stwents
sensitive to changes in interest rat@srillions):

Value of Securities

Value of Securities Given an Given an Interest
Interest Rate Increase ot Rate Decrease of )
X Basis Points (bps’ Fair Value Basis Points (bps
150 bps 100 bps 50 bps As of (25 bps) (75 bps)
April 2, 2010 $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 *
April 3, 2009 $68C $68C $68C $68C $681 $681

* Amount not meaningft

The modeling technique used above measures thgelwafair market value arising from selected ptigdn
changes in interest rates. Market changes refiattediate hypothetical parallel shifts in the yieldve of plus
150 bps, plus 100 bps, plus 50 bps, minus 25 ysanus 75 bps.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We conduct business in 44 currencies through ouldwide operations and, as such, we are expostddan
currency risk. Foreign currency risks are assodiatigh our cash and cash equivalents, investmestsjvables, ar
payables denominated in foreign currencies. Fluicng in exchange rates will result in foreign exiee gains and
losses on these foreign currency assets and fiabiind are included in Other income, net. Oueadbje in
managing foreign exchange activity is to preseteekdolder value by minimizing the risk of foreigarrency
exchange rate changes. Our strategy is to primatilige forward contracts to hedge foreign curgeegposures.
Under our program, gains and losses in our foreigrency exposures are offset by losses and gaiasioforward
contracts. Our forward contracts generally haven$eof one to six months. At the end of the repgrperiod, open
contracts are marked-to-market with unrealized gaimd losses included in Other income, net.

The following table presents a sensitivity analysisour foreign forward exchange contract portfoiging a
statistical model to estimate the potential gaifoss in fair value that could arise from hypotbatiappreciation or
depreciation of foreign currencyr millions):

Value of Contracts Value of Contracts
Given X% Given X%
Appreciation of Depreciation of
Foreign Foreign
Currency Notional Currency
Foreign Forward Exchange Contract: 10% 5% Amount (5% (10)%
Purchased, April 2, 201 $217 $20€  $19¢  $18¢ $177
Sold, April 2, 201( $23¢€ $24¢  $26C $274 $28¢
Purchased, April 3, 20C $264 $252  $24C $22¢ $21€
Sold, April 3, 200¢ $32C $337 $35E  $37:Z $391

Equity Price Risk

In June 2006, we issued $1.1 billion principal amtcaf 0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 and
$1.0 billion of 1.00% Convertible Senior Notes @4 3. Holders may convert their Senior Notes pieanaturity
upon the occurrence of certain circumstances. Wponersion, we would pay the holder the cash vafube
applicable number of shares of Symantec commork stgcto the principal amount of the note. Amountexcess
of the principal amount, if any, may be paid inlcas in stock at our option. Concurrent with theuisnce of the
Senior Notes, we entered into convertible note baédansactions and separately, warrant transactiomeduce the
potential dilution from the conversion of the Seritntes and to mitigate any negative effect suatvecsion may
have on the price of our common stock.

For business and strategic purposes, we also loitlyanterests in several privately held companieany of
which can be considered to be in the start-up veld@ment stages. These investments are inhenésitlyand we
could lose a substantial part or our entire invesinin these companies. These investments aredextat cost and
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classified as Other long-term assets in the Cotatld Balance Sheets. As of April 2, 2010, thegestments had
an aggregate carrying value of $22 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Annual Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and relatedaures included in Part 1V, Item 15 of this aahreport
are incorporated by reference into this Item 8.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2008
Apr. 2, Jan. 2, Oct. 2, Jul. 3, Apr. 3, Jan. 2, Oct. 3, Jul. 4,
2010 2010@ 2009@ 2009@ 2009 2009 2008 2008®)

As Adjusted As Adjusted As Adjusted
(In millions, except per share data)

Net revenug $1,531 $1,54¢ $1,47¢ $1,43: $1,46¢ $ 1,514 $1,51¢ $1,65(C
Gross profil 1,25¢ 1,29( 1,21¢ 1,12C 1,161 1,21f 1,20¢ 1,33¢
Impairment of goodwil©) — — — — 412 7,00¢ — —
Operating income (los: 247 277 257 152 (192) (6,773 217 27¢
Net income (loss 184 301 5 74 (264) (6,820) 12¢€ 172
Net income (loss) per sha— basic $ 0.2t $ 0.37 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $(0.32) $ (8.2 $ 0.1 $ 0.21
Net income (loss) per sha— diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.37 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $(0.32) $ (8.25) $ 0.1t $ 0.2C

@ The amounts previously reported on Form 10-Q fardi 2010 have been adjusted for the joint vergure’
adoption of new authoritative guidance on revermgegnition, which is discussed further in Note &.&result
of our joint venture’s adoption of the guidancer, nat income increased by $1 million, $5 milliordan
$1 million during our first, second and third queasgt of fiscal 2010, respectivel

®)  We have a 52/53 — week fiscal accounting year.fireequarter of fiscal 2009 was comprised of 14ke
while each of the other quarters presented wergueed of 13 week:

© During the third quarter of fiscal 2009, based aombination of factors, there were sufficient oators to
require us to perform an interim goodwill impairnhanalysis. Based on the analysis performed, weladad
that an impairment loss was probable and coulcehsanably estimated. Accordingly we recorded agcasi
goodwill impairment charge of approximately $7.0icn. Upon finalizing our analysis, we recorded an
additional non-cash goodwill impairment charge 413 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 200%eNote 5
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateémiernthis annual repot

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

The SEC defines the term “disclosure controls adgdures” to mean a company’s controls and other
procedures that are designed to ensure that infmmeequired to be disclosed in the reports théleis or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suized, and reported, within the time periods Spetin the
SEC's rules and forms. “Disclosure controls anccpdures” include, without limitation, controls apibcedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by an issuer in the reports that it fdlesubmits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicatéltbtssuer’'s management, including its principadagitive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemigrg similar functions, as appropriate to alloweigndecisions
regarding required disclosure. Our Chief Execu@®fBcer and our Chief Financial Officer have corttal, based ¢
an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclestantrols and procedures (as defined in Rulesl58a) and
15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) by our managemeiti, tive participation of our Chief Executive Officand our

52




Table of Contents

Chief Financial Officer, that our disclosure cotdrand procedures were effective as of the entdeoperiod covere
by this report.

(b) Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15¢()1d the Exchange Act) for Symantec. Our managamaith
the participation of our Chief Executive Officerdaour Chief Financial Officer, has conducted anaton of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting as of April 2, 2010, based on critezgablished in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh® €ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of thadweay
Commission.

Our management has concluded that, as of ApriD202our internal control over financial reportings
effective based on these criteria.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm has issued an attestation report regardg
assessment of the Company'’s internal control anantial reporting as of April 2, 2010, which i€inded in
Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial R®rting

There were no changes in our internal control dvancial reporting during the quarter ended Agrik010
that have materially affected, or are reasonakblyito materially affect, our internal control avf@ancial
reporting.

(d) Limitations on Effectiveness of Control

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha
disclosure controls and procedures or our intezaatrols will prevent all errors and all fraud. Antrol system, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can prooidg reasonable, not absolute, assurance thatdjeetives of
the control system are met. Further, the designauntrol system must reflect the fact that theeeresource
constraints, and the benefits of controls mustdsiclered relative to their costs. Because ofrtherient limitations
in all control systems, no evaluation of contrads @rovide absolute assurance that all controkssind instances
fraud, if any, within our Company have been detcte

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Symantec’s Proxy Statementgdd10
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscaryended
April 2, 2010.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Symantec’s Proxy Statementgdd10
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscaryended
April 2, 2010.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Symantec’s Proxy Statementgdd10
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscaryended
April 2, 2010.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Symantec’s Proxy Statementgdd10
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscaryended
April 2, 2010.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Symantec’s Proxy Statementgdd10
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscalryended
April 2, 2010.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

Upon written request, we will provide, without char a copy of this annual report, including thesmidated
financial statements and financial statement sdeedli requests should be sent to:

Symantec Corporation

Attn: Investor Relations

350 Ellis Street

Mountain View, California 94043
650-527-8000

a) The following documents are filed as part o$ tteport:

Page
_Number
1. Consolidated Financial Statemel
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 60
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 2, 2010Aprd 3, 2009 62
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yerdsd April 2, 2010, April 3, 2009, and
March 28, 200t 63
Consolidated Statements of Stockhold&guity for the years ended April 2, 2010, AprilZB09, ani
March 28, 200¢ 64
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaated April 2, 2010, April 3, 2009, and
March 28, 200¢ 65
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 66

2. Financial Statement Schedule: The followingriicial statement schedule of Symantec Corporation fo
the years ended April 2, 2010, April 3, 2009, anaréh 28, 2008 is filed as part of this
Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with ¢nsolidated financial statements of Symantec
Corporation
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accoul 10¢
Schedules other than those listed above have braited since they are either not required, not
applicable, or the information is otherwise incldc
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3. Exhibits: The following exhibits are filed asrpaf or furnished with this annual report as apaglile:

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit  Filing Date Herewith

3.01 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporationS-8 333-11987: 4.01 10/21/0<¢
of Symantec Corporatic

3.02 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and S-8 333-12640! 4.03 07/06/0%
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Symantec
Corporation

3.03 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Resi 10-Q 000-17781 3.01 08/05/0¢
Certificate of Incorporation of Symantec
Corporation

3.04 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior 8-K 000-17781 3.01 12/21/04
Participating Preferred Stock of Symantec

Corporation
3.05 Bylaws, as amended, of Symantec Corpore 8-K 00C-17781 3.01 05/04/1C
4.01 Form of Common Stock Certifica S-3ASR 33:-13923( 4.07 12/11/0¢

4.02 Indenture related to the 0.75% Convertible Senior 8-K  000-17781 4.01 06/16/0¢
Notes, due 2011, dated as of June 16, 2006, be
Symantec Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (including form of
0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 20
4.03 Indenture related to the 1.00% Convertible Senior 8-K  000-17781 4.02 06/16/0¢
Notes, due 2013, dated as of June 16, 2006, be
Symantec Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (including form of
1.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 20
4.04 Form of Master Terms and Conditions For 10-Q 000-17781 10.04 08/09/0¢
Convertible Bond Hedging Transactions between
Symantec Corporation and each of Bank of
America, N.A. and Citibank, N.A., respectively,
dated June 9, 2006, including Exhibit and Schedule
thereto
4.05 Form of Master Terms and Conditions For Warr 10-Q 000-17781 10.05 08/09/0¢
Issued by Symantec Corporation between Syme
Corporation and each of Bank of America, N.A.
Citibank, N.A., respectively, dated June 9, 2006,
including Exhibit and Schedule there
4.06 Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2006, by 8-K  000-17781 10.01 12/03/07
among Symantec Corporation, the lenders party
thereto (the “Lenders”), JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Age
Citicorp USA, Inc., as Syndication Agent, Bank of
America, N.A., Morgan Stanley Bank and UBS
Loan Finance LLC, as Co-Documentation Agents,
and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., as Joint Bookrunners and <
Lead Arrangers, and related agreem:
10.01" Form of Indemnification Agreement with Officers S-1 ~ 33-28655 10.17 06/21/8¢
and Directors, as amended (form for agreements
entered into prior to January 17, 20!
10.02* Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers, 8-K  000-17781 10.01 01/23/0¢
Directors and Key Employet
1C.03* Veritas Software Corporation 1993 Equity Incen 10-K 000-17781 10.03 06/09/0¢
Plan, including form of Stock Option Agreem:
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Exhibit
Number

10.04*

10.05"
10.06"
10.07"
10.08"
10.09"
10.10"

10.11"

10.12*
10.13"

10.14"

10.15"
10.16"

10.17"

10.18"
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Exhibit
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Symantec Corporation 1996 Equity Incentive Plan10-K 000-17781 10.05 06/09/0¢

as amended, including form of Stock Option

Agreement and form of Restricted Stock Purchase

Agreemen

Symantec Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan, restated and amended January 1, 2010, as

adopted December 15, 20

Brightmail Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, including 10-K  000-17781
form of Stock Option Agreement and form of

Notice of Assumptiol

Altiris, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Ple S-8 33:-14198¢
Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under the S-8 333-14198¢
Altiris, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Ple

Symantec Corporation 2000 Director Equity 10-K  000-17781
Incentive Plan, as amend

Symantec Corporation 2001 Non-Qualified Equity 10-K  000-17781
Incentive Plar

Amended and Restated Symantec Corporation 208K  000-17781
Executive Officer’ Stock Purchase Pl

Altiris, Inc. 2002 Stock Pla S-8  33:-14198¢
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Altiris, S-8 333-14198¢
Inc. 2002 Stock Pla

Vontu, Inc. 2002 Stock Option/Stock Issuance F S-8 333-14810:
as amende

Form of Vontu, Inc. Stock Option Agreeme S-8 33:14810°
Veritas Software Corporation 2003 Stock Incentivel0-K  000-17781
Plan, as amended and restated, including form of

Stock Option Agreement, form of Stock Option

Agreement for Executives and Senior VPs and {

of Notice of Stock Option Assumptic

Symantec Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan10-K 000-17781
as amended, including Stock Option Grant —

Terms and Conditions, form of RSU Award

Agreement, and form of RSU Award Agreement

Non-Employee Director

Altiris, Inc. 2005 Stock Pla S-8 33:-14198¢
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under S-8 333-14198¢
the Altiris, Inc. 2005 Stock Plan, as amen

Symantec Corporation 2008 Employee Stock 8-K  000-17781
Purchase Pla

Employment Agreement, dated December 15, 2 S-4/A 333-12272:
between Symantec Corporation and Greg Hui

Offer Letter, dated February 8, 2006, from 10-K 000-17781
Symantec Corporation to James A. B

Letter Agreement, dated April 6, 2009, between 8-K  000-17781
Symantec Corporation and John W. Thomg

Employment Agreement, dated September 23, 8-K 000-17781
between Symantec Corporation and Enrique S

FY10 Long Term Incentive Ple 10-Q 00¢-17781
Form of FY10 Executive Annual Incentive Plan —10-Q 000-17781
Chief Executive Office

Form of FY10 Executive Annual Incentive Plan —10-Q 000-17781
Executive Vice President and Group Presic
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Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit  Filing Date Herewith

10.28" Symantec Senior Executive Incentive Plan, as  10-Q 000-17781 10.03 11/07/0¢
amended and restat
10.29* Symantec Executive Retention Plan, as amel 10-Q 00C-17781 10.05 08/07/07
10.30* Amendment to the Symantec Executive Retentionl0-Q 000-17781 10.01 02/05/1C
Plan, effective January 1, 20
10.31* Second Amended and Restated Symantec Onlinel0-Q 000-17781 10.02 02/07/07
Store Agreement, by and among Symantec
Corporation, Symantec Limited, Digital River, Inc.
and Digital River Ireland Limited, entered into on
October 19, 200
10.32 Amendment, dated June 20, 2007, to the AmendelD-Q 000-17781 10.01 08/07/07
and Restated Agreement Respecting Certain Rights
of Publicity dated as of August 31, 1990, by and
between Peter Norton and Symantec Corpor:
10.33  Assignment of Copyright and Other Intellectual S-4  33-35385 10.37 06/13/9C
Property Rights, by and between Peter Norton and
Peter Norton Computing, Inc., dated August 31,

1990
10.34  Environmental Indemnity Agreement, dated S-1/A 33383777- 10.27 08/06/9¢
April 23, 1999, between Veritas and Fairchild Exhibit C

Semiconductor Corporation, included as Exhibit C
to that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale,
dated March 29, 1999, between Veritas and
Fairchild Semiconductor of Californ

21.01  Subsidiaries of Symantec Corporat

23.01  Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

24.01  Power of Attorney (see Signature page to this
annual report

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt t
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.011t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.0211 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait t
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

X X X X X XX

§ The exhibits and schedules to this agreement heee bmitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of
Regulation -K. We will furnish copies of any of the exhibits arahedules to the SEC upon requ

Indicates a management contract, compensatoryoplamrangemen

+ Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitied have been filed separately with the SEC putsoam
request for confidential treatment unRule 241-2 as promulgated under the Securities Exchange At934.

T Filed by Veritas Software Corporatic

T This exhibit is being furnished, rather than filadd shall not be deemed incorporated by referenoeany
filing, in accordance with Item 601 Regulation -K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Symantec Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Symantec Corporation and subsidigihies
“Company”) as of April 2, 2010 and April 3, 200%dathe related consolidated statements of opesation
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofythars in the three-year period ended April 2, 20d@onnection
with our audits of the consolidated financial sta¢ats we have also audited the related finan@#étstent schedule
listed in Item 15. These consolidated financialesteents and financial statement schedule are Hponsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exjgress an opinion on these consolidated finastig¢ments
and financial statement schedule based on oursaudit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Symantec Corporation and sdibsies as of April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, aheé results of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefytears in the three-year period ended April 202 conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principhdso in our opinion, the related financial staterngchedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consadididinancial statements taken as a whole, presains in all
material respects, the information set forth therei

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrstéements, effective April 4, 2009, Symantecpoation
changed its method of accounting for convertibletdestruments that may be settled in cash uponamsion
(including partial cash settlement) by retrospesdfivadopting new accounting requirements issuethéyinancial
Accounting Standards Board.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), Symantec Corporation’s internaitid over financial reporting as of April 2, 201fgsed on
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@t our report dated May 21, 2010 expressed analifigd
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s imaécontrol over financial reporting.

/s! KPMG LLP
Mountain View, California

May 21, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Symantec Corporation:

We have audited Symantec Corporation and subsdigthe “Company”) internal control over financial
reporting as of April 2, 2010, based on criteritabbshed innternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (“COSQO”). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal cohbver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in the accompanying ManagemeRg&port on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting appeatimgler Item 9A(b). Our responsibility is to expressopinion on
the Company’s internal control over financial repay based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control digancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design gedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such othkercedures as we considered necessary in thanstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable lfasisur opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (pjpeto the maintenance of records that, in redslendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonatdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fioal
reporting as of April 2, 2010, based on criteritabbshed innternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance sheé&gmfintec Corporation and subsidiaries as of Zp@010 and
April 3, 2009, and the related consolidated stategmef operations, stockholders’ equity, and césid for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Aprild4,02 and our report dated May 21, 2010 expressesh@nalified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
May 21, 2010
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

April 2, April 3,

2010 2009 *
(In millions, except
par value)
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,02¢ $ 1,79
Shor-term investment 15 19¢
Trade accounts receivable, | 85¢ 837
Inventories 25 27
Deferred income taxe 17¢€ 163
Other current asse 25( 27¢
Total current asse 4,351 3,291
Property and equipment, r 94¢ 97:<
Intangible assets, n 1,17¢ 1,63¢
Goodwill 4,60¢ 4,561
Investment in joint ventur 58 97
Other lon¢-term asset 90 71
Total asset $11,23. $10,63¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 214 $ 19C
Accrued compensation and bene 34¢ 374
Deferred revenu 2,83t 2,64¢
Income taxes payab 35 44
Other current liabilitie: 33¢ 261
Total current liabilities 3,771 3,51%
Convertible senior note 1,871 1,76¢
Long-term deferred revent 371 41¢
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie 19t 181
Long-term income taxes payak 42¢ 522
Other lon¢-term obligations 50 90
Total liabilities 6,68¢ 6,491
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder’ equity:
Common stock (par value: $0.01, 3,000 shares am#thrl,182 and 1,201 shares issued at April 20
and April 3, 2009; 798 and 817 shares outstandirgel 2, 2010 and April 3, 200¢ 8 8
Additional paic-in capital 8,99( 9,28¢
Accumulated other comprehensive inco 15¢ 18¢€
Accumulated defici (4,609 (5,336
Total stockholder equity 4,54¢ 4,147
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $11,23. $10,63¢

* As adjusted for the retrospective adoption of netharitative guidance on convertible debt instruteeSee
Note 1 for further discussio

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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Net revenue

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Content, subscription, and maintena

License

Total net revenu

Cost of revenue

Content, subscription, and maintena

License

Amortization of acquired product righ

Total cost of revenu

Gross profit

Operating expense
Sales and marketir

Research and developm

General and administrati\

Amortization of other purchased intangible as
Restructuring and transformati

Impairment of goodwil

Loss and impairment of assets held for
Total operating expens:

Operating (loss) incom

Interest incomi
Interest expens

Other income, ne

Income (loss) before income taxes and loss front jenture
Provision for income taxe

Loss from joint ventur

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per she— basic

Net income (loss) per sha— diluted
Weightec-average shares outstand— basic
Weightec-average shares outstand— diluted

Year Ended

April 2, April 3,
2010 2009 *

March 28,

2008 *

(In millions, except per share data

$5,03¢ $ 4,86 $ 4,561
951 1,287 1,31¢
5988  6,15( 5,871
84c¢ 84C 82€
22 35 45
234 352 34¢
1,108 1,227 1,22(
488  4,92:  4,65¢
2,367 2,38¢ 2,41¢
857 87¢ 89E
352 342 34¢
247 232 22F
94 96 74

—  7.41¢ —

30 46 95
3,947 11,39 4,05
93z (6,470 602

6 37 77
(129 (125 (119)
55 8 63
865 (6,550 622
112 182 212
39 53 —

$ 714 $(6,789 $  41C
$08¢ $ (817 $ 047
$087 $ (817 $ 0.4¢€
81¢ 831 86¢
81¢ 831 884

* As adjusted for the retrospective adoption of netharitative guidance on convertible debt instruteeSee
Note 1 for further discussio

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
AS OF APRIL 2, 2010, APRIL 3, 2009 AND MARCH 28, 208

Accumulated

Additional Other Accumulated Total
Common Stock  Paid-In  Comprehensive  Earnings  Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital * Income (Deficit)* Equity*
(In millions)
Balances, March 30, 20( 89¢ $ 9 $ 10,40¢ $ 18: $ 131C$ 11,91
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income, as adjuste — — — — 41C 41C
Translation adjustment, net of tax of ¢ — — — (23) — (23
Total comprehensive incon 387
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 20 — 228 — — 22¢
Repurchases of common stc (81) @ (1,34) — (153) (1,499
Restricted stock units released, net of te 1 — (4) — — (4)
Stoclk-based compensation, net of estimated forfeit — — 157 — — 157
Acquisition PPA adjustment for optio — — 32 — — 32
Income tax benefit from employee stock transact — — 17 — — 17
Cumulative effect of adjustments from the adoptdfIN 48, net of
taxes — — — — 5 5
Balances, March 28, 20( 83¢ 8 9,487 16C 1,574 11,22¢
Components of comprehensive lo
Net loss, as adjuste — — — — (6,78¢€) (6,78¢€)
Translation adjustment, net of tax of ($: — — — 21 — 21
Reclassification adjustment for net loss on legalitiation of foreign
entities included in net income, r — — — 5 — 5
Total comprehensive lo: (6,760)
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 18 — 23C — — 23C
Repurchases of common stc (42) — (57€) — (129) (700)
Restricted stock units released, net of te — (15) — — (15)
Stocl-based compensation, net of estimated forfeit — — 154 — — 154
Income tax benefit from employee stock transact — 9 — — 9
Balances, April 3, 200 817 8 9,28¢ 18€ (5,33¢) 4,147
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income — — — — 714 714
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-&e-securities, net o
tax — — — 3 — 3
Translation adjustment, net of tax of — — — 17 — 17
Reclassification adjustment for net gain on legalitiation of foreign
entities included in net income, r — — — 47) — (47)
Total comprehensive incon 687
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 12 — 124 — — 124
Repurchases of common stc (34) — (56€) — 13 (55%)
Restricted stock units released, net of te 3 — (20 — — (20)
Stocl-based compensation, net of estimated forfeit — — 154 — — 154
Income tax benefit from employee stock transact — — 9 — — 9
Balances, April 2, 201 79¢€ $ 8% 899 $ 15¢ $ (4,609 % 4,54¢

* As adjusted for the retrospective adoption of netharitative guidance on convertible debt instruteeSee

Note 1 for further discussio

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of discount on senior convertible rs
Stocl-based compensation expel
Loss and impairment of assets held for :
Deferred income taxe
Income tax benefit from the exercise of stock ami
Excess income tax benefit from the exercise ofistgtions
Loss from joint ventur
Net gain on settlements of litigatic
Impairment of goodwil
Net (gain) loss on legal liquidation of foreign ities
Other
Net change in assets and liabilities, excluding&# of acquisitions
Trade accounts receivable, |
Inventories
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensation and bene
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Other asset
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Cash payments for acquisitions, net of cash acdj
Investment in joint ventur
Purchase of equity investmel
Purchases cavailablefor-salesecurities
Proceeds from sales available-for-salesecurities

Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from sales of common stock under eyaplstock benefit plar
Excess income tax benefit from the exercise ofistgtions
Tax payments related to restricted stock issui
Repurchase of common sto
Repayment of shc-term borrowing
Repayment of other loi-term liability
Proceeds from sh«-term borrowing

Net cash used in financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash arsth eguivalent
Change in cash and cash equivalt
Beginning cash and cash equivale

Ending cash and cash equivale

Supplemental schedule of non-cash transactions:

Issuance of stock options and restricted stockésiness acquisitior
Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Income taxes paid (net of refunc

Interest expense pa

Year Ended

April 2,
2010

April 3,
2009*

March 28,
2008*

(In millions)

$ 714 $(6,789 $  41C

732 83€ 824
104 97 91
15¢ 157 164
30 46 95
@an (129 (216€)
10 14 28
(13) (18) (26)
3 53 =
— — (59
—  7.41¢ =
(47) 5 —
= 8 3
(14) (85) (7)
3 6 11

4 (49) 1
(34) (55) 97
114 141 127
(108) (29) 19€
1 66 81
40 (28) )
1,69: 1,671 1,81¢
(248) (272 (274
45 40 108
(31) (1,069 (1,169
— — (150)
(21) (2 —
2 (349 (1,239
192 68E 1,18¢
(65  (961) (1,526
124 22¢ 224
13 18 26
(20) (16) 4
(553  (700) (1,500
— (200 —
(5) ®) (12)
— — 20C
(441 (677 (1,066
49 (130 104
1,23¢ (97 (669
1,79¢ 1,89 2,55¢
$302 $ 1,79: $ 189
$ — 3 — 3 35
$ 247 $ 321 $ 181
$ 19 % 23 % 23

* As adjusted for the retrospective adoption of netharitative guidance on convertible debt instruteeSee

Note 1 for further discussio

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business

Symantec Corporation (“we,” “us,” “our,” and “theo@pany” refer to Symantec Corporation and all &f it
subsidiaries) is a provider of security, storage systems management solutions that help businassesonsumel
secure and manage their information. We providéoooers worldwide with software and services thatext,
manage and control information risks related tasgg data protection, storage, compliance, arsdesys
management. We help our customers manage cost)&datg@nd compliance by protecting their IT infrasture
as they seek to maximize value from their IT inmests.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeinB/mantec Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries are prepared in conformity with geliyeccepted accounting principles in the Unitedt&s. All
significant intercompany accounts and transacti@e been eliminated. Certain prior year amoungs haen
reclassified to conform to the current presentatith no impact on previously reported net income.

Fiscal Calendar

We have a 52/53-week fiscal year ending on theayradosest to March 31. Unless otherwise statddrarces
to years in this report relate to fiscal yearseathan calendar years.

Fiscal Yeai Ended Weeks
2010 April 2, 2010 52
2009 April 3, 2009 53
2008 March 28, 200¢ 52

Our 2011 fiscal year will consist of 52 weeks aritl @nd on April 1, 2011.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateséntonformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States requires managenoemiake estimates and assumptions that affectrtiwints
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaccompanying notes. Estimates are based uptwmitad
factors, current circumstances and the experiendgualgment of management. Management evaluates its
assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis ap@ngage outside subject matter experts to asstst
valuations. Actual results could differ from thasstimates. Significant items subject to such esémand
assumptions include those related to the allocatfasvenue between recognized and deferred amdaintsalue
of financial instruments, valuation of goodwilltamgible assets and long-lived assets, valuatiatozk-based
compensation, contingencies and litigation, andvéileation allowance for deferred income taxes.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiigenerally the local currency. Assets and liaed
denominated in foreign currencies are translaté@tjube exchange rate on the balance sheet daggsniRes and
expenses are translated using monthly average egehates prevailing during the year. The trarmtagidjustment
resulting from this process are included as a carapbof Accumulated other comprehensive incomevint of
liquidation of a foreign subsidiary, the accumutatenslation adjustment attributable to that fgnesubsidiary is
reclassified from Accumulated other comprehengie®ine and included in Other Income, net. As a tefiduch
liquidations in fiscal 2010 and 2009, we recordetttgain of $47 million and a net loss of $5 roillj respectively.
Foreign currency transaction gains and losseslsparacluded in Other income, net, in the ConsaédeStatements
of Operations. Foreign currency transaction losga® $3 million and $8 million for
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

fiscal 2010 and 2008, respectively. We had a foreigrrency transaction gain in fiscal 2009 of $lilliom.
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are establishethe cumulative translation adjustment attribugetblunremitted
foreign earnings that are not intended to be imitefy reinvested.

Revenue Recognition

We market and distribute our software products lastistand-alone products and as integrated predites.
We recognize revenue when 1) persuasive evidenae afrangement exists, 2) delivery has occurrestorices
have been rendered, 3) fees are fixed or deterthairzatal 4) collectability is probable. If we detenmithat any one
of the four criteria is not met, we will defer reggotion of revenue until all the criteria are met.

We derive revenue primarily from sales of contenhscriptions, and maintenance and licenses. e ipre
revenue net of sales taxes and any similar assetsme

Content, subscriptions, and maintenance revenlgdes arrangements for software maintenance aditzd
support for our products, content and subscripsenvices primarily related to our security produotsenue from
arrangements where vendor-specific objective evidgfiVSOE”) of the fair value of undelivered elent®does not
exist, arrangements for managed security servéres Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) offerings. These
arrangements are generally offered to our customessa specified period of time, and we recogttieerelated
revenue ratably over the maintenance, subscriptioservice period.

Content, subscriptions, and maintenance revenodratiides professional services revenue, whiclsists
primarily of the fees we earn related to consulting educational services. We generally recogrizenue from
professional services as the services are perfoomagdon written acceptance from customers, ifiapple,
assuming all other conditions for revenue recognitioted above have been met.

License revenue is derived primarily from the lisieig of our various products and technology. Weegally
recognize license revenue upon delivery of the pegdassuming all other conditions for revenue gedton noted
above have been met.

We enter into perpetual software license agreentbrasigh direct sales to customers and indireetssaith
distributors and resellers. The license agreengamsrally include product maintenance agreementsylfich the
related revenue is included with Content, subsiomgt and maintenance and is deferred and recadjrézably over
the period of the agreements.

For arrangements that include multiple elementduding perpetual software licenses, maintenarer®@jces,
and packaged products with content updates, marssegedity services, and subscriptions, we alloaatedefer
revenue for the undelivered items based on VSQOHEefair value of the undelivered elements, andgaize the
difference between the total arrangement fee amauiount deferred for the undelivered items asieeevenue.
VSOE of each element is based on historical evid@fiour stand-alone sales of these elementsrob plarties or
from the stated renewal rate for the undeliveredneints. When VSOE does not exist for undeliversast the
entire arrangement fee is recognized ratably dveperformance period. Our deferred revenue cangignarily of
the unamortized balance of enterprise product raaartce, consumer product content update subsospémd
arrangements where VSOE does not exist for an iveded element.

For arrangements that include both software andsodivare elements that are within the scope ohthely
adopted accounting standards, further describemhbaehder “Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidanceg
allocate revenue to the software deliverablesg®ap and non-software deliverables based on takitive selling
prices. In such circumstances, the new accountiimgiples establish a hierarchy to determine thkéngeprice used
for allocating revenue to the deliverables as fefio(i) VSOE, (ii) third-party evidence of sellipgice (“TPE”) and
(iii) best estimate of the selling price (“ESPQur appliance products, SaaS and certain otheicssrare consider:
to be non-software elements in our arrangements.
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When we are unable to establish selling price uSiIBQE or TPE, we use ESP in the allocation of ayeament
consideration. The objective of ESP is to deterntlieeprice at which we would transact a sale ifgtaduct or
service were sold on a stand-alone basis. Therdetation of ESP is made through consultation witt formal
approval by our management, taking into considenatie go-to-market strategy and pricing factoSPE&pplies to
a small portion of our arrangements with multipddivkerables.

Indirect channel sales

For our Consumer segment, we sell packaged softaradticts through a multi-tiered distribution chahiwe
also sell electronic download and packaged produatthe Internet. We separately sell annual cdnipdate
subscriptions directly to enalsers primarily via the Internet. For our consupraducts that include content upda
we recognize revenue ratably over the term of tlisaription upon sell-through to end-users, asthscription
period commences on the date of sale to the endfusemost other consumer products, we recogran&ayed
product revenue on distributor and reseller chaimventory that is not in excess of specified ineey levels in
these channels. We offer the right of return of maducts under various policies and programs withdistributors
resellers, and end-user customers. We estimatecandd reserves for product returns as an offsefwenue. We
fully reserve for obsolete products in the disttibn channel as an offset to deferred revenue rimalyocts with
content updates and to revenue for all other prizsduc

For our Security and Compliance and Storage angeB&tanagement segments, we generally recognize
revenue from the licensing of software productstlgh our indirect sales channel upon sell-througlvith
evidence of an end-user. For licensing of our saféento OEMSs, royalty revenue is recognized wherQgM
reports the sale of the software products to anused, generally on a quarterly basis. In additmhcense royaltie:
some OEMSs pay an annual flat fee and/or suppottltieg for the right to sell maintenance and techirsupport to
the end-user. We recognize revenue from OEM suppwéities and fees ratably over the term of thepsut
agreement.

We offer channel and end-user rebates for our mtsd@ur estimated reserves for channel volumeniing
rebates are based on distributors’ and reselletaaaperformance against the terms and conditérslume
incentive rebate programs, which are typically ssdento quarterly. Our reserves for end-user ebate estimated
based on the terms and conditions of the promdtjmmogram, actual sales during the promotion, amofiactual
redemptions received, historical redemption trémdproduct and by type of promotional program, dredvalue of
the rebate. We estimate and record reserves fonehand end-user rebates as an offset to revEoueonsumer
products that include content updates, rebateseaoeded as a ratable offset to revenue over the aéthe
subscription.

Financial Instruments

The following methods were used to estimate theviaiue of each class of financial instrumentsvbich it is
practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Ve consider all highly liquid investments with arginal maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equigahre recognized at fair value. As of April @1@, our cash
equivalents consisted of $2 billion in money maffieids, $216 million in bank securities and desind
$116 million in government securities. As of A@Bil2009, our cash equivalents consisted of $38Bomiln money
market funds, $474 million in bank securities aegakits, and $479 million in government securities.

Short-Term InvestmentsShort-term investments consist of marketable delguity securities that are
classified as available-for-sale and recognizddiatzalue. The determination of fair value is hat detailed in
Note 2. Our portfolios generally consist of (1) tisbcurities which include as-backed securities, corporate
securities and government securities, and (2) niaioke equity securities. As of April 2, 2010, ogsat-backed
securities have contractual maturity dates in exo#40 years and corporate securities have canabimaturity
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dates of less than two years. We regularly revianimvestment portfolio to identify and evaluateestments that
have indications of possible impairment. Factorssatered in determining whether a loss is othen-lemporary
include: the length of time and extent to which fie market value has been lower than the cosspte financial
condition and near-term prospects of the investexlit quality, likelihood of recovery, and our ktito hold the
investment for a period of time sufficient to allder any anticipated recovery in fair market value.

Unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, and dtf@@r-temporary impairments for all reasons othan ttredit
worthiness are included in Accumulated other colm@nsive income. The amortization of premiums asdalints
on the investments, realized gains and lossesgeclihes in value due to credit worthiness judgeld other-than-
temporary on available-for-sale debt securitiesrakided in Other income, net. We use the spedfatification
method to determine cost in calculating realizedgiand losses upon sale of short-term investments.

Equity Investments.During fiscal 2010, we made equity investmentprimately held companies whose
businesses are complementary to our business. Tihesstments are accounted for under the cost rdeiho
accounting, as we hold less than 20% of the vattogk outstanding and do not exert significantuefice over the
companies. The investments are included in Otheg-term assets. We assess the recoverability séthe
investments by reviewing various indicators of iinpeent and determine the fair value of these innesits by
performing a discounted cash flow analysis of eatad future cash flows if there are indicatorsngpairment. If a
decline in value is determined to be other-thanpiemary, impairment would be recognized and incluite@ther
income, net. As of April 2, 2010 and April 3, 20@% held equity investments in privately-held comipa of
$22 million and $3 million, respectively. Other-theemporary impairments related to these investsneere not
material for the periods presented.

Derivative Instruments.We transact business in various foreign currenaie have foreign currency risks
associated with monetary assets and liabilitie®aeémated in foreign currencies. We utilize foremnrency
forward contracts to reduce the risks associatéid etianges in foreign currency exchange ratesf@ward
contracts generally have terms of one to six moMbes do not use forward contracts for trading psg® The gains
and losses on the contracts are intended to dffeejains and losses on the underlying transactitwth the
changes in fair value of outstanding forward cactg@nd realized foreign exchange gains and l@ggeimcluded in
Other income, net. Contract fair values are deteechbased on quoted prices for similar assetsioilities in active
markets using inputs such as LIBOR, currency rdtesjard points, and commonly quoted credit riskad&or each
fiscal period presented in this report, outstandiagvative contracts and the related gains orel®sgere not
material.

Convertible Senior Notes, Note Hedges and Revoluiegit Facility. Our convertible senior notes are
recorded at cost based upon par value at issuass@ldiscount for the estimated value of the ggoitnponent of
the notes, which is amortized through maturity @diteonal noneash interest expense. See Note 7 for furtherlsi
Debt issuance costs were recorded in Other long-éssets and are being amortized to Interest egpesisg the
effective interest method over five years for th&5% Notes and seven years for the 1.00% Noterjunction
with the issuance of the notes, we entered inte hetlge transactions which provide us with theooptd purchase
additional common shares at a fixed price afteveogion. The cost incurred in connection with téerhedge
transactions, net of the related tax benefit, ardoroceeds from the sale of warrants, was incladesl net reductic
in Additional paid-in capital. Borrowings under ditt billion senior unsecured revolving credit fagibare
recognized at cost plus accrued interest based stpted interest rates.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedasi@amount and are not interest bearing. We maiatai
allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for ptatly uncollectible trade receivables. Additidiesthe allowance
for doubtful accounts are recorded as General drmirastrative expenses. We review our trade retd@gby agin
category to identify specific customers with knogigputes or collectability issues. In addition, mvaintain an
allowance for all other receivables not includedhia specific reserve by applying specific percgesaof projected
uncollectible receivables to the various aging gaties. In determining these percentages, we ad@alye historical
collection experience and current economic treiéis exercise judgment when
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determining the adequacy of these reserves as abead® historical bad debt trends, general econconditions in
the U.S. and internationally, and changes in custdinancial conditions. We also offset deferrederaue against
accounts receivable when channel inventories aggdpss of specified levels and for transactionsreviaollection
of a receivable is not considered probable. ThHeviohg table summarizes trade accounts receivaiglieof
allowances and reserves, for the periods presented:

As of
April 2, April 3,
2010 2009
(In millions)
Trade accounts receivable, ni
Receivable: $ 87 $ 85¢
Less: allowance fcdoubtful account 8 9
Less: reserve for product retut 9 12
Trade accounts receivable, n $ 85¢ $ 837
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or rearkost is principally determined using the firstfirst-out
method. Inventory predominantly consists of deféirests of revenue and finished goods. Deferrets adgevenur
were $23 million as of April 2, 2010 and $24 miliias of April 3, 2009, of which $17 million in bopleriods was
related to consumer products that include contpdates and will be recognized ratably over the tefthe
subscription.

Property and Equipment

Property, equipment, and leasehold improvementstated at cost, net of accumulated depreciatidn an
amortization. We also capitalize certain costs iiredirelated to the development of internal usensoe. We
capitalize costs incurred during the applicationedepment stage related to the development ofriatarse
software. We expense costs incurred related tpldring and post-implementation phases of devetopras
incurred. Depreciation and amortization is provideda straight-line basis over the estimated udirfes of the
related assets. Buildings are depreciated oveo 30 tyears, and leasehold improvements are defgdaaer the
lesser of the life of the improvement or the initlease term. Computer hardware and software isedéted over
three to five years and office furniture and equepiis depreciated over a three to five-year perte following
table summarizes property and equipment by categdor the periods presented:

As of
April 2, April 3,
2010 2009
(In millions)
Property and equipment, ne

Computer hardware and softw: $1,237 $ 98¢
Office furniture and equipmel 18t 19¢
Buildings 44C 482
Leasehold improvemen 24k 22¢
2,107 1,89¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (1,299 (1,077%)
80¢ 82z
Construction in progres 70 73
Land 71 78
Property and equipment, n $ 94¢ § 9v¢
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Depreciation expense was $247 million, $250 miléowd $255 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Business Combinations

We use the acquisition method of accounting unigeruthoritative guidance on business combinatigash
acquired company’s operating results are includealir consolidated financial statements startingherndate of
acquisition. The purchase price is equivalent &f#tir value of consideration transferred. Tangdid identifiable
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assuasedf the date of acquisition are recorded at tl@iaition date fair
value. Goodwill is recognized for the excess ofchase price over the net fair value of assets eadjaind liabilitie:
assumed.

Amounts allocated to assets and liabilities arethagpon fair values. Such valuations require mamage to
make significant estimates and assumptions, edjyewith respect to the identifiable intangible atss Manageme
makes estimates of fair value based upon assunsptielieved to be reasonable and that of a markstipant.
These estimates are based on historical experarteformation obtained from the management ofbttepuired
companies and are inherently uncertain. The seggiidentifiable intangible assets generally indwtquired
product rights, developed technology, customes kstd tradenames. We did not acquire in-procesanms and
development (“IPR&D”) in the fiscal years 2010, 208nd 2008. We estimate the fair value of deferesdnue
related to product support assumed in connectidim adquisitions. The estimated fair value of defdnrevenue is
determined by estimating the costs related tolfinli the obligations plus a normal profit margirhe estimated
costs to fulfill the support contracts are basedhenhistorical direct costs related to providihg support.

For any given acquisition, we may identify certpie-acquisition contingencies. We estimate thevalne of
such contingencies, which are included under th@iation method as part of the assets acquirdidloitities
assumed, as appropriate. Differences from thegeast are recorded in the period in which theyideatified.

Gooduwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill. Our methodology for allocating the purchase praating to acquisitions is determined through
established valuation techniques. Goodwill is mezas the excess of the cost of the acquisitien the sum of
the amounts assigned to tangible and identifiaiilenigible assets acquired less liabilities assuMédreview
goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during tourth quarter of the fiscal year and whenevents or
changes in circumstances indicate the carryingevafigoodwill may be impaired. In testing for aqutial
impairment of goodwill, we determine the carryirgjue (book value) of the assets and liabilitiesefach reporting
unit, which requires the allocation of goodwillaach reporting unit. We then estimate the fair @alfieach
reporting unit, which are the same as our opera@ggnents. The first step in evaluating goodwillifapairment is
to determine if the estimated fair value of eqistgreater than the carrying value of equity ofreaporting unit. If
step one indicates that impairment potentially tsxithe second step is performed to measure tharznd
impairment, if any. Goodwill impairment exists whitre estimated fair value of goodwill is less tlitsrcarrying
value.

To determine the reporting units’ fair values ie tturrent year analysis, we use the income appnohidh is
based on the estimated discounted future cash fdéweat reporting unit. The estimated fair valdexach reporting
unit under the income approach is corroborated thithmarket approach which measures the value a$set
through an analysis of recent sales or offeringsoofiparable property. We also consider our marigitalization
on the date of the analysis. The methodology agfiehe current year analysis was consistent thi¢h
methodology applied in the prior year analysis,wa$ based on updated assumptions, as appropriate.

Our cash flow assumptions are based on historiwhf@arecasted revenue, operating costs and othexarg
factors. To determine the reporting units’ carryuadues, we allocated assets and liabilities baseeither specific
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identification or by using judgment for the remaigiassets and liabilities that are not specifia teporting unit.
Goodwill was allocated to the reporting units based combination of specific identification anthteve fair
values, which is consistent with the methodologlyzed in the prior year impairment analysis. Trse wf relative
fair values was necessary for certain reportingsuthiie to impairment charges and changes in ouatpe structur
in prior years.

Prior to performing our second step in the goodimifbairment analysis, we perform an assessmenof |
lived assets, including intangible assets, for impant.

Intangible Assets.In connection with our acquisitions, we generalgognize assets for customer
relationships, developed technology, acquired prbdghts (purchased product rights, technologiasabases,
patents, and contracts) and tradenames. Intaragisiets are recognized at cost less accumulatedization.
Amortization of intangible assets is provided cstraight-line basis over the estimated useful livethe respective
assets, generally from one to eleven years. Anatditiz for developed technology and acquired prodgbts is
recognized in Cost of revenue. Amortization fortouger lists and tradenames is recognized in Operatkpenses.

On an interim basis, we determine if triggeringrégdor impairment of intangible assets are presend if so
assess recoverability of those intangible assetslefermine the recoverability of our definiteed intangible assel
when indicators of impairment are identified, weng@re the carrying amounts against the estimatedefgash
flows related to the underlying group of asseteskhestimates are based on company forecastseasdtgect to
change. In addition, for intangible assets witteiitite lives, we review such assets for impairm@amén annual
basis consistent with the timing of the annual eatibn for goodwill.

We record impairment charges on developed techgalogcquired product rights when we determine that
net realizable value of the assets may not be srable. To determine the net realizable value efi$sets, we use
the estimated future gross revenue from each pto@ur estimated future gross revenue of each mtddased @
forecasts and is subject to change.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed usirggabset and liability method, under which defetesxdasset
and liabilities are recognized for the expectedreitax consequences of temporary differences leetithes financie
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabiliird,for operating loss and tax credit carryforwanosach
jurisdiction in which we operate. Deferred tax assad liabilities are measured using the curregtigcted tax rate
that apply to taxable income in effect for the wearwhich those tax assets are expected to bieedair settled. W
record a valuation allowance to reduce deferreditsmets to the amount that is believed more litkedy not to be
realized.

We are required to compute our income taxes in ézddral, state, and international jurisdictiominich we
operate. This process requires that we estimateuttient tax exposure as well as assess tempaiféasedces
between the accounting and tax treatment of aaselt§iabilities, including items such as accruald allowances
not currently deductible for tax purposes. The inedax effects of the differences we identify dessified as
current or long-term deferred tax assets and itaslin our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Our juslgs)
assumptions, and estimates relative to the cuprenision for income tax take into account currextlaws, our
interpretation of current tax laws, and possibleeomes of current and future audits conducted bgign and
domestic tax authorities. Changes in tax laws olirtterpretation of tax laws and the resolutiorcefrent and futur
tax audits could significantly impact the amountsvided for income taxes in our Consolidated BagaBbeets and
Consolidated Statements of Operations. We mustaaisess the likelihood that deferred tax assetbwilealized
from future taxable income and, based on this assest, establish a valuation allowance, if requif@ar
determination of our valuation allowance is baspdrua number of assumptions, judgments, and estinat
including forecasted earnings, future taxable inepand the relative proportions of revenue andrirebefore taxe
in the various domestic and international jurisdits in which we operate. To the extent we esthlais
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valuation allowance or change the valuation alloveaim a period, we reflect the change with a cpoading
increase or decrease to our tax provision in oursGlidated Statements of Operations.

We adopted authoritative guidance on income tafésctive March 31, 2007, that clarifies the acammfor
income taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognittmeshold a tax position is required to meet bebmiag
recognized in the financial statements. It alsosjoles guidance on derecognition, measurement,ifitadmon,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim msjalisclosure and transition.

This guidance prescribes a two-step process tordite the amount of tax benefit to be recognizdt first
step is to evaluate the tax position for recognitiy determining if the weight of available evidenadicates that it
is more likely than not that the position will bessained on audit, including resolution of relaéggeals or litigatio
processes, if any. The second step requires itnate and measure the tax benefit as the lasgestint that is
more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimatlement. It is inherently difficult and subjectito estimate suc
amounts, as this requires us to determine the pilitiyaof various possible outcomes. We reevalubtse uncertain
tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluaigdmased on factors including, but not limiteddieanges in facts
circumstances, changes in tax law, effectivelyletissues under audit, and new audit activityhSaichange in
recognition or measurement would result in the gad@mn of a tax benefit or an additional chargé¢hte tax
provision in the period.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured at the gatanbdsed on the fair value of the award and sgrEzed
as expense over the requisite service period, whigkenerally the vesting period of the respecaward. No
compensation cost is ultimately recognized for awdor which employees do not render the requisteice and
are forfeited.

Fair Value of Stock-Based Awardd/Ve use the Black-Scholes option-pricing modeldétermine the fair value
of stock options. The determination of the grariedair value of options using an option-pricingaebis affected
by our stock price as well as assumptions regardingmber of complex and subjective variables. & vasiables
include our expected stock price volatility ovee term of the awards, actual and projected empleiask option
exercise and cancellation behaviors, risk-freer@sterates and expected dividends. We estimatexihected life of
options granted based on an analysis of our histbexperience of employee exercise and post-\gttimination
behavior considered in relation to the contraclilof the option. Expected volatility is based the average of
historical volatility for the period commensuratéwthe expected life of the option and the imphedatility of
traded options. The risk free interest rate is etguthe U.S. Treasury constant maturity rategtierperiod equal to
the expected life. We do not currently pay caslidéiwds on our common stock and do not anticipategdso in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, our expected divid yield is zero. The fair value of each RSU isado the
market value of Symantec’s common stock on the ofaggant. The fair value of each ESPP purchadd iggequal
to the 15% discount on shares purchased.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

A significant portion of our revenue and net incoftoss) is derived from international sales ancepehdent
agents and distributors. Fluctuations of the Udlad against foreign currencies, changes in loegulatory or
economic conditions, piracy, or nonperformancenuependent agents or distributors could adverstdgta
operating results.

Financial instruments that potentially subjectausd@ncentrations of credit risk consist principalfycash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments, tradeusnts receivable, and forward foreign exchangeracotg. Our
investment portfolio is diversified and consistsrofestment grade securities. Our investment pdimits the
amount of credit risk exposure to any one issudriamny one country. We are exposed to credisriskhe event
of default by the issuers to the extent of the amhoecorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsciiduit risk in
our
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trade accounts receivable is substantially mitigydte our credit evaluation process, reasonablytstudlection
terms, and the geographical dispersion of salesacions. We maintain reserves for potential ttedses and suu
losses have been within management’s expectatB@esNote 11 for details of significant customers.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations agiieduand include electronic and print advertistngge shows
collateral production, and all forms of direct metikg. Starting in January 2007, certain advergisiontracts
contain placement fee arrangements with escalataarses which are expensed on an estimated avevabasis
over the term of the arrangement. The different¢eden the actual placement fee paid and the esttraterage
placement fee cost was $47 million and $82 milfienfiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, respectively. Adigng costs
included in Sales and marketing expense for fiR6aD, 2009, and 2008 were $615 million, $572 milliand
$555 million, respectively.

Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidance

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reathoritative guidance on convertible debt instents that
requires the issuer of convertible debt instrumaeuitls cash settlement features to separately a¢douthe liability
and equity components of the instrument. The del#dognized at the present value of its cash fiimsounted
using the issuer’s nonconvertible debt borrowirtg &t the time of issuance. The equity componergdegnized as
the difference between the proceeds from the issmuiahthe note and the fair value of the liabilithis guidance
also requires interest to be accreted as intexgetinse of the resultant debt discount over the @ggdife of the
debt. This guidance applies to the 0.75% Convert8anior Notes (“0.75% Notes”) due June 15, 20Hithe
1.00% Convertible Senior Notes (“1.00% Notes”) duae 15, 2013, collectively referred to as the &eNbtes.
Prior to the adoption of this guidance, the liahitf the Senior Notes was carried at its princiggle and only the
contractual interest expense was recognized ifConsolidated Statements of Operations. Becausegtidsince
requires retrospective adoption, we were requineatijust all periods for which the Senior Noteseveutstanding
before the date of adoption.

Upon adoption of this guidance and effective athefissuance date of the Senior Notes in June 2086,
recorded $586 million of the principal amount taieg, representing the debt discount for the défere between
our estimated nonconvertible debt borrowing raté.@8% at the time of issuance and the couponofdtee Senior
Notes. This debt discount, recorded in additiorzad-in capital, is amortized as additional non-caghriest expense
over the contractual terms of the Senior Notesguie effective interest method. In addition, weadted
$9 million of the issuance costs to the equity comgnt of the Senior Notes and the remaining $24amibf the
issuance costs to the debt component of the Shloi@s. The issuance costs were allocated pro sstadoon the
relative carrying amounts of the debt and equityponents. The debt issuance costs associatedheittietot
component are amortized as interest expense oveesipective contractual terms of the Senior Nasésy the
effective interest method.
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The retrospective adoption of this guidance redutiehe following adjustments to our ConsolidaBadance

Sheet as of April 3, 2009:

Current assetl

Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill

Investment in joint ventur
Other lon¢-term asset

Total asset

Current liabilities

Convertible senior note
Long-term deferred revent
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie
Long-term income taxes payat
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Common stocl

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total stockholdel' equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

75

As of April 3, 2009

As Previously As

Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In millions)

$ 330 $ RO $ 3,297
97:Z 97:%
1,63¢ 1,63¢
4,561 4,561
97 97
75 4@ 71
$ 1064 $ (7 $10,63¢
$ 351 $ — $ 3,518
2,10¢ (339 ®  1,76¢€
41¢ 41¢
53 1284 181
522 522
90 90
6,697 (20€) 6,491
8 — 8
8,941 34¢&06) 9,28¢
18¢€ 18¢€
(5,187) (149 ©®  (5,336)
3,94¢ 19¢ 4,145
$ 10,64¢ $ (7)  $10,63¢
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The retrospective adoption of this guidance redutiehe following adjustments to our Consolidagtdtemen
of Operations:

Fiscal Year Ended April 3, 200¢ Fiscal Year Ended March 28, 200t
As Previously As As Previously As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In millions, except per share data;

Total net revenu $ 6,15 $ — $ 6,15 $ 587/ % — $ 5,87

Costs and expens 12,62( — 12,62( 5,272 — 5,272

Operating (loss) incom (6,470) — (6,470 602 — 602

Interest incomt 37 — 37 77 — 77

Interest expens (29 (96) (125) (30) 89 M (119

Impairment of marketable securit 4) — (4) — — —

Other income, ne 12 — 12 63 — 63
(Loss) income before income taxes

and loss from joint ventul (6,459 (96) (6,550 712 (89 623

Provision for income taxe 222 (39 ® 182 24¢ (36) ® 212

Loss from joint ventur 53 — 53 — — —

Net (loss) incom $ (6,729 $ (57) $(6,786¢) $ 462 $ (53 $ 41C

Net (loss) income per sha— basic $ (8.10) $ (0.09) $ (8.17) $ 0.5 $ (0.0¢) $ 047
Net (loss) income per sha—
diluted $ (8.10 $ (0.09) $ 817) % 0.5z $ (0.0¢) $ 0.4€

(@) This amount represents the cumulative adjustmerttsetcurrent portion of the debt issuance cossdated
with the Senior Notes

(@ This amount represents the cumulative adjustmerttsetlong-term portion of the debt issuance cast®ciated
with the Senior Note:

®) This amount represents the remaining unamortizbtidiscount on the Senior Nott

@ This amount represents the long-term deferred imctax impact of the reduction in the book basishwib
corresponding reduction in the tax basis, of thei@eNotes.

() This amount represents the equity component oB#reor Notes, net of tax adjustments to the taxefieof call
options, due to the amortization of the debt distc

®) This amount represents the cumulative Net inconmaghof the amortization of the debt discount, geired as
additional no-cash interest expense, and the associated taxradjus since inception of the Senior No

(M These amounts represent the amortization of thedistount, recognized as additional non-cash éster
expense, net of the decrease in interest expeseeiated with the debt issuance ca

® These amounts represent the tax effect of the aratidn of the debt discount and debt issuancesc

The retrospective adoption of this guidance doegsfiect our balance of Cash and cash equivalemisaa a
result did not change net cash flows from operaiimgesting or financing activities in our Conselidd Statements
of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended April @2 and March 28, 2008.
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The retrospective adoption of this guidance redutiehe following adjustments to our Consolidagtdtemen
of Stockholders’ Equity:

Additional Accumulated
Paid-In (Deficit)
Capital Earnings
(In millions)
Balances, March 30, 2007, as repol $ 10,060 $  1,34¢
Equity component of Senior Notes, net of ta 357 —
Equity component of debt issuance cc 9 —
Amortization of debt discour — (64)
Amortization of debt issuance costs, net of rederSpreviously recorded amortization
of debt issuance cos — 1
Tax adjustment — 25
Balances, March 30, 2007, as adjus 10,40¢ 1,31(C
Fiscal 2008 equity activity, as report (922) 317
Amortization of debt discour — (92)
Amortization of debt issuance costs, net of redabpreviously recorded amortization
of debt issuance cos — 2
Tax adjustment — 36
Balances, March 28, 2008, as adjus 9,487 1,57¢
Fiscal 2009 equity activity, as report (19¢) (6,85%)
Amortization of debt discour — (97
Amortization of debt issuance costs, net of reuerSpreviously recorded amortization
of debt issuance cos — 1
Tax adjustment — 39
Balances, April 3, 2009, as adjus $ 9,28 $ (5,336

Upon adoption of this guidance and effective athefissuance date of the Senior Notes, we recoeded,
adjustments to additional paid-in capital, defetiades for the differences between the carryingezaind tax basis
that resulted from allocating $586 million of thengipal amount of the Senior Notes and $9 millajrihe
associated issuance costs to equity. In subsegeents, we recorded adjustments to deferred taxeflect the
tax effect of the amortization of the debt discoamdl debt issuance costs.

Other Recently Adopted Authoritative Guidance

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reasthoritative guidance on business combinatioasrdquires
an acquiring entity to measure and recognize iflahté assets acquired and liabilities assumebeaitquisition
date fair value with limited exceptions. The chagelude the treatment of acquisition relatedgsation costs, th
valuation of any noncontrolling interest at acctiosi date fair value, the recording of acquiredtoayent liabilities
at acquisition date fair value and the subsequeeneasurement of such liabilities after the actjoisidate, the
recognition of capitalized in-process researchdaglopment, the accounting for acquisition-relatsdructuring
cost accruals subsequent to the acquisition datethe recognition of changes in the acquiré@ntome tax valuatic
allowance. Our acquisitions during fiscal 2010 hagen accounted for using this new authoritatiidance. See
Note 4. The adoption of this guidance did not haweaterial impact on our consolidated financiatesteents
however, it could have a material impact on fufpeeods.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reasthoritative guidance on the recognition and mesasent o
other-than-temporary impairments for debt secwritiet replaced the pre-existing “intent and afilindicator.
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This guidance specifies that if the fair value afedot security is less than its amortized costshasi other-than-
temporary impairment is triggered in circumstanoeshich (1) an entity has an intent to sell thewsdy, (2) it is
more likely than not that the entity will be requdrto sell the security before recovery of its dimed cost basis, or
(3) the entity does not expect to recover the erimortized cost basis of the security (that @edit loss exists).
Other-than-temporary impairments are separatedaimounts representing credit losses, which arggrézed in
earnings, and amounts related to all other facteing;h are recognized in other comprehensive incfioss). The
adoption of this guidance did not have a matendéct on our consolidated financial statements.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reashoritative guidance on noncontrolling (minayiiyterests
in consolidated financial statements, which inchidequiring noncontrolling interests be classifiesda component
of consolidated stockholders’ equity and to idgnéidrnings attributable to noncontrolling interasgsorted as part
of consolidated earnings. The guidance also resjtiire gain or loss on the deconsolidated subsithampeasured
using the fair value of the noncontrolling equity@stment. The adoption of this guidance did netteamaterial
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted reashoritative guidance that specifies the way Imicl fair
value measurements should be made for non-finaasgats and liabilities that are not measured ecatded at fair
value on a recurring basis, and specifies additidisalosures related to these fair value measunésn&he adoptic
of this guidance did not have a material impacbonconsolidated financial statements.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we adopted rmithoritative guidance on revenue recognitiomifaitiple-
element arrangements. The new standard changeschieements for establishing separate units ab@atiing in a
multiple element arrangement and requires the ailoc of arrangement consideration to each delbterto be
based on the relative selling price. The new stahdstablishes a selling price hierarchy that adléov the use of an
estimated selling price to determine the allocatibarrangement consideration to a deliverablenmutiple elemer
arrangement where neither VSOE nor TPE is availfvléhat deliverable. Concurrently to issuing tiesv standarc
the FASB also issued new authoritative guidanceekeludes tangible products that contain softveane non-
software elements that function together to protigetangible products’ essential functionalitynfrthe scope of
software revenue guidance. We have elected to adeptew accounting standards as of the beginrfifigaal 201(
for applicable transactions originating from or ev&lly modified after April 2, 2009. Our adoptidid not have a
material impact on our financial statements. Ointjgenture also adopted the accounting standardeglits perioc
ended December 31, 2009, which was applied toalgehing of its fiscal year. As a result of thenjoventure’s
adoption of the accounting standards, our Loss famn venture decreased by $12 million during fiscal 2010.
See Note 6 for further details regarding the impdi¢his guidance on our joint venture.

Recently Issued Authoritative Guidance

In June 2009, the FASB issued revised guidancewttianges the model for determining whether aryenti
should consolidate a variable interest entity (“YJIEhe standard replaces the quantitative-bastd @and rewards
calculation for determining which enterprise hamatrolling financial interest in a VIE with an apach focused ¢
identifying which enterprise has the power to ditke activities of a VIE and the obligation to afislosses of the
entity or the right to receive the entity’s resitregurns. The statement is effective as of th&t fijuarter of our fiscal
2011, and early adoption is prohibited. We do xpeet the adoption of this new authoritative guimato have a
material impact on our consolidated financial steats.

Note 2. Fair Value Measurements

We measure assets and liabilities at fair valuedbas an expected exit price as defined by theoaitditive
guidance on fair value measurements, which reptesle@ amount that would be received on the satm@fsset or
paid to transfer a liability, as the case may beri orderly transaction between market particgais such, fair
value may be based on assumptions that marketipariis would use in pricing an asset or liabilithe
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authoritative guidance on fair value measuremestiabéishes a consistent framework for measuringviue on
either a recurring or nonrecurring basis wherelpyis, used in valuation techniques, are assigreerarchical
level. The following are the hierarchical levelsimuts to measure fair value:

e Level 1: Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices djusded) for identical assets or liabilities iniaet
markets,

» Level 2: Inputs reflect: quoted prices for identical ass@tliabilities in markets that are not activeptpd
prices for similar assets or liabilities in activarkets; inputs other than quoted prices that bsemwable for
the assets or liabilities; or inputs that are dsiprincipally from or corroborated by observablerket data
by correlation or other mear

« Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting our own assumgtioaorporated in valuation techniques used to
determine fair value. These assumptions are redjtirée consistent with market participant assuomgtitha
are reasonably availabl

Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on alreng Basis

The following table summarizes our assets thatraasured at fair value on a recurring basis, bglevithin
the fair value hierarchy:

As of April 2, 2010 As of April 3, 2009
Level1 Level2 LevelZ Total Level1 Level2 LevelS Total
(In millions)

Cash equivalent:

Money market fund $2,046 $ — $ — $2,04¢ $38 $ — $ — $ 38¢

Bank securities and depos — 21€ — 21€ — 474 — 474

Government securitie — 11€ — 11€ — 47¢ — 47¢
Total cash equivalen 2,04¢ 332 — 2,37¢ 38¢ 953 —  1,34C
Shor-term investments

Asse-backed securitie — 6 — 6 — 13 — 13

Corporate securitie — 4 — 4 — 8 — 8

Government securitie — — — — — 17k — 17t

Marketable equity securitie 5 — — 5 3 — — 3
Total shor-term investment 5 10 — 15 3 19€ — 19¢
Total $2,0561 $34z $ — $2,39¢ $392 $1,14¢ $ — $1,547

Level 2 fixed income available-for-sale securiéee priced using quoted market prices for simitatruments,
nonbinding market prices that are corroboratedbimeovable market data, or discounted cash flownigcies.
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Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on a Mmurring Basis

The following table summarizes our assets measatrér value on a nonrecurring basis, by levethimi the
fair value hierarchy:

Impairment
Fiscal Year
Ended
April 2, April 2,
2010 Levell Level2 Level3 2010
(In millions)
Assets held for sal $34 $— $34 $— $20

In fiscal 2010 and 2009, as part of our ongoindaew\of real estate holdings, we determined thataer
properties were underutilized. As a result, we cadttesh to sell properties with a total estimated failue, less costs
to sell, of approximately $34 million and $59 nuoli as of April 2, 2010 and April 3, 2009, respeeltyv Assets held
for sale are included in Other current assets. ¥pe& the sale of the remaining properties to epteted during
fiscal 2011.

The fair value measurements were based on reciems ahade by third parties to purchase the progedr on
valuation appraisals. To reflect the fair valueslegsts to sell, assets held for sale were writtemn during fiscal
2010, 2009 and 2008. As a result, we recorded immzaits of $20 million, $46 million, and $93 millipn
respectively. We sold assets for $42 million an8él &8llion, which resulted in losses of $10 milliand $2 million
in fiscal 2010 and 2008, respectively. We also gotiperties in fiscal 2009 for $40 million, whicksulted in an
immaterial loss.

Note 3. Short-Term Investments

The following table summarizes our available-foledavestments:

As of April 2, 2010 As of April 3, 2009
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value

(In millions)

Asse-backed securitie $ 7% — % @ $ 6$ 15 — 9% 2% 13
Corporate securitie 4 — — 4 8 — — 8
Government securitie — — — — 17t — — 17t
Marketable equity securitie 2 3 — 5 2 1 — 3
Total $ 13$ 3% (M$ 15% 20$ 13 (2% 19¢

The following table provides the gross unrealizeskes and the fair market value of our investmeiits
unrealized losses that are not deemed to be dthertemporarily impaired, aggregated by investnecat#gory and
length of time that individual securities have baea continuous unrealized loss position:

As of April 2, 2010 As of April 3, 2009
Less than 12 12 Months or Less than 12 12 Months or
Months Greater Total Months Greater Total

Losses Fair Value Losse: Fair Value Losse: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losse! Fair Value Losse: Fair Value
(In millions)

Asse-backed securitie $— $— $1 $6 $1 $6 $— $— $2 $13 $2 $13

Proceeds from sales, maturities, and principaldmayns related to available-for-sale securities were
$192 million and $685 million primarily from the toaities related to government securities for fi2@10 and the
sales of asset-backed securities for fiscal 20&¢peactively. The gross realized losses on salasaifable-for-sale
investments were not material for fiscal 2010. Ghess realized losses on sales of available-faigakestments
totaled $3 million and were primarily related ta @ales of asset-backed securities and corporateises in fiscal
20009.
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Note 4. Acquisitions
Fiscal 2010 acquisitions

During fiscal 2010, we completed two acquisitiofisonpublic companies for an aggregate of $42 arilin
cash. No equity interests were issued. We recagdedwill in connection with each of these acquisisi, which
resulted primarily from our expectation of synesgieom the integration of the acquired companythtelogy with
our technology. The goodwill for these acquisitismsnly partially tax deductible, if at all. Thesults of operations
for the acquired companies have been included imesults of operations since their respective eitipn dates.
These acquisitions are included in our Security @athpliance segment.

The purchase price allocation related to thesalfidd10 acquisitions is as followsn(millions):

Acquisition date Various
Net tangible assets (liabilitie $ —
Intangible asset® 18
Goodwill 24
Total purchase pric $ 42

@) Intangible assets include customer relationshiggl8fmillion and developed technology of $5 millievhich
are amortized over their estimated useful livefoaf to eleven years. The weighted-average estumageful
lives were 10.0 years and 4.0 years, respecti

Fiscal 2009 acquisitions
MessagelLabs Purchase

On November 14, 2008, we completed the acquisafdiessagelLabs Group Limited (“MessagelLabs”), a
nonpublic United Kingdom-based provider of managedices to protect, control, encrypt, and arcleleetronic
communications. The acquisition complements ouSSassiness. In exchange for all of the voting ggniterests
of Messagelabs, we paid the following (millions):

Cash paid for acquisition of common stock outstagdéxcluding cash acquir $632
Acquisitior-related transaction cos 8
Total purchase pric $64C

The results of operations for MessagelLabs aredeclisince the date of acquisition as part of treufy and
Compliance segment. Supplemental proforma infolwndir MessagelLabs was not material to our findmesults
and was therefore not included. The purchase priacesubject to an adjustment of up to an additi8aal million in
cash due to estimates in the initial purchase phatwere not finalized. As a result, subsequethhé¢ acquisition
date, the Company paid an additional $10 millioth®seller which was allocated to Goodwill.

The following table presents the purchase pricacation included in our Consolidated Balance Shgiets

millions):

Net tangible asse®@ $ 20
Intangible assel@ 17¢C
Goodwill 3 48C
Deferred tax liability (30
Total purchase pric $64C
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(@) Net tangible assets included deferred revenue whiashadjusted down from $34 million to $10 milli
representing our estimate of the fair value ofabetractual obligation assumed for support serv

@ Intangible assets included customer relationshi@ia7 million, developed technology of $39 milliand
definite-lived tradenames of $4 million, which amortized over their estimated useful lives of timeight
years. The weighte-average estimated useful lives were 8.0 yearsyeafs and 1.0 years, respective

() Goodwill was not tax deductible and resulted prilgdrom our expectation of synergies from the gniztion of
Messagelabs product offerings with our productraffgs.

Other fiscal 2009 acquisitions

During fiscal 2009, in addition to MessagelLabs,campleted acquisitions of five nonpublic compariggsan
aggregate of $478 million in cash, including $6limrl in acquisition-related expenses resulting fiamancial
advisory, legal and accounting services, duplisétss, and severance. No equity interests weredsaWe recorded
goodwill in connection with each of these acquisii, which resulted primarily from our expectatafrsynergies
from the integration of the acquired company’s tetbgy with our technology and the acquired compaagcess
to our global distribution network. In addition,aheacquired company provided a knowledgeable apdrenced
workforce. Most of the goodwill from the PC TooltyRimited (“PC Tools”) acquisition was tax deduté, while
goodwill for the other acquisitions was not tax detible or was not material. The results of operadifor the
acquired companies have been included in our sestithperations since their respective acquisitiates.
AppStream, Inc. (“AppStream”), and the Other acijoiss are included in our Security and Compliasegment
and SwapDrive, Inc. (“SwapDrive”) and PC Tools sreuded in our Consumer segment.

The following table presents the purchase priagcations related to these other fiscal 2009 adiprisi
included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

AppStream SwapDrive PC Tools Other Total
(In millions)
Acquisition date April 18, 200¢ June 6, 20C October 6, 20C Various
Net tangible assets (liabilitie $ 14 3 2 3 11) $ — $ 5
Intangible assel®) 11 42 10C 12 16t
Goodwill 27 81 173 27 30¢
Total purchase pric $ 52 § 128§ 262 $ 39 $47¢

(@ Intangible assets included customer relationshigd million, developed technology of $90 milliand
definite-lived tradenames of $1 million, which @mortized over their estimated useful lives of tmaine
years. The weighteaverage estimated useful lives were 6.5 yearsyéafs and 1.4 years, respectively.
Intangible assets also included indefinite-liveatg-names of $31 million, which have an indefieémated
useful life.
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Fiscal 2008 acquisitions
Altiris Purchase

On April 6, 2007, we completed the acquisition dtirds Inc. (“Altiris”), a leading provider of infamation
technology management software that enables bisgisds easily manage and service network-basedanslpin
exchange for all of the voting equity interesttifris, we paid the following {n millions):

Cash paid for acquisition of common stock outstagdéxcluding cash acquir $ 99C
Fair value of stock options assun 17
Fair value of restricted stock awal 5
Acquisitior-related transaction cos 4
Restructuring cost 22
Total purchase pric $1,03¢

The results of operations of Altiris are includéute the date of acquisition as part of the Segauitd
Compliance segment, with the exception of Altires\8ces, which are included as part of our Servésgsnent.
Supplemental proforma information for Altiris wastmmaterial to our financial results and was themeiot

included.
The following table presents the purchase priagcation included in our Consolidated Balance Shgiets

millions):

Net tangible asse® $ 231
Intangible assel®@ 31z
Goodwill ®) 632
Deferred tax liability (139
Total purchase pric $1,03¢

() Net tangible assets included deferred revenue whiahadjusted down from $46 million to $12 milli
representing our estimate of the fair value ofabetractual obligation assumed for support serv

@ Intangible assets included customer relationshi®261 million, developed technology of $90 milliand
definite-lived tradenames of $22 million, which amortized over their estimated useful lives of tmeight
years. The weighte-average estimated useful lives were 8.0 yearsyéals and 7.6 years, respective

() Goodwill was deductible in the State of Califorfioatax purposes. The amount resulted primarilyrfrour
expectation of synergies from the integration dir® product offerings with our product offering

Other fiscal 2008 acquisitions

During fiscal 2008, in addition to Altiris, we comeped acquisitions of two nonpublic companies for a
aggregate of $334 million in cash, including $5limrl in acquisition-related expenses resulting fiamancial
advisory, legal and accounting services, dupliségs, and severance. No equity interests weredsa¥e recorded
goodwill in connection with each of these acquisiti, none of which was tax deductible, resultirighprily from
our expectation of synergies from the integratibthe acquired company’s technology with our tedbgg and the
acquired company’s access to our global distrilbutietwork. In addition, each acquired company ptedia
knowledgeable and experienced workforce. The residiloperations for Vontu Inc. (“Vontu”) and theh@et
acquisition have been included in our results @rapons since their respective acquisition datesaae included in
our Security and Compliance segment.
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The following table presents the purchase pricacations related to these other fiscal 2008 adiprisi
included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Vontu Other Total
(In millions)
Acquisition date November 30, 20( January 11, 20(
Net tangible liabilities $ 6 9 — % (6)
Intangible assel®) 69 3 72
Goodwill 25¢ 9 26¢
Total purchase pric $ 32z % 12 $334

(@ Intangible assets included customer relationshii®38 million and developed technology of $39 roiflj which
are amortized over their estimated useful livesree to eight years. The weighted-average estimegefill lives
were 8.0 years and 4.1 years, respecti\

Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

We allocate goodwill to our reporting units, whigte the same as our operating segments. Goodwllbisater
by operating segment as follows:

Storage and

Security and Server
Consumel Compliance Managemen Services Total
(In millions)

Net balance as of March 28, 20() $ 102 $ 4081 $ 6,666 $ 35  $11,20¢
Operating segment reclassificati(@ — (84) — 84 —
Goodwill acquired through business combinati®) 252 54 — 471 TTE
Goodwill adjustment® — 4 (10) — (6)
Goodwill impairmen — (2,700 (4,199 (520 (7,419

Net balance as of April 3, 20(®) $ 35¢ % 1,35 3 2457 $ 39 $ 4,561
Operating segment reclassificati®) — 193 191 (384) —
Goodwill acquired through business combinati® — 24 — — 24
Goodwill adjustment® — 10 — 10 20

Net balance as of April 2, 2017 $ 3¢ $ 158. $ 264¢ $ 19 $ 4,60¢

(1) Gross goodwill balances for the Consumer, Secarity Compliance, Storage and Server Management, and
Services are $103 million, $4.1 billion, $6.7 kti, and $358 million, respectively as of March 2808. There
was no accumulated impairment loss as of Marct2@88.

@ In the first quarter of fiscal 2009, we moved Attiservices from the Security and Compliance segoethe
Services segment. As a result of this reclassifinahe above adjustments were made as requiréaeby
authoritative guidance

() See Note 4 for acquisition

) Reflects adjustments made to goodwill of prior asitjons as a result of tax adjustments that weomanted for
under the prior authoritative guidance on busimessbinations
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() Gross goodwill balances for the Consumer, Secarity Compliance, Storage and Server Management, and
Services are $356 million, $4.1 billion, $6.7 litli, and $913 million, respectively as of April B0®.
Accumulated impairment losses for the Security @othpliance, Storage and Server Management, andc8grv
are $2.7 billion, $4.2 billion, and $520 milliorespectively as of April 3, 2009. There was no aadaied
impairment loss for the Consumer segment as ofl Rp2009.

®) During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we changed reporting segments to better align to our afeg
structure, resulting in the Enterprise Vault pradubat were formerly included in the Security &@wmpliance
segment being moved to the Storage and Server Marey segment. Also, Software-as-a-Service, whigh av
standalone reporting unit in fiscal 2009, moveeitber the Security and Compliance segment or tbea§e and
Server Management segment from the Services seghbas#d on the nature of the service delivered. The
predominant amount of SaaS goodwill went to theuB8gcand Compliance segment. See Note 11 for sagme
information.

(M Gross goodwill balances for the Consumer, Secarity Compliance, Storage and Server Management, and
Services are $356 million, $4.0 billion, $7.2 il and $461 million, respectively as of April D1D.
Accumulated impairment losses for Security and @npe, Storage and Server Management, and Seriees
$2.4 billion, $4.6 billion, and $442 million, resp&vely as of April 2, 2010. There was no accumedat
impairment loss for the Consumer segment as ofl p2010. These balances are reflective of amaoaiites
adjustment for segment reclassifications duringptréod.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, in acaamde with our accounting policy as described ineNigtwe
performed our annual impairment analysis and deterdnthat goodwill was not impaired. Based on thpairment
analysis performed, we determined that the faineaf each of our reporting units exceeded itsyaagrvalue by
more than 20% of the carrying value.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009, based aombination of factors, including the current emaic
environment and a decline in our market capitaliratwe concluded that there were sufficient pogmnpairment
indicators that required us to perform an interimodwill impairment analysis. The analysis was rarhpleted
during the third quarter of fiscal 2009 and anreated impairment charge of $7.0 billion was recdrdehe analysis
was subsequently finalized and an additional immpairt charge of $413 million was included in ounitssfor the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2009. As a result, we releal a total non-cash goodwill impairment charggeleon the
interim impairment analysis of $7.4 billion fordal 2009. We also performed our annual impairmaatysis durin
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 and determinexd tto additional impairment charge was required.

The calculation of potential goodwill impairmengtéres significant judgment at many points during t
analysis. In determining the carrying value of @gof the reporting units, we applied judgment lo@ate assets
and liabilities, such as accounts receivable anggnty and equipment, based on the specific ideatibn or
relevant driver, as they are not held by thosentegpunits but by functional departments. Furtherey we utilize
the income approach, under which we calculatevine based on the estimated discounted futureftagh of tha
specific reporting unit. The income approach wasimheined to be the most representative valuationrtigue that
would be utilized by a market participant in anuased transaction, but we also considered the magq@bach
which measures the value of an asset through dpséaf recent sales or offerings of comparabtgpprty. We als
consider our market capitalization on the date arfgom our analysis as compared to the sum ofahiesélues of
our reporting units to assess the reasonablendhls ghlues of the reporting units determined unlkelincome
approach.

The income approach requires us to make estimategidgments about the future cash flows of eapbrtang
unit as well as discount rates to be applied. Algtoour cash flow forecasts are based on assunsptiah are
consistent with the plans and estimates we argyisimanage the underlying reporting units, themgnificant
judgment in determining the cash flows attributabl¢éhese reporting units. For the fiscal 2010 gsial due to th
improving overall economic environment and its icipan our long-term estimates, our estimated future
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cash flows are somewhat higher than those usétkiprior year analysis. Similarly, the discounesatitilized were
decreased to reflect the decreased risk of vdlaiilithe current economic environment. For thedi2009 analysi:
as a result of the downturn in the economic envitent during the second half of calendar 2008, deteéng the
fair value of the individual reporting units waseevmore judgmental than in the past. In particula,global
economic recession reduced our visibility into ldagnm trends, and consequently, estimates of fudash flows
used in the analysis were lower than those usétkiprior year analysis. The discount rates utilizethe fiscal
2009 analysis also reflected markeised estimates of the risks associated with thjegied cash flows of individc
reporting units and were increased from the previmar’s analysis to reflect increased risk dueotatility in the
economic environment during the period.

Our reporting units are identified in accordancthwie applicable authoritative guidance and ateeei
equivalent to, or represent one level below, anatpey segment, which constitute a business fockvdiscrete
financial information is available and for whichgseent management regularly reviews the operatisglte Our
operating segments are significant strategic bssinaits that offer different products and seryidéstinguished by
customer needs. Our reporting units are consistéghtour operating segments.

Intangible assets, net

April 2, 2010

Weighted-Average

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Remaining

Amount Amortization Amount Useful Life

($ in millions)
Customer relationshif $ 1,83¢ % 9739 $ 86¢€ 4 year.
Developed technolog 1,63t (1,459 177 1yea
Definite-lived tradename 12¢ (66) 62 5 year
Patent: 75 (59) 21 3 year
Indefinite-lived tradename 53 — 53 Indefinite
Total $ 3,73C $ (255) $  1.17¢ 3 year.
April 3, 2009

Weighted-Average

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Remaining

Amount Amortization Amount Useful Life

($ in millions)

Customer relationshif $ 1,83C $ (745 $ 1,08t 5 year.
Developed technolog 1,78¢ (1,390 39t 1yea
Definite-lived tradename 13C (54) 76 6 year
Patents 76 (46) 30 4 year
Indefinite-lived tradename 53 — 53 Indefinite
Total $ 387« $§ (2,235 % 1,63¢ 3 yearn

In fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, total amortizatapense for intangible assets was $481 million5%88lion,
and $574 million, respectively.
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Total amortization expense for intangible assetElwhave definite lives, based upon our existingngible
assets and their current estimated useful lived April 2, 2010, is estimated to be as followia fillions):

2011 $ 34C
2012 29¢
2013 264
2014 11¢
2015 66
Thereaftel 41
Total $1,12¢

Note 6. Investment in Joint Venture

On February 5, 2008, Symantec formed Huawei-Synsaite. (“joint venture”) with a subsidiary of Huaiv
Technologies Co., Limited (“Huawei”). The joint pere is domiciled in Hong Kong with principal optoas in
Chengdu, China. We contributed cash of $150 millimenses related to certain intellectual property intangible
assets in exchange for 49% of the outstanding camshares of the joint venture. The joint ventureetigps,
manufactures, markets and supports security amage@ppliances to global telecommunications aaread
enterprise customers. Huawei contributed its tefenanications storage and security business agsgjsieering,
sales and marketing resources, personnel, andsésarlated to intellectual property in exchangeafb1%
ownership interest in the joint venture.

The contribution of assets to the joint venture aasounted for at its carrying value. The histdrézarying
value of the assets contributed by Symantec coegbassignificant portion of the net assets of thetjventure. As
result, our carrying value of the investment in jiiat venture exceeded our proportionate shathérbook value ¢
the joint venture by approximately $75 million upfmnmation of the joint venture. As the contributiofor both
Symantec and Huawei were recorded at historicayicey value by the joint venture, this basis diffiece is
attributable to the contributed identified intarigilbssets. The basis difference is being amortized a weighted-
average period of 9 years, the estimated usefes lof the underlying identified intangible assets/hich the basis
difference is attributed.

On February 5, 2011, we have a one-time optiorutotase an additional two percent ownership intéres
Huawei for $28 million. We determined the valuela# option using the Black-Scholes option-pricingd®l. The
value of the option is not considered materiahtfinancial statements. We have concluded thabptien does not
meet the definition of a derivative under the autative guidance. Symantec and Huawei each haveight to
purchase all of the other partredwnership interest through a bid process updaiceriggering events set to oct
as early as February 5, 2011.

We account for our investment in the joint ventungler the equity method of accounting. Under theshmd,
we record our proportionate share of the joint uegis net income or loss based on the quarterly fidistatemen
of the joint venture. We record our proportiondtare of net income or loss one quarter in arréamdetermining
our share of the joint venture’s net income or legs adjust the joint venture’s reported resultestmognize the
amortization expense associated with the basisrdifice described above.

As described in Note 1, the joint venture adoptexd authoritative guidance on revenue arrangemeitiis w
multiple deliverables during its period ended DebenB1, 2009, which was applied to the beginningsdfiiscal
year. The impact of the adoption decreased ourgotiomate share of net loss by $12 million during fiscal 2010
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Summarized unaudited Statement of Operations irdtiam for the joint venture and the calculatioroaf share of
the joint venture’s loss are as follows:

For the Period from For the Period from

January 1, 2009 to February 5, 2008 tc

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
($ in millions)

Net revenue $ 224 $ 28
Gross margir 87 7
Net loss, as reported by the joint vent $ 63 % (92
Symante’s ownership intere: 49% 49%
Symante’s proportionate share of net Ic $ (31) ¢ (45)
Adjustment for amortization of basis differer (8) (8)

Loss from joint ventur: $ 39 $ (53
Note 7. Debt

Convertible senior notes

In June 2006, we issued $1.1 billion in principacant of 0.75% Notes and $1.0 billion in principatount of
1.00% Notes. We received proceeds of $2.1 billlomfthe Senior Notes and incurred net transactistsoof
approximately $33 million, of which $9 million wadlocated to equity and the remainder allocateg@rionately
to the 0.75% Notes and 1.00% Notes. The 0.75% Nuidsl.00% Notes were each issued at par andriteaest at
0.75% and 1.00% per annum, respectively. Intesggayable semiannually in arrears on June 15 acdrbiger 15,
beginning December 15, 2006.

The following table summarizes information regagdihe equity and liability components of the SemNotes:

As of

April 2, April 3,

2010 2009
As Adjusted

(In millions)

Equity componen $ 58 $ 58€
Principal amoun $2,10C $ 2,10(
Unamortized discour (229) (339
Liability componen $1,871 $ 1,76¢

The effective interest rate, contractual interagiemse and amortization of debt discount for the@@eNotes
was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008
As Adjusted  As Adjusted
(In millions)
Effective interest rat 6.7¢% 6.7&% 6.7¢%
Interest expens— contractua $ 18 $ 18 $ 18
Interest expens— amortization of debt discou $ 104 $ 96 $ 89
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As of April 2, 2010, the remaining weightederage amortization period of the discount and &shance cos
is approximately 2.6 years and thednverted value of the Senior Notes does not extteegdrincipal amount of tt
Senior Notes.

Each $1,000 of principal of the Senior Notes wiltially be convertible into 52.2951 shares of Syiea
common stock, which is the equivalent of $19.12gbere, subject to adjustment upon the occurrehspeified
events. Holders of the Senior Notes may conveit 8enior Notes prior to maturity during specifigeriods as
follows: (1) during any calendar quarter, beginnéfiger June 30, 2006, if the closing price of oomenon stock for
at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutivarigadays ending on the last trading day of the imiately
preceding calendar quarter is more than 130% oépipdicable conversion price per share; (2) if dfggtcorporate
transactions, including a change in control, oc(rwith respect to the 0.75% Notes, at any timeoafter April 5
2011, and with respect to the 1.00% Notes, at mmg on or after April 5, 2013; or (4) during thedi
business-day period after any five consecutivengagday period during which the trading price of thenior Notes
falls below a certain threshold. Upon conversioa,weould pay the holder the cash value of the agpleenumber ¢
shares of Symantec common stock, up to the prihaipaunt of the note. Amounts in excess of theqapial
amount, if any, may be paid in cash or in stocBuatoption. Holders who convert their Senior Natesonnection
with a change in control may be entitled to a “makele” premium in the form of an increase in tlo@wersion
rate. As of April 2, 2010, none of the conditiotiswing holders of the Senior Notes to convert bagn met. In
addition, upon a change in control of Symantechtblders of the Senior Notes may require us tonamse for cas
all or any portion of their Senior Notes for 100%4dtte principal amount.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Senior Natesgentered into note hedge transactions withiatis of
certain initial purchasers whereby we have theooptd purchase up to 110 million shares of our comstock at a
price of $19.12 per share. The options as to 5Bamishares expire on June 15, 2011 and the opétisris
52 million shares expire on June 15, 2013. Theooptimust be settled in net shares. The cost ofdteehedge
transactions to us was approximately $592 milllaraddition, we sold warrants to affiliates of eéntinitial
purchasers whereby they have the option to puralyase 110 million shares of our common stock ptiee of
$27.3175 per share. The warrants expire on vadates from July 2011 through August 2013 and mestditled i
net shares. We received approximately $326 milliocash proceeds from the sale of these warrants.

The Senior Notes will have no impact on diluteche@ags per share (“EPSUntil the price of our common sto
exceeds the conversion price of $19.12 per sharause the principal amount of the Senior Noteshvelkettled in
cash upon conversion. Prior to conversion, we iwilude the effect of the additional shares thay maissued if
our common stock price exceeds $19.12 per shang tis treasury stock method. As a result, foffitlse$1.00 by
which the average price of our common stock fouartgrly period exceeds $19.12 per share theredamidilutior
of approximately 5.4 million shares. As the shaiegxcontinues to increase, additional dilution Vdooccur at a
declining rate such that an average price of $ZA3ier share would yield cumulative dilution of eppmately
32.9 million shares. If the average price of ounamon stock exceeds $27.3175 per share for a glygpieniod we
will also include the effect of the additional pati@l shares that may be issued related to theamtsusing the
treasury stock method. The Senior Notes along thighvarrants have a combined dilutive effect sheth for the
first $1.00 by which the average price exceeds3A per share there would be cumulative dilutibn o
approximately 39.5 million shares prior to convensiAs the share price continues to increase, iadditdilution
would occur but at a declining rate.

Prior to conversion, the note hedge transactioasiat considered for purposes of the EPS calculasis their
effect would be anti-dilutive. Upon conversion, tiete hedge will automatically serve to neutratize dilutive
effect of the Senior Notes when the stock pricabigve $19.12 per share. For example, if upon ceiwethe price
of our common stock was $28.3175 per share, theulative effect of approximately 39.5 million shairghe
example above would be reduced to approximatelyr@llon shares.

The preceding calculations assume that the avenagcge of our common stock exceeds the respective
conversion prices during the period for which ER8alculated and excludes any potential adjustntertte
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conversion ratio provided under the terms of thei@eNotes. See Note 14 for information regardimg impact on
EPS of the Senior Notes and warrants in the cupentd.

Revolving credit facility

In July 2006, we entered into a five-year $1 bill&enior unsecured revolving credit facility thapiees in July
2011. Borrowings under the facility bear interestour option, at either a rate equal to the bah&se rate or a rate
equal to LIBOR plus a margin based on our leveratje, as defined in the credit facility agreeméntconnection
with the credit facility, we must maintain certaiovenants, including a specified ratio of debtaméengs (before
interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization andaimmpents) as well as various other non-financiakec@ants. As of
April 2, 2010, we were in compliance with all respd covenants, and there was no outstanding batantiee credi
facility.

Note 8. Restructuring

Upon approval of a restructuring plan by managemsétht the appropriate level of authority, we record
restructuring liabilities in accordance with thetearitative guidance. Liabilities for costs asstethwith an exit or
disposal activity are recognized when the liabiltyncurred, as opposed to when management conoréts exit
plan. In addition, (i) liabilities associated wiiit and disposal activities are measured at e, (ii) one-time
termination benefits are expensed at the daterttity @otifies the employee, unless the employestrprovide
future service, in which case the benefits are Bspé ratably over the future service period; aiidc@sts to
terminate a contract before the end of its ternrecegnized when the entity terminates the contreatcordance
with the contract terms. In addition, a portiortted restructuring costs related to internationapleyees whose
termination benefits are recognized when the amotustich termination benefits becomes estimablepaydent is
probable. We record other costs associated withaekivities as they are incurred.

Our restructuring costs and liabilities consisse¥erance, benefits, facilities and other costge@ace and
benefits generally include severance, outplacesenices, health insurance coverage, effects efdarcurrency
exchange and legal costs. Facilities costs gegarmllude rent expense, less expected subleasmiend lease
termination costs. Other costs generally includeefiects of foreign currency exchange and comsuKervices.
Also included in Restructuring in our Consolidag&tdtements of Operations are transition and tramsftion fees,
consulting services, and other costs related toti®ourcing of back office functions. Restructgraxpenses are
included in the Other reporting segment.

Charges for restructuring costs were $94 millid6 $illion, and $74 million for fiscal 2010, 2008¢&2008,
respectively. These amounts include transitiomgfi@mation, consulting costs and related othetsoois$28 millior
and $21 million for fiscal 2010 and 2009, respesltiv There were no transition, transformation, ctiirsg costs an
related other costs in fiscal 2008. Transition aadsformation related activities are expectedeaubstantially
completed in fiscal 2011. Total remaining coststfansition and transformation activities are eatid to range
from approximately $10 million to $20 million.

Restructuring Plans

The following details restructuring plans that mgement has committed to and are not substantiaftypteted

2010 Restructuring Plan (*2010 Plan”)
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, managememtrayped and initiated the following restructuringeets to:

« Reduce operating costs through a workforce realignt. This action was initiated to more appropriately
allocate resources to the Comp’s key strategic initiatives. Charges related te #ution are for severan
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and benefits. These actions are expected to beasuiiadly completed in fiscal 2011. Total remainicmgsts
for severance and benefits are estimated to range $45 million to $65 million

« Reduce operating costs through a facilities comlsion. This action was initiated to streamline our
operations and deliver better and more efficieppsut to our customers and employees. Charge®d:tat
this action are for consolidating certain facikti@a North America and Europe. These actions apeeed to
be substantially completed in fiscal 2011. Totaha@ing costs for facilities are estimated to rafigen
$35 million to $45 million.

2008 Restructuring Plan (“2008 Plan”)
In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, managementapgd and initiated the following restructuring at&eto:

« Reduce operating costs through a worldwide headcmduction. This action was initiated in the third
quarter of fiscal 2008 and was substantially coneplén the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Chargdated to
this action are for severance and benefits. Tetakining costs are not expected to be signific

* Reduce operating costs, implement managementsteuchanges, optimize the business structure
discontinue certain productsCharges related to these actions are for sevei@mt benefits. These actions
were initiated in the third quarter of fiscal 20@8d are expected to be completed by the end &fetbend
quarter in fiscal 2011. Total remaining costs f@ severance and benefits are estimated to be up to
$5 million.

» Outsource certain back office functions worldwid€harges related to these actions are primarily fo
severance and benefits. These actions were imitiatthe second quarter of fiscal 2009 and are eepeto
be substantially completed in fiscal 2011. Totahaéning costs for severance and benefits are esgeot
range from $5 million to $10 millior

Prior and Acquisition-related Plans
Prior Restructuring Plan

In fiscal 2009, management approved and initiatptha to reduce operating costs through a worldwide
headcount reduction. This action was initiated sugistantially completed in fiscal 2010. Chargeateal to this
action were for severance and benefits. Total reimgicosts are not expected to be significant.

Acquisition-related Plan

As a result of business acquisitions, managemenmptdaam certain job functions to be redundant antlitias
to be in excess either at the time of acquisitiofoba period of time after the acquisition in garction with our
integration efforts. For acquisitions made priofisgal 2010, such restructuring-related costs lgaresrally been
adjusted to goodwill to reflect changes in the pase price of the respective acquisition. Withateption of new
authoritative guidance on business combinatiorsstueturing charges related to our business adprisistarting ir
fiscal 2010 are expensed in our Consolidated Sexésrof Operations. As of April 2, 2010, acquisitielated
restructuring liabilities, primarily related to eegs facility obligations at several locations aathre world, are
expected to be paid over the respective lease tehesongest of which extends through fiscal 2018.
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Restructuring Summary
Fiscal 2010 Restructuring Liability

Costs, Cumulative
April 3, Net of Cash April 2, Incurred
2009 Adjustments @ Payments 2010 to Date
(In millions)
Fiscal 2010
Severance and benef $ — § 23 $ (3% 20 % 23
Fiscal 2008
Severance and benef 8 32 (37 3 96
Prior and Acquisition-related
Severance and benef 4 1 4 1 42
Facilities 15 10 (13) 12 35
Total $ 27 % 66 $ (57$ 36
Transition, transformation and other cc 28 49
Total restructuring and transformation charges $ 94
Balance Sheet:
Other current liabilitie $ 21 $ 28
Other lon¢-term liabilities 6 8
$ 27 $ 36

(@) Total net adjustments or reversals, which includedffects of foreign currency, for each respedibs&al year
were not significant

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencie:

Lease Commitments

We lease certain of our facilities and related pougint under operating leases that expire at vadates
through 2029. We currently sublease some space wadeus operating leases that will expire on easi dates
through 2018. Some of our leases contain renewa ey escalation clauses, rent concessions, aseheld
improvement incentives. Rent expense was $88 mjl$88 million, and $87 million in fiscal 2010, 230and 2008,
respectively.

As of April 2, 2010, our future commitments and Iealse information under non-cancellable leases agre

follows:
Lease Subleas: Net Lease
Commitment Income Commitment (1)
(In millions)
2011 $ 90 $ 4 3 86
2012 73 2 71
2013 60 2 58
2014 52 1 51
2015 35 1 34
Thereaftel 82 1 81
$ 392 $ 11 $ 381

() The net lease commitment amount includes $21 miliedated to facilities that are included in owstracturing
reserve. For more information, see Not

92




Table of Contents

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Purchase Obligations

We have purchase obligations of $421 million adpfil 2, 2010 that are associated with agreemennts f
purchases of goods or services. Management beliegesancellation of these contracts is unlikeig ave expect t
make future cash payments according to the cortauis.

Indemnification

As permitted under Delaware law, we have agreenveidseby we indemnify our officers and directors fo
certain events or occurrences while the officedicector is, or was, serving at our request in staghacity. The
maximum potential amount of future payments we @¢dd required to make under these indemnification
agreements is not limited; however, we have dirstend officers’ insurance coverage that reducgsaposure
and may enable us to recover a portion of any éuauimnounts paid. We believe the estimated fair vafubese
indemnification agreements in excess of applicatdarance coverage is minimal.

We provide limited product warranties and the migjasf our software license agreements contain isions
that indemnify licensees of our software from daesagnd costs resulting from claims alleging thatsoftware
infringes the intellectual property rights of arthparty. Historically, payments made under theseipions have
been immaterial. We monitor the conditions thatsargject to indemnification to identify if a losasoccurred.

Litigation Contingencies

For a discussion of our pending tax litigation wiitle Internal Revenue Service relating to the 22t 2001
tax years of Veritas, see Note 13.

On July 7, 2004, a purported class action compkititled Paul Kuck, et al. v. Veritas Software ganation, e
al. was filed in the United States District Count the District of Delaware. The lawsuit allegeslations of federal
securities laws in connection with Veritas’ anncement on July 6, 2004 that it expected resultgpefations for
the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004 to falllelarlier estimates. The complaint generally seekanspecified
amount of damages. Subsequently, additional puggartass action complaints have been filed in Dataviederal
court, and, on March 3, 2005, the Court enteredrdar consolidating these actions and appointiagd [@aintiffs
and counsel. A consolidated amended complaint (“GA&as filed on May 27, 2005, expanding the clpssod
from April 23, 2004 through July 6, 2004. The CAGaanamed another officer as a defendant and aaltesghtions
that Veritas and the named officers made falseisleading statements in press releases and SBEGsfitegarding
the company’s financial results, which allegediytained revenue recognized from contracts that wesgyned or
lacked essential terms. The defendants to thisemiitd a motion to dismiss the CAC in July 206t motion was
denied in May 2006. In April 2008, the partiesdile stipulation of settlement. On July 31, 2008, @ourt held a
final approval hearing and, on August 5, 2008,Gloerrt entered an order approving the settlemenbl#ector to
the fees portion of the settlement has lodged pealpln fiscal 2008, we recorded an accrual inatm@unt of
$21.5 million for this matter and, pursuant to thems of the settlement, we established a settlefoed of
$21.5 million on May 1, 2008.

We are also involved in a number of other judieiadl administrative proceedings that are incidetotalur
business. Although adverse decisions (or settleshemdy occur in one or more of the cases, it ispossible to
estimate the possible loss or losses from eadhesktcases. The final resolution of these lawsuaiig/idually or in
the aggregate, is not expected to have a matelvarse effect on our financial condition or resolt®perations.
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Note 10. Stock Repurchase:
The following table presents a summary of our stegurchases:

Year Ended
April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008
(In millions, except per share data;
Total number of shares repurcha 34 42 81
Dollar amount of shares repurcha: $ 558 $ 70C $ 1,49¢
Average price paid per she $ 16.3¢ $ 16.5: $ 18.5:
Range of price paid per she $14.14 to $18.2 $10.34 to $22.6 $16.67 to $20.1

We have had stock repurchase programs in the pddiave repurchased shares on a quarterly bases thie
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 under new and exgtinograms. Our most recent program was authobiyesur
Board of Directors on October 27, 2009 to repurehgsto $1 billion of our common stock. This pragrdoes not
have an expiration date and as of April 2, 201@7&illion remained authorized for future repurass

Note 11. Segment Information

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we modifieur segment reporting structure to more read#yctm our
operating structure. The following modificationsreenade to our segment reporting structure: (igEmise Vault
products moved to the Storage and Server Managesegnient from the Security and Compliance segnagiot;
(i) Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) offerings movecither the Security and Compliance segmerti®Storage
and Server Management segment from the Servicesesggbased on the nature of the service delivreere
were no changes to the Consumer or Other segnidr@siew reporting structure more directly aligns diperating
segments with our markets and customers, and vievbat will establish more direct lines of repagi
responsibilities, expedite decision making, andasgle the ability to pursue product integration stndtegic growth
opportunities. Data shown from the prior periods been reclassified to match the current reposingcture. As of
April 2, 2010, our five operating segments are:

» Consumer. Our Consumer segment focuses on delivering derriet security, PC tune-up, and backup
products to individual users and home offic

« Security and ComplianceOur Security and Compliance segment focuses aviging large, medium, and
small-sized businesses with solutions for endpsgcurity and management, compliance, messaging
management, and data loss prevention solutionselpducts allow our customers to secure, pravjsioc
remotely access their laptops, PCs, mobile devared servers. We also provide our customers withicees
delivered through our SaaS security offerir

» Storage and Server Managemer@ur Storage and Server Management segment foonga®viding large,
medium and small-sized businesses with storageseamver management, backup, archiving, and data
protection solutions across heterogeneous storadjeexver platforms, as well as services delivénezligh
our Saas offering:

« Services. Our Services segment provides customers withdmphtation services and solutions designed to
assist them in maximizing the value of their Symeargoftware. Our offerings include consulting, bass
critical services, education, and managed secseityices

e Other. Our Other segment is comprised of sunset produralgproducts nearing the end of their life cyttle.
also includes general and administrative experasasrtization of acquired product rights, intangiagsets,
and other assets; goodwill impairment charges;ggsasuch as stock-based compensation and restnggtur
and certain indirect costs that are not chargdéddmther operating segments. Our provision foomne taxes
loss from joint venture, and non-operating itenughsas interest income and interest expense, soe al
allocated to this segmet
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The accounting policies of the segments are the senthose described in the Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies. There are no intersegmentss@er chief operating decision maker evaluate®peance
primarily based on net revenue. Except for googhasldisclosed in Note 5, the majority of our asse¢ not
discretely identified by segment. The depreciatiod amortization of our property, equipment, arsdédold
improvements are allocated based on headcounsagpecifically identified by segment.

Segment information
The following table presents a summary of our ojiregesegments:

Storage and

Security and Server Total
Consumer  Compliance Management Services Other Company
(% in millions)

Fiscal 2010

Net revenue $1,871 $1,411 $2,28i $41€ $ — $5098
Percentage of total net rever 31% 24% 38% 7% 0% 10C%

Operating income (los! 86( 371 1,097 42 (1,439 93¢
Operating margin of segme 46% 26% 48% 10% *

Depreciation and amortization expel 29 25 41 8 734 837

Fiscal 2009

Net revenue $1,77: $1,45( $2,49: $432 % 1 $6,15(
Percentage of total net rever 2% 24% 40% 7% 0% 10C%

Operating income (los! 94¢ 44C 1,081 33 (8,972 (6,470
Operating margin of segme 53% 30% 43% 8% *

Depreciation and amortization expel 15 25 54 9 83C 93:

Fiscal 2008

Net revenue $1,74¢ $1,44: $2,30: $381 % 2 $5,87¢
Percentage of total net rever 30% 25% 3% 6% 0% 10C%

Operating income (lost 93¢ 41¢ 72C (23) (1,459 60z
Operating margin of segme 54% 29% 31% (6)% *

Depreciation and amortization expel 7 24 64 8 812 91t

* Percentage not meaningf

Product revenue information

Net revenue from sales of our core consumer sgqumatducts within our Consumer segment represe2gés,
27%, and 28% of our total net revenue for fiscdl®@®009, and 2008, respectively.

Net revenue from sales of our endpoint securityraadagement products within our Security and Ccanpk
segment represented 10%, 11%, and 12% of ourrtetakvenue during fiscal 2010, 2009, and 200 aesvely.

Net revenue from sales of our storage and avaithalbilanagement products within our Storage and&erv
Management segment represented 11%, 12%, and 1&% tftal revenue during fiscal 2010, 2009, and&0
respectively.

Net revenue from sales of our data protection prtsiwithin our Storage and Server Management seggmen
represented 20% of our total revenue during fig2€4al0, 2009, and 2008.
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Geographical Information

The following table represents revenue amountsrtegdor products shipped to customers in the spading

regions:

Year Ended

April 3, March 28,
April 2, 2010 2009 2008

(In millions)
Net revenue
United State: $ 2967 $3,02¢ $ 2,81«
United Kingdom 642 68t 73C
Other foreign countrie( 2,37¢ 2,441 2,33(

$ 598 $6,15( $ 5,874

@) No individual country represented more than 10%hefrespective total

The table below lists our property and equipmeet,af accumulated depreciation, by geographic akéth the
exception of property and equipment, we do nottifieor allocate our assets by geographic area:

Year Ended
April 3,
April 2, 2010 2009
(In millions)
Long-lived assets
United State: $ 782 $ 811
Foreign countrie@ 167 162

$ 94¢  § 97¢

(@ No individual country represented more than 10%hefrespective total

Significant customers

In fiscal 2010 and 2008, one distributor, Ingrantidiaccounted for 10% of our total net revenueathb
periods. In fiscal 2009, Ingram Micro did not acnbfor 10% of total net revenue. Revenue from Ingidicro is
included in our Security and Compliance, Storage $@rver Management and Services segments. Otibdist
arrangements with Ingram Micro consist of seveaa-axclusive, independently negotiated agreemeitisits
subsidiaries, each of which cover different cowstior regions. Each of these agreements is selyanatgptiated
and is independent of any other contract (suchraasier distribution agreement), and these agreisraea not
based on the same form of contract. In fiscal 28292008, one reseller, Digital River accountedLféfo and 11%
of our total net revenues, respectively. Revenom Digital River is included in our Consumer segimémfiscal
2010, we launched a new, internally-developed eCeroenplatform, which will reduce our reliance orgital
River.

Note 12. Employee Benefits and Stoc-Based Compensatiot

401(k) plan

We maintain a salary deferral 401(k) plan for &lbor domestic employees. This plan allows empleyee
contribute up to 50% of their pretax salary uph® maximum dollar limitation prescribed by the i Revenue
Code. We match 50% of the employee’s contribufidre maximum match in any given plan year is 3%hef t
employeeskligible compensation, up to $6,000. Our contritmsi under the plan were $22 million, $20 milliond
$24 million, in fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008, regjpety.
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Stock purchase plans
2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In September 2008, our stockholders approved tB8 Einployee Stock Purchase Plan (*2008 ESPP”) and
reserved 20 million shares of common stock forasse thereunder. As of April 2, 2010, 16 milliorasks remain
available for issuance under the 2008 ESPP.

Subiject to certain limitations, our employees miagteto have 2% to 10% of their compensation wittthe
through payroll deductions to purchase shares wiheon stock under the 2008 ESPP. Employees purcihases o
common stock at a price per share equal to 85%eofdir market value on the purchase date at the&each six-
month purchase period.

2002 Executive Officers’ Stock Purchase Plan

In September 2002, our stockholders approved tB2 Executive Officers’ Stock Purchase Plan andrvesk
250,000 shares of common stock for issuance thdezuwhich was amended by our Board of Director&inuary
2008. The purpose of the plan is to provide exgeutificers with a means to acquire an equity edéen Symantec
at fair market value by applying a portion or dltleeir respective bonus payments towards the @selprice. As of
April 2, 2010, 40,401 shares have been issued uthdagylan and 209,599 shares remain availableutard
issuance. Shares reserved for issuance undedahnisipve not been adjusted for the stock dividends.

Stock award plans
2000 Director Equity Incentive Plan

In September 2000, our stockholders approved tB8 Blirector Equity Incentive Plan and reserved
50,000 shares of common stock for issuance thesguStockholders increased the number of shars®ok that
may be issued by 50,000 in both September 200&aptember 2007. The purpose of this plan is toigedthe
members of the Board of Directors with an oppottuto receive common stock for all or a portiortloé retainer
payable to each director for serving as a membaehBirector may elect any portion up to 100% efréttainer to
be paid in the form of stock. As of April 2, 20X0total of 109,881 shares had been issued undepldm and
40,119 shares remained available for future isselanc

2004 Equity Incentive Plan

Under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, (“2004 Plamtiy Board of Directors, or a committee of the Rbaf
Directors, may grant incentive and nonqualifiectcktoptions, stock appreciation rights, restrictextls units
(“RSUs"), or restricted stock awards (“RSASs”) to @oyees, officers, directors, consultants, indepand
contractors, and advisors to us, or to any pasetiisidiary, or affiliate of ours. The purpose & #004 Plan is to
attract, retain, and motivate eligible persons wehm®sent and potential contributions are import@aour success
by offering them an opportunity to participate i duture performance through equity awards oflstmations and
stock bonuses. Under the terms of the 2004 Plargxbrcise price of stock options may not be lleas 1.00% of th
fair market value on the date of grant. Optionsegaelty vest over a four-year period. Options grdrggor to
October 2005 generally have a maximum term of esaryand options granted thereafter generally hamaximurr
term of seven years.

As of April 2, 2010, we have reserved 132 millidrages for issuance under the 2004 Plan. Thesessimatade
18 million shares originally reserved for issuanoéer the 2004 Plan upon its adoption by our stolcldrs in
September 2004, 24 million shares that were traresf¢o the 2004 Plan from the 1996 Equity Incentian,
(“1996 Plan”), and 40 million and 50 million shatbat were approved for issuance on the amendnneint a
restatement of the 2004 Plan at our 2006 and 2008z meeting of stockholders, respectively. Initaito the
shares currently reserved under the 2004 Planslaanes reacquired by us from options outstandinigiuthe 1996
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Plan upon their cancellation will also be addeth®2004 Plan reserve. As of April 2, 2010, 59 imnillshares
remain available for future grant under the 200ahPI

Assumed Vontu stock options

In connection with our fiscal 2008 acquisition aéifu, we assumed all unexercised, outstanding mptio
purchase Vontu common stock. Each unexercisediamalifig option assumed was converted into an opdion
purchase Symantec common stock after applyingxbleagge ratio of 0.5351 shares of Symantec comitoak $or
each share of Vontu common stock. In total, alixeneised, outstanding Vontu options were converitmoptions
to purchase approximately 2.2 million shares of &ytac common stock. As of April 2, 2010, total wagnized
compensation cost adjusted for estimated forfestueéated to unexercised, outstanding Vontu st@dlons was
approximately $2 million.

Furthermore, all shares obtained upon exerciseoésted VVontu options were converted into the right
receive cash of $9.33 per share upon vesting. daévalue of the assumed exercised, unvested Mapttans on
the date of acquisition was approximately $7 milJiassuming no options are forfeited prior to vegtiAs of
April 2, 2010, total unrecognized compensation eafftisted for estimated forfeitures related to eised, unvested
Vontu stock options was immaterial.

The assumed options retained all applicable temdsvasting periods, except for certain options tiete
accelerated according to a change in control pi@mviand will generally vest within a twelve montéripd from the
date of acquisition and certain other options #ested in full as of the acquisition date. In gahdhe assumed
options typically vest over a period of four yefism the original date of grant of the option arav& a maximum
term of ten years.

Other stock option plans

Options remain outstanding under several othekatption plans, including the 2001 Non-Qualifieduiiy
Incentive Plan, the 1999 Acquisition Plan, the 18, and various plans assumed in connectionaeifuisitions.
No further options may be granted under any ofahptans

Valuation of stock-based awards

The fair value of each stock option granted undgregjuity incentive plans is estimated on the dagrant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model whik following weighted-average assumptions:

Employee Stock Options

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008
Expected life 3 year: 3 year 3 year:
Expected volatility 44% 3% 33%
Risk-free interest rat 1.47% 2.04% 4.52%

Changes in the Black-Scholes valuation assumptiodsour estimated forfeiture rate may change ttimate
of fair value for stock-based compensation ande¢heted expense recognized. There have not beemateyial
changes to our stock-based compensation expende dhanges in our valuation assumptions of staded
awards.
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Stock-based compensation expense

The following table sets forth the total stock-lthsempensation expense recognized in our Consetidat
Statements of Operations.

Year Ended
April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008

(In millions, except per share data

Cost of revenu— Content, subscription, and maintena $ 14 $ 11 % 13
Cost of revenu— License 2 3 4
Sales and marketir 59 66 58
Research and developmt 53 49 58
General and administrati 27 28 31
Total stocl-based compensatic 15t 157 164
Tax benefit associated with st-based compensation expel (43) (44) (42)
Net effect of stoc-based compensation expense on opera $ 112 $ 112§ 12z

Net effect of stoc-based compensation expense on earnings per— basic $0.14 $0.14 §$ 0.14
Net effect of stoc-based compensation expense on earnings per—diluted $0.14 $0.14 $ 0.14

As of April 2, 2010, total unrecognized compensatiost adjusted for estimated forfeitures relatedrivested
stock options and restricted stock was $44 mildod $136 million, respectively, which is expected¢ recognize
over the remaining weighted-average vesting perddsyears for stock options and 3 years for retsftl stock.

Stock award activity
The following table summarizes stock option acivit

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Aggregate
Number Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
of Shares Price Years Value @
(In millions) (In millions)
Outstanding at April 3, 200 74 $ 18.61 $ 137
Granted 5 15.6¢
Exercisec 8 8.5t
Forfeited@ 2 17.3¢
Expired®) (5) 22.5¢
Outstanding at April 2, 201 64 $ 19.3¢ 33C % 91
Exercisable at April 2, 201 54 $ 19.6¢ 292 % 83
Vested and expected to vest at April 2, 2 60 $ 19.47 32 % 88

@) Intrinsic value is calculated as the differencengen the market value of Symantec’s common stock as
April 2, 2010 and the exercise price of the optibhe aggregate intrinsic value of options outstagdind
exercisable includes options with an exercise few $16.77, the closing price of our common lstoc
April 2, 2010, as reported by the NASDAQ Globalea¢IMarket.

(@ Refers to options cancelled before their vest d.
®) Refers to options cancelled on or after their deses.
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The weighted-average fair value per share of optgranted during fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 inclgdi
assumed options was $5.15, $5.26, and $6.03, riasgdgcThe total intrinsic value of options exesed during fisci
2010, 2009, and 2008 was $64 million, $111 milliangd $142 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes restricted stochvétgt

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Aggregate
Number Grant Date Remaining Intrinsic
of Shares Fair Value Years Value
(In millions) (In millions)
Outstanding at April 3, 200 11  $ 19.1¢ $ 17t
Granted 11 15.6(
Release( 4 19.0%
Forfeited 2 17.2¢
Outstanding at April 2, 201 16 $ 16.87 1.4C % 26(
Vested and expected to vest at April 2, 2 10 % — 12¢ % 173

The weighted-average grant date fair value peresbirestricted stock granted during fiscal 20002, and
2008, including assumed restricted stock was $1%69.41, and $19.39, respectively. The totalvalue of
restricted stock that vested in fiscal 2010, 2G0®| 2008 was $71 million, $52 million, and $15 roiil,
respectively.

Shares reserved

As of April 2, 2010, we had reserved the followsttares of authorized but unissued common statk (

millions):

Stock purchase plat 16

Stock award plan —

Employee stock option plai 13¢
Total 154

Note 13. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxesaarfollows:

Year Ended
April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008
(In millions)
Current:
Federa $ 62 $161 $ 25€
State — 48 48
Internationa 91 101 12¢
153 31C 42¢
Deferred:
Federa 2 (221) a7e)
State 2 (39 (33
Internationa (42) 33 (5)
(472) (127) (21€)

$ 11z $ 18 $§ 21:

100




Table of Contents

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Pretax income from international operations was8#@lion and $458 million for fiscal 2010 and 2Q08
respectively. Pretax loss from international operet was $1.5 billion in fiscal 2009.

The difference between our effective income tax thiedfederal statutory income tax is as follows:

Year Ended

April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008

(In millions)
Expected Federal statutory t $ 302 $22,299) $ 21¢
State taxes, net of federal ben (2 (8) 6
Goodwill impairment— non deductible — 2,51( —
Foreign earnings taxed at less than the fedem (92 (64) 1)
Domestic production activities deducti (20 (12 (14)
Federal research and development ci (6) 12 @)
Valuation allowance increase (decrease) for Iri€h_ Kl (17) 61 —
Benefit of losses from joint ventu (5) 9) —
Veritas Tax Court Decision (including valuationoallance release¢ (70 — —
Other, ne 5 10 11

$ 112 $ 18 $ 21t

The principal components of deferred tax assetasfellows:

Year Ended
April 2, April 3,
2010 2009
(In millions)
Deferred tax asset
Tax credit carryforward $ 16 $ 20
Net operating loss carryforwards of acquired congs 14¢ 202
Other accruals and reserves not currently tax dédde 137 16C
Deferred revenu 61 57
Loss on investments not currently tax deduct 23 22
Book over tax depreciatic 20 27
State income taxe 36 43
Goodwill 64 77
Other 81 65
58€ 672
Valuation allowanct (67) (109
Deferred tax asse 51¢ 571
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assel (272) (377)
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiar (249 (206)
Net deferred tax asse $ 3 $ (12
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Of the $67 million total valuation allowance progdiagainst our deferred tax assets, approxima&&yndillion
is attributable to acquisition-related assets. Wddaation allowance decreased by $35 million iedls2010, of
which $34 million was attributable to the releasérish deferred tax assets related to our Ver2@80-2001 court
case decision, current year utilization, and a fable change in our ability to use deferred taxesssn our tax
returns; and $2 million was attributable to acdiosirelated assets, offset by a $1 million inceeattributable to
capital losses.

As of April 2, 2010, we have U.S. federal net ogiatalosses attributable to various acquired corngsof
approximately $137 million, which, if not used, hakpire between fiscal 2011 and 2029. These netating loss
carryforwards are subject to an annual limitatioder Internal Revenue Code § 382, but are expédated fully
realized. Furthermore, we have U.S. state net tipgrkoss and credit carryforwards attributableréoious acquired
companies of approximately $233 million and $14liomil, respectively, which will expire in variousé@al years. In
addition, we have foreign net operating loss camyérds attributable to various acquired foreigmpanies of
approximately $374 million net of valuation alloveas, which, under current applicable foreign tax, lean be
carried forward indefinitely.

As a result of the impairment of goodwill in fisgaar 2009, we have cumulative pre-tax book loszes,
measured by the current and prior two years. Wasidered the negative evidence of this cumulatieetpr book
loss position on our ability to continue to recagndeferred tax assets that are dependent upae taixable incom
for realization. We considered the following asifes evidence: the vast majority of the goodwifipairment is nc
deductible for tax purposes and thus will not resutax losses; we have a strong, consistent targaistory; we
have substantial U.S. federal income tax carrylpad&ntial; and we have substantial amounts of sdedduture
reversals of taxable temporary differences fromdrferred tax liabilities. We have concluded tinéd positive
evidence outweighs the negative evidence and, thasthe deferred tax assets as of April 2, 2G1E649 million,
after application of the valuation allowances, r&i@izable on a “more likely than not” basis.

As of April 2, 2010, no provision has been madeféateral or state income taxes on $1.8 billionwhalative
unremitted earnings of certain of our foreign sdiasies since we plan to indefinitely reinvest thesarnings. As of
April 2, 2010, the unrecognized deferred tax lidpilor these earnings was $524 million.

The Company adopted the provisions of new authortguidance on income taxes, effective March287.
The cumulative effect of adopting this new guidaness a decrease in tax reserves of $16 millionltieg in a
decrease to Veritas goodwill of $10 million, anreese of $5 million to the March 31, 2007 Accumediaéarnings
balance, and a $1 million increase in Additionatlga capital. Upon adoption, the gross liabiligr funrecognized
tax benefits as of March 31, 2007 was $456 millexglusive of interest and penalties.
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The aggregate changes in the balance of grossagmized tax benefits since adoption were as follpins

millions):

Beginning balance as of March 31, 2007 (date opado) $45¢€
Settlements and effective settlements with taxa@uittes and related remeasureme @)
Lapse of statute of limitatior (6)
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing prior year 40
Decreases in balances related to tax positionstdigng prior year (6)
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeng current yee 111
Balance as of March 28, 201 $58¢
Settlements and effective settlements with taxa@uittes and related remeasureme 2
Lapse of statute of limitatior 9
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing prior year 31
Decreases in balances related to tax positionstdigng prior year (19
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeng current yee _ 44
Balance as of April 3, 20C $63¢
Settlements and effective settlements with taxaittes and related remeasureme @)
Lapse of statute of limitatior (14
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing prior year 12
Decreases in balances related to tax positions tdldgng prior year (92
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing current yee _ 11
Balance as of April 2, 201 $543

Of the $90 million of changes in gross unrecognizedbenefits during the fiscal year as disclodsuva,
approximately $1 million was provided through puasé accounting in connection with acquisitionsryfiscal
2010. This gross liability is reduced by offsettiag benefits associated with the correlative éffet potential
transfer pricing adjustments, interest deductians, state income taxes, as well as payments matiedo

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits at Aprie@10, $535 million, if recognized, would favoralaffect the
Company'’s effective tax rate, while $8 million wdwdffect the cumulative translation adjustmentsweler, one or
more of these unrecognized tax benefits could bgstito a valuation allowance if and when recogdin a future
period, which could impact the timing of any reth&ffective tax rate benefit.

Our policy to include interest and penalties reldtegross unrecognized tax benefits within ouwvgion for
income taxes did not change upon the adoptioneohdw authoritative guidance on income taxes. Ail&p 2010,
before any tax benefits, we had $102 million ofraed interest and accrued penalties on unrecogtezelenefits.
Interest included in our provision for income taxess a benefit of approximately $34 million for §ear ended
April 2, 2010. If the accrued interest and penaltie not ultimately become payable, amounts aconikde
reduced in the period that such determination idamand reflected as a reduction of the overadiime tax
provision.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. on a fedbeadis and in many U.S. state and foreign jurigatist Our
two most significant tax jurisdictions are the Ua8d Ireland. Our tax filings remain subject torekzation by
applicable tax authorities for a certain lengthiwfe following the tax year to which those filingdate. Our 2000
through 2009 tax years remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for Uf&leral tax
purposes, and our 2006 through 2009 fiscal yeangiresubject to examination by the appropriate gawental
agencies for Irish tax purposes. Other signifigansdictions include California, Japan, the UK dndia. As of
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April 2, 2010, we are under examination by the IRgarding Veritas U.S. federal income taxes fera2b02
through 2005 tax years and Symantec U.S. fedecahie taxes for the fiscal years 2005 through 2688 ¢ars. In
addition, we are under examination by the CaliferfRianchise Tax Board for the Symantec Califomné@ine taxes
for the 2004 through 2005 tax years. We are alsteuaudit by the Indian income tax authoritiesffecal years
2006 through 2007, respectively.

We continue to monitor the progress of ongoing medax controversies and the impact, if any, ofetkgecter
tolling of the statute of limitations in varioustag jurisdictions. Considering these facts, waéwa there is a
reasonable possibility of significant changes tototal unrecognized tax benefits within the newtlive months.

On May 27, 2009, the U.S. Court of Appeals forfeth Circuit overturned a 2005 U.S. Tax Courtmgliin
Xilinx v. Commissioneg, holding that stock-based compensation relatedgearch and development (“R&D”) must
be shared by the participants of a R&D cost shaaimgngement. The Ninth Circuit held that relatadips to such
an arrangement must share stock option costs, thstwnding the U.S. Tax Court’s finding that untetbparties in
such an arrangement would not share such costar8gmhas a similar R&D cost sharing arrangemeplace.
The Ninth Circuit’s reversal of the U.S. Tax Coartlecision changed our estimate of stock opticated|tax
benefits previously recognized under the authdvitgeguidance on income taxes. As a result of thehiNCircuit's
ruling, we increased our liability for unrecogniziadt benefits, recording a tax expense of approteip&7 million
and a reduction of additional paid-in capital opagximately $30 million in the first quarter of ¢éial 2010. On
January 13, 2010, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appealthdrew its issued opinion. On March 22, 20h@, inth
Circuit Court of Appeals issued a revised decisifiitming the decision of the Tax Court. The Nit@frcuit's
revised decision agreed with the Tax Caufihding that related companies are not requioeshtaire such costs. A
result of the Ninth Circuit’s revised ruling, wdeased the liability established in the first qeaxf fiscal 2010,
which resulted in a $7 million tax benefit and is&se of additional paid-in capital of approximat&® million in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. For fiscal 20ftere was no net income tax expense impact.

On March 29, 2006, we received a Notice of Deficiefrom the IRS claiming that we owe $867 millioh o
additional taxes, excluding interest and penalfi@sthe 2000 and 2001 tax years based on an abdiritas. On
June 26, 2006, we filed a petition with the U.Sx Taurt protesting the IRS claim for such additiclaaes. During
July 2008, we completed the trial phase of the Taurt case, which dealt with the remaining issueeoed in the
assessment. At trial, the IRS changed its posititin respect to this remaining issue, which deadahe remainin
amount at issue from $832 million to $545 milli@xcluding interest. We filed our post-trial briéfisOctober 2008
and rebuttal briefs in November 2008 with the O.&x Court.

On December 10, 2009, the U.S. Tax Court issuenpitsion, finding that our transfer pricing methéatyy,
with appropriate adjustments, was the best metboddsessing the value of the transaction at isstveeen Veritas
and its offshore subsidiary. The Tax Court judgevited guidance as to how adjustments would be raderrect
the application of the method used by Veritas. Weeaasured and decreased our liability for unreaaghiax
benefits accordingly, resulting in a $78.5 millimx benefit in the third quarter of fiscal 2010n&licomputations as
directed by the Ruling are not complete and, adoghg, we may make further adjustments to our takility in the
future. The Tax Court ruling is subject to app&%é have $110 million on deposit with the IRS peritag to this
matter.

On December 2, 2009, we received a Revenue AgRepert from the IRS for the Veritas 2002 througB%0
tax years assessing additional taxes due. We agtie&30 million of the tax assessment, excludinigiest, but wil
contest the other $80 million of tax assessed #mkRpalties. The unagreed issues concern trapsiging matters
comparable to the one that was resolved in ourrfaevtheVeritas v. Commission@rax Court decision. On
January 15, 2010, we filed a protest with the IR8dnnection with the $80 million of tax assessed.

In July 2008, we reached an agreement with theddtfserning our eligibility to claim a lower tax eatn a
distribution made from a Veritas foreign subsidiprior to the July 2005 acquisition. The distrilaatiwvas intended
to be made pursuant to the American Jobs Creat@m®2004, and therefore eligible for a 5.25% etfifee
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U.S. federal rate of tax, in lieu of the 35% statytrate. The final impact of this agreement is yeitknown since
this relates to the taxability of earnings that @tfeerwise the subject of the tax years 2000-2@@isfer pricing
dispute, which in turn is being addressed in the. Oax Court. To the extent that we owe taxesrasuat of the
transfer pricing dispute, we anticipate that therémental tax due from this negotiated agreemehtiedrease. We
currently estimate that the most probable outcaimm this negotiated agreement will be that we wille

$13 million or less, for which an accrual has alyeheen made. We made a payment of $130 millighédRS for
this matter in May 2006. We applied $110 milliontlos payment as a deposit on the outstandingfeapsicing
matter for the tax years 2000-2004.

Note 14. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computédeobasis of the weighted average number of stadre
common stock outstanding during the period. Dilitadhings per share also includes the incremefitait ef
dilutive potential common shares outstanding dutiregperiod using the treasury stock method. Ditufiotential
common shares include shares underlying outstaredowx options, stock awards, warrants, and coienotes.

The components of earnings per share are as follows

Year Ended
April 2, April 3, March 28,
2010 2009 2008

(In millions, except per share data)
Net income (loss) per share — basic:

Net income (loss $ 714 $6,78¢) $ 41C
Net income (loss) per sha— basic $08 $(817) $ 0.47
Weightec-average outstanding common shg 81C 831 86¢
Net income (loss) per shar— diluted:

Net income (loss $ 714 $6,78) $ 4i1C
Net income (loss) per sha— diluted $087 $(817) $ 0.4¢
Weightec-average outstanding common she 81C 831 86¢
Shares issuable from assumed exercise of of 6 — 15
Dilutive impact of restricted stock and restricstdck units 3 — 1
Total weighte-average shares outstand— diluted 81¢ 831 884

The following potential common shares were excluflech the computation of diluted earnings per shase
their effect would have been anti-dilutive:

Year Ended
April 2, April 3, March 28,
20100 2009 2008
(In millions)
Stock options 47 61 66
Restricted stock unit — 2 —
47 63 66

(@) For these fiscal years, the effects of the warresstsed and the option purchased in connection téth
convertible Senior Notes were excluded becausdisaassed in Note 8, they have no impact on dilettings
per share until our average stock price for thdiegiple period reaches $27.3175 per share and $}@tshare,
respectively
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Note 15. Subsequent Event:

In April 2010, we signed definitive agreements ¢qure PGP Corporation (“PGP”) and GuardianEdge
Technologies, Inc. (“GuardianEdge”), privately-h&l§-based providers of email and data encryptiovices. We
expect to acquire PGP and GuardianEdge for a pseghidce of approximately $300 million and $70 oiilin
cash, respectively. The acquisitions are expeatetbse by the end of the first quarter of fisdal 2 and therefore a
disclosure of the purchase price allocation cabeanade at this time.

In April 2010, we announced our strategy for then§ldting Services business to expand our partresgsterr
to better leverage their customer reach and opa@tscale. As a result of this change in strategyexpect to take
a restructuring charge in the range of $40 milti@$50 million during fiscal 2011. The Consultingr@ices busine:
is included in the Services segment in this anrejabrt.

On May 19, 2010, we signed a definitive agreemeiaicquire certain assets of VeriSign, Inc. (“Veagi8), a
publicly-held USbased provider of internet authentication and damaiming services. The acquired assets relz
the authentication business of VeriSign. As pathefagreement, we will also acquire VeriSign's S5é%rest in
VeriSign Japan KK. We anticipate a purchase pricgproximately $1.28 billion to be paid in cashated to this
acquisition, which is subject to regulatory appiewand other closing conditions. We expect the ssitipn to close
during the second quarter of our fiscal 2011.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorizedhénQity of
Mountain View, State of California, on the 21st ddyMay 2010.

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemshose signature appears below constitutes

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

By /s/ Enrique Saler

Enrique Salem,

President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director

and appoints Enriqgue Salem, James A. Beer and Scadthylor, and each or any of them, his attornayct, each
with the power of substitution, for him in any aalticapacities to sign any and all amendmentsisoréport on
Form 10-K and any other documents in connectiorethigh, with the Securities and Exchange Commission
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact, and eacthefit, full power and authority to do and performheand every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done irabadt the premises, as fully to all intents angpses as he
might or could do in person, hereby ratifying aoafirming all that such attorneys-in-fact, or histloeir substitute
or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be doneirtue hereof. This Power of Attorney may bgn&d in sever.

counterparts.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpithe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated below.

Signature

/sl Enrique Saler

Enrique Salem

/sl James A. Bet

James A. Beer

/s Phillip Bullock

Phillip Bullock

/sl John W. Thompsc

John W. Thompso

/sl Stephen M. Benne

Stephen M. Benne

/s/ Michael A. Browr

Michael A. Brown

/s/ William T. Coleman I

William T. Coleman 1l

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director
(Principal Executive Officer
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
Senior Vice President, Finance and
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer

Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director
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May 21, 201!

May 21, 201!

May 21, 201

May 21, 201!

May 21, 201

May 21, 201

May 21, 201!
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Signature

/sl Frank E. Dangeal

Frank E. Dangear

/sl Geraldine B. Laybourr

Geraldine B. Laybourn

/s/ David L. Mahone

David L. Mahoney

/s/ Robert S. Mille

Robert S. Miller

/s/ Daniel Schulma

Daniel Schulmat

/s! V. Paul Unrut

V. Paul Unruf
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

May 21, 201

May 21, 201I

May 21, 201I

May 21, 201

May 21, 201!

May 21, 201
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Schedule Ii
SYMANTEC CORPORATION
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Additions
Balance at Charged Against Chargedto  Amount  Balance at
Beginning Revenue and to Other Written Off End of
of Period Operating Expense) Accounts or Used Period
(In millions)
Allowance for doubtful account
Year ended April 2, 201 $ 9 $ 3 $ — $ @) $8
Year ended April 3, 200 9 1 — Q) 9
Year ended March 28, 20( 8 1 — — 9
Reserve for product returr
Year ended April 2, 201 $ 12 $ 46 $ — $ (49 $9
Year ended April 3, 200 14 52 — (54) 12
Year ended March 28, 20( 12 67 — (65) 14
Reserve for rebate
Year ended April 2, 201 $ 70 $181 $96@  $(27¢) $71
Year ended April 3, 200 82 192 91 (29%) 70
Year ended March 28, 20! 10C 221 10¢) (34¢) 82

(1) Reserve for product returns and reserve for relzatesharged against reven

(2 Balances represent unrecognized customer rebatewithbe amortized within 12 months and are reearas a
reduction of deferred revent
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Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporationS-8 333-11987:
of Symantec Corporatic

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and S-8 333-12640:!
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Symantec

Corporation

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Rest 10-Q 000-17781
Certificate of Incorporation of Symantec

Corporation

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior 8-K  000-17781
Participating Preferred Stock of Symantec

Corporation

Bylaws, as amended, of Symantec Corpore 8-K  00C-17781
Form of Common Stock Certifica S-3ASR 33:-13923(
Indenture related to the 0.75% Convertible Senior 8-K  000-17781
Notes, due 2011, dated as of June 16, 2006, be

Symantec Corporation and U.S. Bank National

Association, as trustee (including form of

0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 20

Indenture related to the 1.00% Convertible Senior 8-K  000-17781
Notes, due 2013, dated as of June 16, 2006, be

Symantec Corporation and U.S. Bank National

Association, as trustee (including form of

1.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 20

Form of Master Terms and Conditions For 10-Q 000-17781
Convertible Bond Hedging Transactions between

Symantec Corporation and each of Bank of

America, N.A. and Citibank, N.A., respectively,

dated June 9, 2006, including Exhibit and Schedule

thereto

Form of Master Terms and Conditions For Warr 10-Q 000-17781
Issued by Symantec Corporation between Syme

Corporation and each of Bank of America, N.A.

Citibank, N.A., respectively, dated June 9, 2006,

including Exhibit and Schedule there

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2006, by 8-K  000-17781
among Symantec Corporation, the lenders party

thereto (the “Lenders”), JPMorgan Chase Bank,

National Association, as Administrative Age

Citicorp USA, Inc., as Syndication Agent, Bank of

America, N.A., Morgan Stanley Bank and UBS

Loan Finance LLC, as Co-Documentation Agents,

and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Citigroup

Global Markets Inc., as Joint Bookrunners and <

Lead Arrangers, and related agreeme

Form of Indemnification Agreement with Officers S-1  33-28655
and Directors, as amended (form for agreements

entered into prior to January 17, 20!

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers, 8-K  000-17781
Directors and Key Employet

Veritas Software Corporation 1993 Equity Incen 10-K 000-17781
Plan, including form of Stock Option Agreem:
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3.01
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4.01
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Symantec Corporation 1996 Equity Incentive Plan10-K 000-17781 10.05 06/09/0¢

as amended, including form of Stock Option

Agreement and form of Restricted Stock Purchase

Agreemen

Symantec Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan, restated and amended January 1, 2010, as

adopted December 15, 20

Brightmail Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, including 10-K  000-17781
form of Stock Option Agreement and form of

Notice of Assumptiol

Altiris, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Ple S-8 33:-14198¢
Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under the S-8 333-14198¢
Altiris, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Ple

Symantec Corporation 2000 Director Equity 10-K  000-17781
Incentive Plan, as amend

Symantec Corporation 2001 Non-Qualified Equity 10-K  000-17781
Incentive Plar

Amended and Restated Symantec Corporation 208K  000-17781
Executive Officer’ Stock Purchase Pl

Altiris, Inc. 2002 Stock Pla S-8  33:-14198¢
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Altiris, S-8 333-14198¢
Inc. 2002 Stock Pla

Vontu, Inc. 2002 Stock Option/Stock Issuance F S-8 333-14810:
as amende

Form of Vontu, Inc. Stock Option Agreeme S-8 33:14810°
Veritas Software Corporation 2003 Stock Incentivel0-K  000-17781
Plan, as amended and restated, including form of

Stock Option Agreement, form of Stock Option

Agreement for Executives and Senior VPs and {

of Notice of Stock Option Assumptic

Symantec Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan10-K 000-17781
as amended, including Stock Option Grant —

Terms and Conditions, form of RSU Award

Agreement, and form of RSU Award Agreement

Non-Employee Director

Altiris, Inc. 2005 Stock Pla S-8 33:-14198¢
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under S-8 333-14198¢
the Altiris, Inc. 2005 Stock Plan, as amen

Symantec Corporation 2008 Employee Stock 8-K  000-17781
Purchase Pla

Employment Agreement, dated December 15, 2 S-4/A 333-12272:
between Symantec Corporation and Greg Hui

Offer Letter, dated February 8, 2006, from 10-K 000-17781
Symantec Corporation to James A. B

Letter Agreement, dated April 6, 2009, between 8-K  000-17781
Symantec Corporation and John W. Thomg

Employment Agreement, dated September 23, 8-K 000-17781
between Symantec Corporation and Enrique S

FY10 Long Term Incentive Ple 10-Q 00¢-17781
Form of FY10 Executive Annual Incentive Plan —10-Q 000-17781
Chief Executive Office

10.08

99.01

99.02

10.09

10.12

10.01

99.03
99.04

99.02

99.03
10.15

10.17

99.05
99.06
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10.08

10.17

10.01

10.01

10.03
10.01
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04/10/07
04/10/07
06/01/0¢
06/09/0€
01/25/0¢
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04/10/07%

12/17/07
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06/09/0¢
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09/25/0¢
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06/09/0¢
04/09/0¢
09/29/0¢

08/05/0¢
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10.27* Form of FY10 Executive Annual Incentive Plan —10-Q 000-17781 10.02 08/05/0¢
Executive Vice President and Group Presic

10.28" Symantec Senior Executive Incentive Plan, as  10-Q 000-17781 10.03 11/07/0¢
amended and restat

10.29* Symantec Executive Retention Plan, as ame! 10-Q 00C-17781 10.05 08/07/07

10.30" Amendment to the Symantec Executive Retentionl0-Q 000-17781 10.01 02/05/1C
Plan, effective January 1, 20

10.31* Second Amended and Restated Symantec Onlinel0-Q 000-17781 10.02 02/07/07
Store Agreement, by and among Symantec
Corporation, Symantec Limited, Digital River, Inc.
and Digital River Ireland Limited, entered into on
October 19, 200

10.32 Amendment, dated June 20, 2007, to the AmendetD-Q 000-17781 10.01 08/07/07
and Restated Agreement Respecting Certain Rights
of Publicity dated as of August 31, 1990, by and
between Peter Norton and Symantec Corpor:

10.33  Assignment of Copyright and Other Intellectual S-4  33-35385 10.37 06/13/9C
Property Rights, by and between Peter Norton and
Peter Norton Computing, Inc., dated August 31,

1990
10.34  Environmental Indemnity Agreement, dated S-1/A 33383777 10.27 08/06/9¢
April 23, 1999, between Veritas and Fairchild Exhibit C

Semiconductor Corporation, included as Exhibit C
to that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale,
dated March 29, 1999, between Veritas and
Fairchild Semiconductor of Californ

21.01  Subsidiaries of Symantec Corporat

23.01  Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

24.01  Power of Attorney (see Signature page to this
annual report

31.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

31.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamot t
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.011t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.0211 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait t
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

X X X X X XX

§ The exhibits and schedules to this agreement haee bmitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of RegutafieK. We
will furnish copies of any of the exhibits and sdbkes to the SEC upon reque

* Indicates a management contract, compensatorygplarrangemen

* Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitied have been filed separately with the SEC putgoam
request for confidential treatment uniRule 241-2 as promulgated under the Securities Exchange At984.

T Filed by Veritas Software Corporatic

T This exhibit is being furnished, rather than filedd shall not be deemed incorporated by refergnigany filing,
in accordance with Item 601 Regulation -K.
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Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to provide spedifienefits to a select group of management ofyhigimpensated Employees who contribute
materially to the continued growth, development autdre business success of Symantec Corporatibejawvare corporation. This Plan st
be unfunded for tax purposes and for purposesttef Tof ERISA.

The terms of this Plan shall govern all amewt@ferred on or after January 1, 2005. All amodefsrred prior to January 1, 2005, under
the Symantec Corporation Deferred Compensation &igmally adopted November 7, 1996, as amendEtb¢en Plan”), shall continue to
be governed by the terms of the Frozen Plan aridwiheld in a Participant’s Grandfathered Accoumtds Plan as restated and amended
effective January 1, 2010, is intended to complyhail applicable law, including Code Section 4084d related Treasury guidance and
Regulations, and shall be operated and interpiatadcordance with this intention. In order to &ition to the requirements of Code
Section 409A and related Treasury RegulationsCitiamittee may make available to Participants aetrainsition relief provided under
Notices 200-79 and 2007-86, as described more fully in Apperdof this Plan.

ARTICLE 1
Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, unless otheralisarly apparent from the context, the followptgases or terms shall have the following
indicated meanings:

1.1 “Account Balance” shall mean, with respect tcaatiéipant, an entry on the records of the Emplagpral to the sum of the Participant’s
Annual Accounts. The Account Balance shall be &keeping entry only and shall be utilized solelyaadevice for the measurement i
determination of the amounts to be paid to a Hpait, or his or her designated Beneficiary, punsta this Plan. The Account Balance
shall segregate the Grandfathered Accounts frondéferrals made after December 31, 2004, for bogbike purposes, and the portion
of the Account Balance attributable to Grandfatiekecounts shall be distributed in accordance withterms of the Frozen Ple

1.2 “Annual Account” shall mean, with respect to atR#ant, an entry on the records of the Emplagual to the sum of (a) the
Participant’s Annual Deferral Amount, if any, famyaone Plan Year, plus (b) amounts credited ortddhib such amounts pursuant to this
Plan, less (c) all distributions made to the Pgudiat or his or her Beneficiary pursuant to thiarPthat relate to the Annual Account for
such Plan Year. The Annual Account shall be a beeking entry only and shall be utilized solely aewgice for the measurement and
determination of the amounts to be paid to a Hpait, or his or her designated Beneficiary, punst@ this Plan

1.3 “Annual Deferral Amount” shall mean that portioha Participant’s Base Salary, Bonus and Commissibat a Participant defers in
accordance with Article 3 for any one Plan Yeathwiit regard to whether such amounts are withheddcaedited during such Plan Ye

1.4 “Annual Installment Methodshall mean the method used to determine the anodwaich payment due to a Participant who has eléc
receive a benefit over a period of years in acawedavith the applicable provisions of the Plan. @h®unt of each annual payment «

1
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15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.1C

1.11

to the Participant shall be calculated by multiptythe balance of the Participant’s benefit byaation, the numerator of which is one
and the denominator of which is the remaining nunab@nnual payments due to the Participant. Thewarnof the first annual payment
shall be calculated as of the close of business @mound the Participant’s Benefit DistributiontBaand the amount of each subsequent
annual payment shall be calculated on or around aagiversary of such Benefit Distribution Dater parposes of this Plan, the righi
receive a benefit payment in annual installmendd! e treated as the entitlement to a single payr

“Base Salary” shall mean the annual cash comp@msegiating to services performed during any caderyear, including wages,
overtime, bonuses, commissions, tips and other eosgtion reported on Form W-2, excluding stockansj relocation expenses,
incentive payments, non-monetary awards, fringeefissnand allowances that are paid to a Particifan¢mployment services rendered
(whether or not such allowances are included irBmployee’s gross income), and that are treatethd¥Employer as Base Salary for
purposes of the Plan. Base Salary shall be caémlilzfore reduction for compensation voluntarilfeded or contributed by the
Participant pursuant to all qualified or nonquealifiplans of the Employer and shall be calculatéddimde amounts not otherwise
included in the Participant’s gross income undedéC8ections 125, 402(e)(3), 402(h), or 403(b) pamsto plans established by the
Employer; provided, however, that all such amouwvilishbe included in compensation only to the extdvat had there been no such plan,
the amount would have been payable in cash toth@dyee.

“Beneficiary” shall mean one or more persons, susstates or other entities, designated in acnoedwith Article 10, that are entitled
to receive benefits under this Plan upon the def#hParticipant

“Beneficiary Designation Form” shall mean the foestablished from time to time by the Committee,clihinay be electronic in format,
that a Participant completes, signs and returtisedCommittee to designate one or more Benefide

“Benefit Distribution Date” shall mean the date npehich all or an objectively determinable portiaina Participant’s vested benefits
will become eligible for distribution. Except adetwise provided in the Plan, a Participant’s Bangitribution Date shall be
determined based on the earliest to occur of antarescheduled date set forth in Articles 4 thio@gas applicable

“Boarc” shall mean the board of directors of the Comp

“Bonus” shall mean any compensation, annual ormg incentive amounts, or variable pay, in additio Base Salary and
Commissions, earned by a Participant under the &ey s annual bonus, variable pay and/or cash inceptases.

“Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence Gfteange in the ownership,” a “change in the effectontrol” or a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the as” of the Company, as determined in accordance wish3action

In determining whether an event shall be considar&hange in the ownership,” a “change in theatife control” or a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the a<” of the Company, the following provisions shall apj

2
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(&) A “change in the ownership” of the Company sbaltur on the date on which any one person, or tare one person acting as a
group, acquires ownership of stock of the Compaay, together with stock held by such person ougreonstitutes more than 50%
of the total fair market value or total voting paved the stock of the Company, as determined i@tance with Treas. Reg.
81.409A-3(i)(5)(v). If a person or group is consetteither to own more than 50% of the total fagrket value or total voting power
of the stock of the Company, or to have effectirtml of the Company within the meaning of paitgbthis Section, and such
person or group acquires additional stock of thew@any, the acquisition of additional stock by spehson or group shall not be
considered to cause”change in the ownerslt” of the Company

(b) A “change in the effective cont” of the Company shall occur on either of the follogvdates

(©

(i)

(ii)

The date on which any one person, or mag tone person acting as a group, acquires (cadwasred during the 12-month
period ending on the date of the most recent attuidy such person or persons) ownership of stifdcke Company possess
30% or more of the total voting power of the stofkhe Company, as determined in accordance wigad.rReg. 81.409A-3(i)(5)
(vi). If a person or group is considered to pos&&9% or more of the total voting power of the stotkhe Company, and such
person or group acquires additional stock of then@any, the acquisition of additional stock by spehson or group shall not be
considered to causechange in the effective cont” of the Company; o

The date on which a majority of the members ef@ompany’s board of directors is replaced durimgE-month period by
directors whose appointment or election is not esghbby a majority of the members of the Compahgard of directors before
the date of the appointment or election, as deterchin accordance with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i¥{(p)(n determining whether
the event described in the preceding sentencedtasred, the applicable corporation to which therdymust relate shall only
include a corporation identified in accordance iliteas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i)(5)(ii) for which no otrerporation is a majority
shareholder

A “change in the ownership of a substantial porif the assets” of the Company shall occur orddte on which any one person, or
more than one person acting as a group, acquirdmgoacquired during the 12-month period endintherdate of the most recent
acquisition by such person or persons) assets thhenCompany that have a total gross fair marketevabjual to or more than 40% of
the total gross fair market value of all of theedsof the Company immediately before such acdaisitr acquisitions, as determined
in accordance with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i)(5)(Witransfer of assets shall not be treated adarige in the ownership of a
substantial portion of the assets” when such tearisfmade to an entity that is controlled by thareholders of the transferor
corporation, as determined in accordance with Trieag. §1.409-3(i)(5)(vii)(B).

1.1Z “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, rmgytbe amended from time to tin
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1.1Z “Commissions” shall mean the cash commissions edogea Participant during a Plan Year or the EmgitsyFiscal Year, as
determined in accordance with Code Section 409Araladed Treasury Regulatior

1.14 “Committed” shall mean the committee described in Article

1.1 “Company” shall mean Symantec Corporation, a Detavearporation, and any successor to all or subathrall of the Company’s
assets or busines

1.1€ “Director” shall mean any member of the board of directongfEmployer

1.17 “Disability” or “Disabled” shall mean that a Paiipant is either (a) unable to engage in any sulistagainful activity by reason of any
medically determinable physical or mental impairtrtéat can be expected to result in death or cagxpected to last for a continuous
period of not less than 12 months, or (b) by reafany medically determinable physical or mentgbairment that can be expected to
result in death or can be expected to last fomdirwoous period of not less than 12 months, rengiunicome replacement benefits for a
period of not less than 3 months under an accigeathealth plan covering employees of the Empldyer.purposes of this Plan, a
Participant shall be deemed Disabled if determiodak totally disabled by the Social Security Adistiration. A Participant shall also
deemed Disabled if determined to be disabled inm@iance with the applicable disability insurancegpam of the Employer, provided
that the definition o"disability” applied under such disability insurance programpulas with the requirements of this Secti

1.1¢ “Election Form” shall mean the form establishedhfrbme to time by the Committee that a Participarpletes, signs, transmits,
authorizes and returns to the Committee, which bwain electronic format, to make an election urtderPlan and shall evidence the
terms of the Plan. Unless otherwise provided ia Bian herein or determined by the Committee, thstmecent Election Form accepted
with respect to a Participant shall supersede aioy Blection Forms for such Participant with resip® future deferrals

1.1¢ “Employe(” shall mean a person who is an employee of an Erapl

1.2C “Employer” shall mean the Company and/or any ofiibsidiaries that have been selected by the Bogrdrticipate in the Plan and
have adopted the Plan as a sponsor. For purposiegesfining whether a Participant has experieac8dparation from Service,
“Employe” shall be defined consistent with Treas. Reg. §94A-1(h)(3).

1.21 “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Secaudtyf 1974, as it may be amended from time to ti
1.2Z “Fiscal Yea" shall mean the fiscal year of the Company, as neaghlanged from time to tim

1.2% “Grandfathered Account(s)” shall mean amounts dete(including earnings thereon) that were earmebiva@sted prior to January 1,
2005 and that are not intended to be subject teeGmttion 409A in accordance with Treas. Reg. 82A46(a)(2). Such amounts are
accounted for separate and apart from a Parti¢ s Account Balance and are governed by the terrttsedfrozen Plar
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1.24 *401(k) Plan” shall mean a plan qualified under E&kction 401(a) that contains a cash or defemrahgement described in Code
Section 401(k), adopted by the Employer, as it mamended from time to time, or any successoetts

1.2t “Participant” shall mean any Employee (a) who igible to participate in the Plan, and (b) whoseaKed Election Form and
Beneficiary Designation Form are accepted by the@itee.

1.2¢ “Performance-Based Compensation” shall mean congpie@nsthe entitlement to or amount of which is @ogent on the satisfaction of
pre-established organizational or individual parfance criteria relating to a performance periodtdéast 12 consecutive months, as
determined by the Committee in accordance with SrB&g. §1.409-1(e).

1.27 “Plan” shall mean the Symantec Corporation Defe@edhpensation Plan, which shall govern amountsroefeon or after January 1,
2005, and which, as restated and amended as cdir§ah 2008, is evidenced by this instrument, asay be amended from time to tir
and by any other documents that together withitlssument define a Participant’s rights to amowméslited to his or her Account
Balance.

1.2¢€ “Plan Year” shall mean a period beginning on Jaydaof each calendar year and continuing througbeer 31 of such calendar
year.

1.2¢€ “Retiremen” “Retire(s” or “Retire” shall mean a Separation from Service on or afeeattainment of age 6

1.3C “Separation from Service” shall mean a terminatbservices provided by a Participant to the Emetowhether voluntarily or
involuntarily, other than by reason of death ordbitity, as determined by the Committee in accocganith Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(h).
In determining whether a Participant has experidrec8eparation from Service, the following provisighall apply

(a) For a Participant who provides services to th@leger as an Employee, except as otherwise providedrt (c) of this Section, a
Separation from Service shall occur when such épatit has experienced a termination of employmaitht the Employer. A
Participant shall be considered to have experieadetdmination of employment when the facts andueirstances indicate that the
Participant and the Employer reasonably anticigadeéeither (i) no further services will be perf@anfor the Employer after a certain
date, or (ii) that the level of bona fide servitles Participant will perform for the Employer afterch date (whether as an Employee
or as an independent contractor) will permanengigréase to no more than 20% of the average lev®md fide services performed
by such Participant (whether as an Employee ondegendent contractor) over the immediately prexg86-month period (or the
full period of services to the Employer if the Rapant has been providing services to the Emplég®s than 36 months

If a Participant is on military leave, sigdalve, or other bona fide leave of absence, theaymmant relationship between the
Participant and the Employer shall be treated atirnaing intact, provided that the period of suehJe does not exceed 6 months, or
if longer, so long as the Participant retains atrtg reemployment with the Employer under an ajalie statute or by contract. If the
period of a military leave, sick leave,
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(b)

(©

other bona fide leave of absence exceedsrihm@nd the Participant does not retain a rigntéonployment under an applicable
statute or by contract, the employment relationshigll be considered to be terminated for purpo$ésis Plan as of the first day
immediately following the end of such 6-month pdritn applying the provisions of this paragrapkeave of absence shall be
considered a bona fide leave of absence only iktlea reasonable expectation that the Particiwdinteturn to perform services for
the Employer.

For a Participant who provides services to th@legrer as an independent contractor, except aswigesprovided in part (c) of this
Section, a Separation from Service shall occur uperexpiration of the contract (or in the casenofe than one contract, all
contracts) under which services are performedhiier®mployer, provided that the expiration of suchtact(s) is determined by the
Committee to constitute a good-faith and completmination of the contractual relationship betwgenParticipant and the
Employer.

For a Participant who provides services to th@legrer as both an Employee and an independentamiot; a Separation from
Service generally shall not occur until the Papicit has ceased providing services for the Emplagédroth as an Employee and a
independent contractor, as determined in accordaitbethe provisions set forth in parts (a) anddbjhis Section, respectively.
Similarly, if a Participant either (i) ceases puivg services for the Employer as an independemtractor and begins providing
services for the Employer as an Employee, or é@ses providing services for the Employer as anl&rap and begins providing
services for the Employer as an independent cdotrabe Participant will not be considered to haxperienced a Separation from
Service until the Participant has ceased providewyices for the Employer in both capacities, dsrdgned in accordance with the
applicable provisions set forth in parts (a) andoftthis Section

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions in thistg@), if a Participant provides services for #rmployer as both an Employee ¢
as a Director, to the extent permitted by Treag. B&.409A-1(h)(5) the services provided by suctii€lpant as a Director shall not
be taken into account in determining whether thei¢heant has experienced a Separation from Semscan Employet

1.31 “Specified Employee” shall mean any Participant iddetermined to be a “key employee” (as defineden Code Section 416(i)
without regard to paragraph (5) thereof) for thplapable period, as determined annually by the Cdtemin accordance with Treas.
Reg. 81.409-1(i). In determining whether a Participant is a Sfied Employee, the following provisions shall &pg

(@)

The Committee’s identification of the individualo fall within the definition of “key employeeinder Code Section 416(i) (withc
regard to paragraph (5) thereof) shall be based thpo 12-month period ending on each Decembét(Bsferred to below as the
“identification date”). In applying the applicahpeovisions of Code Section 416(i) to identify suetlividuals, “compensation” shall
be determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. 8{c}P%a) without regard to (i) any safe harbor pded in Treas. Reg. §1.415(c)-2
(d), (ii) any of the elective special timing rulgsvided in Treas. Re!

6




Symantec Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan

81.415(c-2(e), and (iii) any of the elective special rulesypded in Treas. Reg. §1.415-2(g); and

(b) Each Participant who is among the individualstidied as a “key employee” in accordance with gajtof this Section shall be
treated as a Specified Employee for purposes sfRlain if such Participant experiences a Separ&tiom Service during the 12-
month period that begins on the Apristfollowing the applicable identification dai

1.3z “Trus®” shall mean one or more trusts established by tlmep@ay in accordance with Article 1

1.3z “Unforeseeable Emergency” shall mean a severe dinhhardship of the Participant resulting from &a)iliness or accident of the
Participant, the Participant’s spouse, the Paditfis Beneficiary or the Participant’s dependestdafined in Code Section 152 without
regard to paragraphs (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)t®x¢eof), (b) a loss of the Participant’s propeng do casualty, or (c) such other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstancesgras a result of events beyond the control oPicipant, all as determined by the
Committee based on the relevant facts and circurostain accordance with Treas. Reg. Section 1.-3(i)(3).

1.34 “Years of Service” shall mean the total numberuff years in which a Participant has been empldyethe Employer. For purposes of
this definition, a year of employment shall be & 8@y period (or 366 day period in the case ofp lear) that, for the first year of
employment, commences on the Employee’s date mighand that, for any subsequent year, commences @amniversary of that hiring
date. A partial year of employment shall not batied as a Year of Servic

ARTICLE 2

Selection, Enroliment, Eligibility

2.1 Selection by Committee. Participation in the Plan shall be limited toedest group of management or highly compensated&raps.
From that group, the Committee shall select, isdtie discretion, those individuals who may actupédrticipate in this Plar

2.2 Enrollment and Eligibility Requirements; Commencemet of Participation .

(&) As a condition to participation, each selectecpteryee shall enroll once they complete, executerahdan to the Election Form and a
Beneficiary Designation Form by the deadline(saleisshed by the Committee in accordance with th@iegble provisions of this
Plan. In addition, the Committee shall establigimftime to time such other enroliment requiremeust# determines, in its sole
discretion, are necessa

(b) Each selected Employee who is eligible to patitg in the Plan shall commence participation éRkan on the date that the
Committee determines that the Employee (i) hasathenrollment requirements set forth in this Pdanal required by the Committee,
including (a) being either an Executive staff menmtyein salary grades 13 (or equivalent) and ab(yeearning more than $150,000
per year, and (c) receiving written notice of hiser eligibility, and (ii) has returned all reqeir documents to the Committee within
the specified time period. Nonresident aliens shailbe eligible tc
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participate in the Plan unless specificallyrpitted by the Committee. To the extent the Conemitin its sole discretion, revises the
eligibility criteria, it shall notify Employees iwriting.

(c) If an Employee fails to meet all requirementskished by the Committee within the period reqiiithat Employee shall not be
eligible to participate in the Plan during suchrPieear.

ARTICLE 3
Deferral Commitments/ Amounts/Vesting/Crediting/ Taxes

3.1 Maximum Deferral

(&) Annual Deferral Amount . For each Plan Year beginning on or after Janligp06, a Participant may elect to defer, as hiseo
Annual Deferral Amount, Base Salary, Bonus andiam@issions up to the following maximum percentdgegach deferral

elected:
Deferral Maximum Deferral Percentage
Base Salar 75%
Bonus 100%
Commission: 100%

(b) 2005 Deferral Amount. For the 2005 Plan Year, a Participant was abeddct to defer, as his or her Annual Deferral Amo&0%
of Base Salary, Bonus and/or Commissic

(c) Mid-Year Initial Deferral Amount . Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participainsf becomes a Participant after the first day of a
Plan Year, then to the extent required by Secti@raBd Code Section 409A and related Treasury Réguok, the maximum amount
of the Participant’s Base Salary, Bonus or Comroissihat may be deferred by the Participant foPta@ Year shall be determined

by applying the percentages set forth in Sectid@a3}.to the portion of such compensation attriblatéd services performed after the
date that the Participé's deferral election is mad

3.2 Timing of Deferral Elections; Effect of Election Fam .

() General Timing Rule for Deferral Elections. Except as otherwise provided in this Section B.®yder for a Participant to make a
valid election to defer Base Salary, Bonus andmn@issions, the Participant must submit an Eled&iorm on or before the
deadline established by the Committee, which iewvent shall be later than the DecembeptBieceding the Plan Year in which such
compensation will be earne

Any deferral election made in accordance With Section 3.2(a) shall be irrevocable as of@keember 3% preceding the Plan Ye
in which such Base Salary, Bonus and/or Commissio@®arnec
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(b)
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Any deferral election for Bonus and/or Comsioss that qualifies as Fiscal Year Compensatiodeniia accordance with this
Section 3.2(a) shall be irrevocable; provided, heavethat the Committee may permit a Participarmhéke an irrevocable deferral
election for an amount that qualifies as FiscalrY@ampensation, as described in Section 3.2(cypalatil no later than the last day
of the Employe’s immediately preceding Fiscal Ye

Any deferral election for an amount that dfied as PerformancBased Compensation shall be irrevocable; provibedever, that i
the Committee permits or requires Participants aiera deferral election by the deadline descrilbede for an amount that qualifi
as Performance-Based Compensation, the Committg@enenit a Participant to subsequently change hieo deferral election for
such compensation by submitting a new Election Haractcordance with Section 3.2(d) belc

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrarydaferral elections shall conform to, and be miadeccordance with th
requirements of Code Section 409A. In no event mdgferral election with respect to Base SalaryyuBoand/or Commissions be
made after the last date that such deferral elecém be made in order to comply with the provisiohCode Section 409A and
related Treasury Regulatior

Timing of Deferral Elections for Newly Eligible Plan Participants . A selected Employee who first becomes eligiblpddicipate

in the Plan on or after the beginning of a Planryasa determined in accordance with Treas. Red08A-2(a)(7)(ii) and the “plan
aggregation” rules provided in Treas. Reg. §1.409¢}2), may be permitted to make an election ferdéne portion of Base Salary,
Bonus and/or Commissions attributable to serviodsetperformed after such election, provided thatRarticipant submits an
Election Form on or before the deadline establidhethe Committee, which in no event shall be I#ten 30 days after the
Participant first becomes eligible to participatghe Plan

If a deferral election made in accordancénhis Section 3.2(b) relates to compensation ebibased upon a specified performance
period, the amount eligible for deferral shall lopga& to (i) the total amount of compensation fa pgerformance period, multiplied
(i) a fraction, the numerator of which is the nuemlof days remaining in the service period afterParticipant’s deferral election is
made, and the denominator of which is the total Imemof days in the performance peri

Any deferral election made in accordance with Section 3.2(b) shall become irrevocable terlthan the 3@ day after the date tt
selected Employee becomes eligible to participatae Plan

Timing of Deferral Elections for Fiscal Year Compersation . In the event that the Fiscal Year of the Emplogeatifferent than the

taxable year of a Participant, the Committee mdgrdgne that a deferral election may be made fscd Year Compensation” (as
defined below), by submitting an Election Form arbefore the deadline established by the Committéh in no event shall be
later than the last day of the Emplc’s Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Fiscal Yeavhich the
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(d)

(€)

(f)

services related to such compensation wdirbéo be performed. For purposes of this Sectioaterm “Fiscal Year Compensation”
shall include Bonus or Commissions relating tor&ise period coextensive with one or more consgeufiiscal Years of the
Employer, of which no amount is paid or payableryithe Employer’s Fiscal Year(s) that constititte service period. A deferral
election made in accordance with this Section 3.&tall be irrevocable as of the last day of thmediately preceding Fiscal Year(s)
to which the deferral election applies.

A deferral election made in accordance with Section 3.2(c) shall be irrevocable; providealyvever, that if the Committee permits
or requires Participants to make a deferral eladbipthe deadline described in this Section 3.&(can amount that qualifies as
Performance-Based Compensation, the Committee erawipa Participant to subsequently change hissodkferral election for
such compensation by submitting a new Election Haraccordance with 3.2(d) belo

Timing of Deferral Elections for Performance-Based Compensatiol. Subject to the limitations described below, the Gutiee

may determine that an irrevocable deferral elediboran amount that qualifies as Performance-B&mupensation may be made by
submitting an Election Form on or before the desdéstablished by the Committee, which in no eshaltl be later than 6 months
before the end of the performance per

In order for a Participant to be eligiblemiake a deferral election for Performance-Based @msaition in accordance with the
deadline established pursuant to this SectiontBe2Participant must have performed services coatisly from the later of (i) the
beginning of the performance period for such corspéan, or (ii) the date upon which the performatiieeria for such
compensation are established, through the date whant the Participant makes the deferral electiwrsuch compensation. In no
event shall a deferral election submitted undey Sgction 3.2 be permitted to apply to any amotifeoformance-Based
Compensation that has become readily ascertair

Grandfathered Elections. Participant elections with respect to deferrdlaroounts earned and vested before January 1,<G05
remain in effect for such amounts (any earningeeitr®) and, thus, such amounts (and any earningsaineand elections are not
subject to the deferred compensation rules unddeGection 409A. Such amounts will be held in di€tpant’s Grandfathered
Account.

Effect of Election on Deferrals. The Participant’s deferral election shall be akdted with respect to the Base Salary, Bonus and/o
Commissions payable to the Participant after anguants for other deductions or withholdings, butlisha reduced by the Committ
as necessary so that it does not exceed 75% &abe Salary and 100% of Bonus and/or CommissiotisedParticipant remaining
after deduction of all required income and emploghtaxes, 401(k) and other employee benefit dedastiand other deductions
required by law. Notwithstanding anything hereiniite contrary, any changes to 401(k) deferralsadher payroll withholdings mau

or effective after December 3%f a Plan Year or the last day of the immediatefcpding Fiscal Year, if such later deferral is
permitted by the Committee, that would affect theant of Base Salary, Bonus and/or Commissionsgbeéfierred to the Plan (or
any other changes that would cause a deferrali@beict be treated as being revocable for purpos€ode
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Section 409A, or which would otherwise caasteferral election or the terms of the Plan tdat@409A) shall be disregarded for
purposes of the Plan and shall not become effeatider the Plan until the first day of the Plan iveraFiscal Year for which a new
deferral election could be effective under Sec8di(a).

3.2 Withholding and Crediting of Annual Deferral Amount s . For each Plan Year, the Base Salary portion oftireual Deferral Amount
shall be withheld from each regularly scheduledeBaalary payroll in equal amounts, as adjusted fioma to time for increases and
decreases in Base Salary. The Bonus and/or Conamssportion of the Annual Deferral Amount shalivbighheld at the time the Bonus
or Commissions are or otherwise would be paid ¢oRhArticipant, whether or not this occurs durirgftan Year itself. Annual Deferral
Amounts shall be credited to the Participant’'s Asdnccount for such Plan Year at the time such amwwould otherwise have been
paid to the Participan

3.4 Vesting . A Participant shall at all times be 100% vestethe portion of his or her Account Balance attidnle to Annual Deferral
Amounts, plus amounts credited or debited on suobuats pursuant to Section 3

3.E Crediting/Debiting of Account Balances. In accordance with, and subject to, the rulesmandedures that are established from time to
time by the Committee, in its sole discretion, amtsishall be credited or debited to a Participaditsount Balance in accordance with
the following rules

(&) Measurement Funds. A Participant may elect one or more of the mearment funds selected by the Committee, in its sole
discretion, which are based on certain mutual ftftls “Measurement Funds”), for the purpose of itiregl or debiting additional
amounts to his or her Account Balance. As necestfaEyCommittee may, in its sole discretion, disoore, substitute or add a
Measurement Fun

(b) Election of Measurement Funds. A Participant, in connection with his or her iaitdeferral election in accordance with Sectiah 3.
above, shall elect, on the Election Form, one orenddeasurement Fund(s) (as described in Sectida)3above) to be used to
determine the amounts to be credited or debitduistor her Account Balance. If a Participant doessatect any of the Measurement
Funds as described in the previous sentence, tiieipant’'s Account Balance shall automaticallydiecated into the lowest-risk
Measurement Fund, as determined by the Committéts sole discretion. The Participant may (butasrequired to) elect, by
submitting an Election Form to the Committee tisaadcepted by the Committee, to add or delete oneoce Measurement Fund(s)
to be used to determine the amounts to be creditddbited to his or her Account Balance, or tongfeathe portion of his or her
Account Balance allocated to each previously orin@blected Measurement Fund. If an election is madgecordance with the
previous sentence, it shall apply as of the fitstibess day deemed reasonably practicable by ther@itee, in its sole discretion, @
shall continue thereafter for each subsequentmahich the Participant participates in the Plariess changed in accordance with
the previous sentence. Notwithstanding the foregdime Committee, in its sole discretion, may imglsitations on the frequency
with which one or more of the Measurement Fundstetkin accordance with this Section 3.5(b) mawdéed or deleted by such
Participant; furthermore, the Committee, in itses
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(d)

(€)

discretion, may impose limitations on thegfrency with which the Participant may change thiguo of his or her Account Balance
allocated to each previously or newly elected Mezsent Fund.

Proportionate Allocation . In making any election described in Section 3.8{ove, the Participant shall specify on the Ebect

Form, in increments of one percent (1%), the paeggnof his or her Account Balance or MeasuremantFas applicable, to be
allocated/reallocate:

Crediting or Debiting Method . The performance of each Measurement Fund (gitbstive or negative) will be determined on a
daily basis based on the manner in which suchdizatit's Account Balance has been hypotheticalycated among the
Measurement Funds by the Particip:

No Actual Investment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Pthat may be interpreted to the contrary, the Mezrsent
Funds are to be used for measurement purposesamulyg Participant’s election of any such MeasurgrRand, the allocation of his
or her Account Balance thereto, the calculatioadditional amounts and the crediting or debitingwth amounts to a Participant’s
Account Balance shall not be considered or condtim@any manner as an actual investment of hissoltccount Balance in any st
Measurement Fund. In the event that the Compatiyeofrustee (as that term is defined in the Trust)ts own discretion, decides
invest funds in any or all of the investments onicliithe Measurement Funds are based, no Particspatithave any rights in or to
such investments themselves. Without limiting t@§oing, a Participar#’Account Balance shall at all times be a bookkegpntn
only and shall not represent any investment madeisor her behalf by the Company or the Trust;Rhagticipant shall at all times
remain an unsecured creditor of the Compi

3.€ FICA and Other Taxes.

(@)

(b)

Annual Deferral Amounts . For each Plan Year in which an Annual Deferralomt is being withheld from a Participant, the
Employer shall withhold from that portion of therf@pant’'s Base Salary, Bonus and/or Commissitias is not being deferred, in a
manner determined by the Employer, the Particigasttare of FICA and other employment taxes on sunctual Deferral Amount. |
necessary, the Committee may reduce the Annuakriaémount in order to comply with this Sectiorbz

Distributions . The Employer, or the trustee of the Trust, shithhold from any payments made to a Participamteurthis Plan all
federal, state and local income, employment andrdtixes required to be withheld by the Employethe trustee of the Trust, in
connection with such payments, in amounts andnvaaner to be determined in the sole discretiom®fEmployer and the trustee of
the Trust.

ARTICLE 4
Scheduled Distribution; Unforeseeable Emergencies

4.1 Scheduled Distributions. In connection with each election to defer an Aadrideferral Amount, a Participant may elect to reeeall or a

portion of such Annual Deferral Amount, plus amauertedited or debited on that amount pursuant 6bi@e3.5, in the form of a lump
sum
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4.2

payment or installments, as elected by thedfaant (a “Scheduled Distribution”). The lump syayment shall be calculated as of the
close of business on or around the Benefit DistidouDate designated by the Participant in accordamith this Section. The Participant
may elect installments of Scheduled Distributianaécordance with the Annual Installment Metho&,0£0 or 15 years. The Benefit
Distribution Date for the amount subject to a Sehed Distribution election shall be the first défyaoy Plan Year designated by the
Participant, which may be no sooner than 5 Plarré/afier the end of the Plan Year to which thei€ipent’'s deferral election relates,
unless otherwise provided on an Election Form amatdoy the Committes

Subject to the other terms and conditions isf Bian, each Scheduled Distribution elected dieajpaid out during a 60 day period
commencing immediately after the Benefit DistribatDate. By way of example, if a Scheduled Distiitruis elected for Annual
Deferral Amounts that are earned in the Plan Yearmencing January 1, 2008, the earliest BenefiriDigion Date that may be
designated by a Participant would be January 142&id the Scheduled Distribution would be paidduring the 60 day period
commencing immediately after such Benefit DistribntDate.

Postponing Scheduled Distributions. A Participant may elect to postpone a Schedulisttibution described in Section 4.1 above, and
have such amount paid out during a 60 day periotheencing immediately after an allowable alternaBemefit Distribution Date
designated in accordance with this Section 4.2réier to make such an election, the Participant swismit an Election Form to the
Committee in accordance with the following crite|

(a) The election of the new Benefit Distribution Datell have no effect until at least 12 monthsrafie date on which the election is
made;

(b) The new Benefit Distribution Date selected by Baeticipant for such Scheduled Distribution muesthe first day of a Plan Year that
is no sooner than 5 years after the previouslygiesed Benefit Distribution Date; a

(c) The election must be made at least 12 months farithe Participant’s previously designated Bar@istribution Date for such
Scheduled Distributior

For purposes of applying the provisions of téxtion 4.2, a Participant’s election to postpar@cheduled Distribution shall not be
considered to be made until the date on which fetien becomes irrevocable. Such an election $lgmbme irrevocable no later than
the date that is 12 months prior to the Particilsgmteviously designated Benefit Distribution D&te such Scheduled Distribution. An
election to postpone a Scheduled Distribution ecHjr to the Annual Account or payment event tdchkht applies, and shall not be
construed to affect the Scheduled Distributionrof ather accounts. Notwithstanding anything heteithe contrary, any election to
postpone a Scheduled Distribution shall be mage@ordance with the requirements of Code Secti@i4

Other Benefits Take Precedence Over Scheduled Digtutions . Should an event occur prior to any Benefit Digttion Date

designated for a Scheduled Distribution that wdrifgjer a benefit under Articles 5 through 9, agligpble, all amounts subject to a
Scheduled Distributio
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election shall be paid in accordance with the o#fpglicable provisions of the Plan and not in adaace with this Article 4

4.4 Unforeseeable Emergencie.

(a) If a Participant experiences an Unforeseeable Eemesgprior to the occurrence of a distribution exagscribed in Articles 5 throug
9, as applicable, the Participant may petitionGloenmittee to receive a partial or full payout frtme Plan. The payout, if any, from
the Plan shall not exceed the lesser of (i) théidiaant’'s vested Account Balance, calculated ahefclose of business on or around
the Benefit Distribution Date for such payout, asedimined by the Committee in accordance with @ions set forth below, or
(i) the amount necessary to satisfy the Unforelsieemergency, plus amounts necessary to pay Hedt@, or local income taxes
or penalties reasonably anticipated as a restifteoélistribution. A Participant shall not be eligilto receive a payout from the Plar
the extent that the Unforeseeable Emergency isagrbme relieved (A) through reimbursement or comagaos by insurance or
otherwise, (B) by liquidation of the Participanéissets, to the extent the liquidation of such asseuld not itself cause severe
financial hardship, or (C) by cessation of deferratder this Plar

If the Committee, in its sole discretion, epes a Participant’s petition for payout from #lan, the Participant’s Benefit
Distribution Date for such payout shall be the datevhich such Committee approval occurs and sagloyt shall be distributed to
the Participant in a lump sum no later than 60 ddtes such Benefit Distribution Date. In additiamthe event of such approval the
Participan’s outstanding deferral elections under the Plah bbhaancelled

(b) A Participant’s deferral elections under thisrPshall also be cancelled to the extent the Coremitetermines that such action is
required for the Participant to obtain a hardshgbridution from the Employer’s 401(k) Plan purstitmTreas. Reg. §1.401(k)-1(d)
3).

ARTICLE 5

Change in Control Benefit

5.1 Change in Control Benefit. A Participant, in connection with his or her coemoement of participation in the Plan, shall have a
opportunity to irrevocably elect to receive hisher vested Account Balance in the form of a lumm gayment in the event that a Cha
in Control occurs prior to the Participant’s Sepiarafrom Service, Disability or death (the “CharigeControl Benefit”). The Benefit
Distribution Date for the Change in Control Bengfiany, shall be the date on which the Changg&antrol occurs

If a Participant elects not to receive a Changeontrol Benefit, or fails to make an electioncionnection with his or her commencement
of participation in the Plan, the Particip’s Account Balance shall be paid in accordance thighother applicable provisions of the Pl
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5.2

6.1

6.2

Payment of Change in Control Benefil. The Change in Control Benefit, if any, shall laécalated as of the close of business on or
around the Participant’s Benefit Distribution Dads,determined by the Committee, and paid to tigcipant no later than 60 days after
the Participar' s Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 6
Retirement and Five Plus Benefit

Retirement Benefit. If a Participant experiences a Separation fromiSe that qualifies as a Retirement, the Partitigsall be eligible
to receive his or her vested Account Balance aitaible to deferralfor Plan Years ending on or before December 319200 either a
lump sum or annual installment payments, as eldayatie Participant in accordance with Section(th8 “Retirement Benefit”). A
Participant’s Retirement Benefit shall be calcudads of the close of business on or around thecaiy Benefit Distribution Date for
such benefit, which shall be (i) the first day attee end of the 6-month period immediately follogithe date on which the Participant
experiences such Separation from Service if thédfzant is a Specified Employee, and (ii) for athher Participants, the date on which
the Participant experiences a Separation from 8grprrovided, however, if a Participant changesdh@ of distribution for one or more
Annual Accounts in accordance with Section 6.3, Benefit Distribution Date for the Annual Acca{s) subject to such change shall
be determined in accordance with Section 6.:

Five Plus Benéefit. If a Participant experiences a Separation fromi€e after completing Five Years of Service, tlatieipant shall be
eligible to receive his or her vested Account Bataattributable to deferraler Plan Yearsdeginningafter December 31, 20Q9n either
a lump sum or annual installment payments, asedduy the Participant in accordance with Secti@(he “Five Plus Benefit”). A
Participants Five Plus Benefit shall be calculated as of tbeecof business on or around the applicable Bebédtribution Date for suc
benefit, which shall be (i) the first day after #red of the 6-month period immediately following tthate on which the Participant
experiences such Separation from Service if thadfzant is a Specified Employee, and (ii) for athher Participants, the date on which
the Participant experiences a Separation from 8grprrovided, however, if a Participant changesdh@ of distribution for one or more
Annual Accounts in accordance with Section 6.3ig,Benefit Distribution Date for the Annual Acca{s) subject to such change shall
be determined in accordance with Section 6.:

Payment of Retirement or Five Plus Benefi.

(&) In connection with a Participant’s election tdetean Annual Deferral Amount, the Participant skldct the form in which his or her
Annual Account for such Plan Year will be paid. Terticipant may elect to receive each Annual Aatauthe form of a lump sum
or pursuant to an Annual Installment Method of &, dr 15 years. If a Participant does not makeedagtion with respect to the
payment of an Annual Account or if the Annual Acnbis not eligible for the Retirement or Five PBmsnefit, then the Participant
shall be deemed to have elected to receive suchidmccount as a lump sui

(b) A Participant may change the form of paymentforAnnual Account by submitting an Election Fornthtle Committee in
accordance with the following criteri
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(i) The election shall not take effect until at lea®tnionths after the date on which the election ider

(i) The new Benefit Distribution Date for such Annualcdunt shall be 5 years after the Benefit DistitruDate that would
otherwise have been applicable to such Annual Atct@nd

(iii) The election must be made at least 12 months fwrihre Benefit Distribution Date that would otheseihave been applicable to
such Annual Accoun

For purposes of applying the provisions @f Bection 6.3(b), a Participant’s election to dethe form of payment for an Annual
Account shall not be considered to be made urgildiéite on which the election becomes irrevocahieh &n election shall become
irrevocable no later than the date that is 12 neptior to the Benefit Distribution Date that wowltherwise have been applicable to
such Annual Account. Subject to the requirementhisfSection 6.3(b), the Election Form most relyestcepted by the Committee
that has become effective for an Annual Accountl gftvern the form of payout of such Annual Accat

(c) The lump sum payment shall be made, or instaltrpapments shall commence, no later than 60 dags tae applicable Benefit
Distribution Date. Remaining installments, if ashall continue in accordance with the Participaaktion for each Annual
Account and shall be paid no later than 60 days &fich anniversary of the Benefit Distributioné®

(d) Notwithstanding Article 6, the Committee may deterenin writing on or before the Benefit Distributi®ate attributable to
Separation from Service that the Participant's ActdBalance shall be paid in a lump sum in the ethaat the lump sum payment
thereby made (i) results in the termination anditigtion of the entirety of the Participant’s irgst under the Plan, including all
agreements, methods, programs or other arrangeméhteespect to which deferrals of compensatiantegated as having been
deferred under a single nonqualified deferred coregtton plan under Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(c)(2),(@nts not greater than the
applicable dollar amount under Code Section 402§(B.

ARTICLE 7
Termination Benefit

7.1 Termination Benefit . If a Participant experiences a Separation fromi€e that does not entitle the Participant toRetirement or Five
Plus Benefit, the Participant shall receive hiservested Account Balance in the form of a lumm gayment (the “Termination
Benefit”). A Participants Termination Benefit shall be calculated as ofdlose of business on or around the Benefit Digtidn Date fol
such benefit, which shall be (i) the first day attee end of the 6-month period immediately follogiithe date on which the Participant
experiences such Separation from Service if thédizant is a Specified Employee, and (ii) for ether Participants, the date on which
the Participant experiences a Separation from &gl
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7.2

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

Payment of Termination Benefit. The Termination Benefit shall be paid to the grant no later than 60 days after the Particijsant

Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 8
Disability Benefit

Disability Benefit . If a Participant becomes Disabled prior to theunence of a distribution event described in Agscs through 7, as

applicable, the Participant shall receive his arvested Account Balance in the form of a lump gayment (the “Disability Benefit”).
The Disability Benefit shall be calculated as & those of business on or around the Particip&wteefit Distribution Date for such
benefit, which shall be the date on which the Egdint becomes Disable

Payment of Disability Benefit. The Disability Benefit shall be paid to the Papant no later than 60 days after the ParticigaBEnefit

Distribution Date

ARTICLE 9
Death Benefit

Death Benefit. In the event of a Participant’s death prior te tomplete distribution of his or her vested AcadBalance, the

Participant’s Beneficiary(ies) shall receive thetlegant's unpaid vested Account Balance in a lisum payment (the “Death Benefit”).
The Death Benefit shall be calculated as of theeclf business on or around the Benefit Distribubate for such benefit, which shall
the date on which the Committee is provided withopithat is satisfactory to the Committee of thetifan’s death

Payment of Death Benefi. The Death Benefit shall be paid to the ParticijsaBeneficiary(ies) no later than 60 days after th

Participan’'s Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 10
Beneficiary Designation

10.1 Beneficiary . Each Participant shall have the right, at anyetito designate his or her Beneficiary(ies) (batmary as well as

contingent) to receive any benefits payable undePian to a beneficiary upon the death of a Rpaint. The Beneficiary designated
under this Plan may be the same as or different ttee Beneficiary designation under any other platihe Employer in which the
Participant participate:
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10.z Beneficiary Designation; Change; Spousal Conse. A Participant shall designate his or her Benaficby completing and signing t
Beneficiary Designation Form, and returning ithe Committee or its designated agent. A Participhatl have the right to change a
Beneficiary by completing, signing and otherwisenpdying with the terms of the Beneficiary DesigoatiForm and the Committee’s
rules and procedures, as in effect from time tetiththe Participant names someone other thaorhier spouse as a Beneficiary, the
Committee may, in its sole discretion, determireg #pousal consent is required to be providedfamra designated by the Committee,
executed by such Participant’s spouse and retumttte Committee. Upon the acceptance by the Caieendtf a new Beneficiary
Designation Form, all Beneficiary designations pvasly filed shall be canceled. The Committee shalentitled to rely on the last
Beneficiary Designation Form filed by the Participand accepted by the Committee prior to his odeath.

10.2 Acknowledgment. No designation or change in designation of a Beiaey shall be effective until received and ackhedged in
writing by the Committee or its designated ag

10.4 No Beneficiary Designatior. If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiasyprovided in Sections 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 aboyvié¢ all
designated Beneficiaries predecease the Particguatié prior to complete distribution of the Peigiant’s benefits, then the Participant’
designated Beneficiary shall be deemed to be hieosurviving spouse. If the Participant has neiging spouse, the benefits
remaining under the Plan to be paid to a Beneficshall be payable to the executor or personaksgmtative of the Participi s estate

10.t Doubt as to Beneficiary. If the Committee has any doubt as to the propsrefficiary to receive payments pursuant to this Rlze
Committee shall have the right, exercisable imlisgretion, to cause the Employer to withhold spayments until this matter is resol
to the Committe’ s satisfaction

10.€ Discharge of Obligations. The payment of benefits under the Plan to a Beiae§ shall fully and completely discharge the Hayer
and the Committee from all further obligations unties Plan with respect to the Participant, arat farticipant’s Election Form shall
terminate upon such full payment of benefits. Idiadn, if the Employer shall find that any personwhom any amount is or was
payable hereunder is unable to care for his oaffairs because of illness or accident, or is aomiar has died, then the Employer, if it
so elects, may direct that any payment due hineoohhis or her estate (unless a prior claim floeeehas been made by a duly
appointed legal representative) or any part thetsopaid or applied for the benefit of such per@rsuch person’s spouse, children or
other dependents), to an institution maintainingaving custody of such person, or to any othesqgredeemed by the Employer to be a
proper recipient on behalf of such person othereigéled to payment, or any of them, in such marmmel proportion as the Employer
may deem proper. Any such payment shall be inafiadl complete discharge of the Emplc's obligation under this Pla

ARTICLE 11
Leave of Absence

11.1 Paid Leave of Absence. If a Participant is authorized by the Employetake a paid leave of absence, and such leavesehab does
not constitute a Separation from Service, (a) #iéipant shall continue to be considered eligfolethe benefits provided under the
Plan, and (b) th
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Annual Deferral Amount shall continue to be withthduring such paid leave of absence in accordaitbeSgction 3.2

11.z Unpaid Leave of Absencc. If a Participant is authorized by the Employetake an unpaid leave of absence for any reasanswach
leave of absence does not constitute a Separation3ervice, such Participant shall continue teligble for the benefits provided
under the Plan. During the unpaid leave of abseheeRarticipant shall not be allowed to make afgiteonal deferrals. However, if the
Participant returns to employment, the Participaay elect to defer an Annual Deferral Amount far Blan Year following his or her
return to employment and for every Plan Year thitgeeavhile a Participant in the Plan, provided sdefferral elections are otherwise
allowed and an Election Form is delivered to antkpted by the Committee for each such electiordom@ance with Section 3.2 abo

ARTICLE 12
Termination of Plan, Amendment or Modification

12.1 Termination of Plan . Although the Employer anticipates that it willntmue the Plan for an indefinite period of timggite is no
guarantee that the Employer will continue the Rlawill not terminate the Plan at any time in théufe. Accordingly, the Employer
reserves the right to terminate the Plan with resgeall of its Participants. In the event of arfPtermination no new deferral elections
shall be permitted for the affected Participantswidver, after the Plan termination the Account Beds of such Participants shall
continue to be credited with Annual Deferral Amauattributable to a deferral election that wasffaat prior to the Plan termination to
the extent deemed necessary to comply with CodeéoBet09A and related Treasury Regulations, andtiatdl amounts shall continue
to credited or debited to such Participants’ AcadBalances pursuant to Section 3.5. The Measurefends available to Participants
following the termination of the Plan shall be carable in number and type to those Measurementdavailable to Participants in the
Plan Year preceding the Plan Year in which the Réamination is effective. In addition, followingRian termination, Participant
Account Balances shall remain in the Plan and stwlbe distributed until such amounts becomeldkgior distribution in accordance
with the other applicable provisions of the Plantwithstanding the preceding sentence, to the éxmmitted by Treas. Reg. §1.409A-
3(j)(4)(ix), the Employer may provide that uponmémation of the Plan, all Account Balances of tlaetieipants shall be distributed in a
lump sum, subject to and in accordance with angsrektablished by the Employer deemed necessaoyriply with the applicable
requirements and limitations of Treas. Reg. §1.4-3(j)(4)(ix).

12.z Amendment. The Employer may, at any time, amend or modié/Rhan in whole or in part. Notwithstanding theefgoing, (i) no
amendment or modification shall be effective tordase the value of a Participant’s vested Accoatdiie in existence at the time the
amendment or modification is made, and (ii) no admeent or modification of this Section 12.2 or Sexctl3.2 of the Plan shall be
effective.

12.Z Election Form . Despite the provisions of Sections 12.1, if d&iBigant’s Election Form or any other employee camination contains
benefits or limitations that are not in this Plarctdment, the Employer may only amend or terminaté grovisions with the written
consent of the Participar
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12.4 Effect of Payment. The full payment of the Participant’s vested AagbBalance in accordance with the applicable ious of the
Plan shall completely discharge all obligationa t®articipant and his or her designated Benefesaunder this Plan, and the
Participan’'s Election Form shall terminat

ARTICLE 13
Administration

13.1 Committee Duties. Except as otherwise provided in this Article ti8s Plan shall be administered by the EmployeecBtn
Administrative Committee, which members shall bpapted by the Board. Members of the Committee trafParticipants under this
Plan, including Board members that are employeles.Jommittee shall also have the discretion anldogity to (a) make, amend,
interpret, and enforce all appropriate rules amlietions for the administration of this Plan, gbildecide or resolve any and all
questions, including benefit entitlement deterniora and interpretations of this Plan, as may anismnnection with the Plan. Any
individual serving on the Committee who is a Pastiat shall not vote or act on any matter relatintgly to himself or herself. When
making a determination or calculation, the Committball be entitled to rely on information furnidizy a Participant or the Compal

13.2 Administration Upon Change In Control . Within 120 days following a Change in Controk tindividuals who comprised the
Committee immediately prior to the Change in Cdngndether or not such individuals are membershef€ommittee following the
Change in Control) may, by written consent of thegarity of such individuals, appoint an independintd party administrator (the
“Administrator”) to perform any or all of the Comtt@e’s duties described in Section 13.1 aboveudinl without limitation, the power
to determine any questions arising in connectiah wie administration or interpretation of the Pland the power to make benefit
entittement determinations. Upon and after thegtiffe date of such appointment, (a) the Companyt pa all reasonable
administrative expenses and fees of the Admintraind (b) the Administrator may only be termiwatdth the written consent of the

majority of Participants with an Account Balancethe Plan as of the date of such proposed terroim:

NY

13.Z Agents. In the administration of this Plan, the Committe¢he Administrator, as applicable, may, fromdito time, employ agents and
delegate to them such administrative duties asei$ $it (including acting through a duly appointedresentative) and may from time to
time consult with counse

13.4 Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Committee or Adstirsitor, as applicable, with respect to any questio
arising out of or in connection with the adminisisa, interpretation and application of the Plax &ime rules and regulations
promulgated hereunder shall be final and concluahebinding upon all persons having any intereshé Plan

13.E Indemnity of Committee . The Employer shall indemnify and hold harmlessittembers of the Committee, any Employee to wham th
duties of the Committee may be delegated, and tiraidistrator against any and all claims, lossemjatges, expenses or liabilities
arising from any action or failure to act with respto this Plan, except in the case of willful coisduct by the Committee, any of its
members, the Employee or the Administra
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13.€ Employer Information . To enable the Committee and/or Administratoredqrm its functions, the Employer shall supply futd

timely information to the Committee and/or Adming&br, as the case may be, on all matters relatitige Plan, the Trust, the
Participants and their Beneficiaries, the AccoualaBces of the Participants, the compensatiors #fatrticipants, the date and
circumstances of the Separation from Service, Dlisabr death of its Participants, and such otpertinent information as the
Committee or Administrator may reasonably reqt

ARTICLE 14
Other Benefits and Agreements

14.1 Coordination with Other Benefits . The benefits provided for a Participant and Bgrdint’s Beneficiary under the Plan are in addition

15.1

15.2

to any other benefits available to such Participartter any other plan or program for employeesi@fEmployer. The Plan shall
supplement and shall not supersede, modify or araagpather such plan or program except as may wibeibe expressly provide

ARTICLE 15
Claims Procedures

Presentation of Claim. Any Participant or Beneficiary of a deceasediBigdnt (such Participant or Beneficiary being redd to below
as a “Claimant”) may deliver to the Committee atien claim for a determination with respect to éimneounts distributable to such
Claimant from the Plan. If such a claim relateth® contents of a notice received by the Claimetclaim must be made within

60 days after such notice was received by the GlairmAll other claims must be made within 180 daf/the date on which the event
that caused the claim to arise occurred. The chaimt state with particularity the determinationidesby the Claiman:

Notification of Decision. The Committee shall consider a Claimant’s claiithiw a reasonable time, but no later than 90 cdies
receiving the claim. If the Committee determinest gpecial circumstances require an extensionredf for processing the claim, written
notice of the extension shall be furnished to thertant prior to the termination of the initial @@y period. In no event shall such
extension exceed a period of 90 days from the étiteanitial period. In the event of a claim basgmbn a Disability, the Committee
shall respond within 45 days of receiving the Dikigtxlaim and the extension of time for procegsthe Disability claim may not
exceed 30 days. The extension notice shall inditetespecial circumstances requiring an extensidgime and the date by which the
Committee expects to render the benefit deterndnafihe Committee shall notify the Claimant in gt

(a) that the Claimar's requested determination has been made, andhéhelaim has been allowed in full;

(b) that the Committee has reached a conclusionaonin whole or in part, to the Claimant’s reqegstietermination, and such notice
must set forth in a manner calculated to be undedsby the Claiman
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() the specific reason(s) for the denial of the clamany part of it
(i) specific reference(s) to pertinent provisions & Eian upon which such denial was ba:

(i) a description of any additional material or infotioa necessary for the Claimant to perfect thentJand an explanation of why
such material or information is necess

(iv) an explanation of the claim review procedure sghfm Section 15.3 below; ar

(v) a statement of the Claimant’s right to bring alcigtion under ERISA Section 502(a) following avaide benefit determination
on review.

15.2 Review of a Denied Clainr. On or before 60 days after receiving a noticenftbe Committee that a claim has been denied (286 fbr
a Disability claim), in whole or in part, a Claimgor the Claimant’s duly authorized representgtivay file with the Committee a
written request for a review of the denial of tieira. The Claimant (or the Claimés duly authorized representativ

(a) may, upon request and free of charge, have rahoaccess to, and copies of, all documents, deand other information relevant
(as defined in applicable ERISA regulations) to ¢teem for benefits

(b) may submit written comments or other documents/at
(c) may request a hearing, which the Committee, indte discretion, may grar

15.4 Decision on Review. The Committee shall render its decision on reypeamptly, and no later than 60 days after the Cdtemreceive
the Claimant’s written request for a review of themial of the claim. If the Committee determinest thpecial circumstances require an
extension of time for processing the review ofclsm, written notice of the extension shall benfahed to the Claimant prior to the
termination of the initial 60 day period. In no avshall such extension exceed a period of 60 ftays the end of the initial period. In
the case of a Disability claim, the Committee shattider a final decision no later than 45 days dlfte Committee receives the
Claimant’s written request for a review of the dgmif the claim. The extension of time for reviegia Disability claim shall not exceed
90 days. The extension notice shall indicate tleeisp circumstances requiring an extension of #me the date by which the Commit
expects to render the benefit determination. Inleeing its decision, the Committee shall take Bxtoount all comments, documents,
records and other information submitted by ther@ait relating to the claim, without regard to whetiuch information was submitted
or considered in the initial benefit determinatidhe decision must be written in a manner calcdlédebe understood by the Claimant,
and it must contair

(a) specific reasons for the decisic
(b) specific reference(s) to the pertinent Plan provisiupon which the decision was bas

(c) a statement that the Claimant is entitled toixeceipon request and free of charge, reasonabksado and copies of, all documents,
records and other information relevant (as definezpplicable ERISA regulations) to the Clain’s claim for benefits; an

(d) a statement of the Claim{ s right to bring a civil action under ERISA Sect®d2(a).
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15. Legal Action . A Claimant’'s compliance with the foregoing prawiss of this Article 15 is a mandatory prerequisiteexhaustion of his
or her administrative remedies and a Claimant'stig commence any legal action, including anyteahibn, with respect to any claim
for benefits under this Pla

ARTICLE 16
Trust

16.1 Establishment of the Trust. In order to provide assets from which to fuliti§ obligations to the Participants and their Béaiefies
under the Plan, the Company may establish a tyuatthust agreement with a third party, the trusteevhich the Employer may, in its
discretion, contribute cash or other property,udaig securities issued by the Company, to profaedé¢he benefit payments under the
Plan (the“Trust™).

16.Z Interrelationship of the Plan and the Trust. The provisions of the Plan and the Election Fehall govern the rights of a Participan
receive distributions pursuant to the Plan. Thevigions of the Trust shall govern the rights of Eraployer, Participants and the
creditors of the Employer to the assets transfeiwete Trust. The Employer shall at all times renti@ble to carry out its obligations
under the Plar

16.Z Distributions From the Trust . The Employer’s obligations under the Plan magdtisfied with Trust assets distributed pursuarhéo
terms of the Trust, and any such distribution steallice the Employ’s obligations under this Pla

ARTICLE 17
Miscellaneous

17.1 Compliance with 409A. The Plan, including all deferral decisions oicétns and all distributions hereunder, shall beiaistered and
interpreted (a) to the extent possible in a macpasistent with the intent described in the pramgdientence, and (b) in accordance '
Code Section 409A and related Treasury guidancdragdlations, and if any provision of the Planubject to more than one
interpretation or construction, such ambiguity Ehalresolved in favor of the interpretation or swaction which is consistent with the
Plan complying with the provisions of Code Seci@®A. The Company makes no representations agttaxhconsequences of the
deferrals under the Plan (including, without liniva, under Code Section 409A). Participants atelgoesponsible for any and all
income, excise or other taxes imposed on a Paatitiwith respect to participation in the Plan (deferrals made under the Plan).
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryaneount of‘deferred compensationithin the meaning of Code Section 409A) s
be paid earlier than the earliest date permitteteuCode Section 409A, and all deferral decisiaralections made hereunder shall be
made in accordance with the provisions of CodeiGeat09A.

17.z Status of the Plan. The Plan is intended to be a plan that is nolifipchwithin the meaning of Code Section 401(ajl aimat “is
unfunded and is maintained by an employer primdoihthe purpose of providing deferred compensatiora select group of
management or highly compensated emplc” within the meaning of ERISA Sections 201(2), 30(Xpand 401(a)(1

23




Symantec Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan

17.3

17.4

175

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.9

Unsecured General Creditor. Participants and their Beneficiaries, heirs, sgsors and assigns shall have no legal or equitgbits,
interests or claims in any property or assets @fmployer. For purposes of the payment of benefitier this Plan, any and all of the
Employer’s assets shall be, and remain, the generpledged unrestricted assets of the EmployeEployer’s obligation under the
Plan shall be merely that of an unfunded and unredgoromise to pay money in the futu

Employer’s Liability . The Employer’s liability for the payment of beitgefshall be defined only by the Plan and the EbacForm, as
entered into between the Employer and a Particifdrg Employer shall have no obligation to a Pgeéiot under the Plan except as
expressly provided in the Plan and his or her kadtorm.

Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person gl any right to commute, sell, assign, trangledge, anticipate,
mortgage or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypotbeatienate or convey in advance of actual rectiptamounts, if any, payable
hereunder, or any part thereof, which are, andgtits to which are expressly declared to be, uigaable and noitransferable. No pa
of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual paymiee subject to seizure, attachment, garnishimesgquestration for the payment of
any debts, judgments, alimony or separate maintenawed by a Participant or any other person,diesferable by operation of law in
the event of a Participant’s or any other persbaiskruptcy or insolvency or be transferable to@usp as a result of a property
settlement or otherwis

Not a Contract of Employment. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall reotibemed to constitute a contract of employment
between the Employer and the Participant. Such @mnt is hereby acknowledged to be an “at will'pémgyment relationship that
can be terminated at any time for any reason, geason, with or without cause, and with or withootice, unless expressly provided
in a written employment agreement. Nothing in ®lisn shall be deemed to give a Participant the taghe retained in the service of
the Employer or to interfere with the right of theployer to discipline or discharge the Participarany time

Furnishing Information . A Participant or his or her Beneficiary will caaate with the Committee by furnishing any and all
information requested by the Committee and také stiger actions as may be requested in order tiitdide the administration of the
Plan and the payments of benefits hereunder, imguout not limited to taking such physical exantioas as the Committee may de
necessary

Terms . Whenever any words are used herein in the masguhiey shall be construed as though they wettgeifeminine in all cases
where they would so apply; and whenever any woresiaed herein in the singular or in the pluraytbhall be construed as though
they were used in the plural or the singular, ascise may be, in all cases where they would dly.¢

Captions . The captions of the articles, sections and paggs of this Plan are for convenience only and sioalcontrol or affect the
meaning or construction of any of its provisio

17.1C Governing Law . Subject to ERISA, the provisions of this Planlsha construed and interpreted according to theriral laws of the

State of California without regard to its conflictklaws principles
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17.11 Notice . Any notice or filing required or permitted to given to the Committee under this Plan shall béigeht if in writing and hand-
delivered, or sent by registered or certified mailthe address beloy

Symantec Corporation

Attn: Global Benefits Department
20330 Stevens Creek Blvd.
Cupertino, California 95014

Such notice shall be deemed given as of the dadelvery or, if delivery is made by mail, as oéttlate shown on the postmark on the
receipt for registration or certificatio

Any notice or filing required or permitted to bevgh to a Participant under this Plan shall be sigifit if in writing and hand-delivered,
or sent by malil, to the last known address of taiétpant.

17.12 Successor:. The provisions of this Plan shall bind and intaréhe benefit of the Employer and its successodsassigns and the
Participant and the Participis designated Beneficiarie

17.1% Spous¢'s Interest. The interest in the benefits hereunder of a spofig Participant who has predeceased the Panticghall
automatically pass to the Participant and shalbeotransferable by such spouse in any manneundimg but not limited to such
spous’s will, nor shall such interest pass under the lafistestate successic

17.1< Validity . In case any provision of this Plan shall be #llegr invalid for any reason, said illegality oxalidity shall not affect the
remaining parts hereof, but this Plan shall be taad and enforced as if such illegal or invalidyision had never been inserted
herein.

17.1% Incompetent. If the Committee determines in its discretiont thdenefit under this Plan is to be paid to a miagerson declared
incompetent or to a person incapable of handliegdiBposition of that person’s property, the Corteritmay direct payment of such
benefit to the guardian, legal representative esgehaving the care and custody of such minogrimgetent or incapable person. The
Committee may require proof of minority, incompetenincapacity or guardianship, as it may deemapijate prior to distribution of
the benefit. Any payment of a benefit shall be ynpent for the account of the Participant and thei¢tpant’s Beneficiary, as the case
may be, and shall be a complete discharge of abylity under the Plan for such payment amo

17.1€¢ Domestic Relations Orders If necessary to comply with a domestic relatiorder, as defined in Code Section 414(p)(1)(B)spant
to which a court has determined that a spouseroreibspouse of a Participant has an interest ifP#récipant’s benefits under the
Plan, the Committee shall have the right to immiediyadistribute the spouse’s or former spouse’sriggt in the Participant’s benefits
under the Plan to such spouse or former spouserastfed by Treas. Reg. 1.40-2(b)(4).

17.17 Distribution in the Event of Income Inclusion Under Code Section 409/ If any portion of a Participant’s Account Balanaeder
this Plan is required to be included in incomehmy Participant prior to receipt due to a failuré¢he$ Plan to comply with the
requirements of Code Section 409A and related TrgdRegulations, the Committee may determine thelh $articipant shall receivi
distribution from the Plan in an amount equal ® lgsser of (i) th:
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portion of his or her Account Balance requitedbe included in income as a result of the failnfréhe Plan to comply with the
requirements of Code Section 409A and related TrgaRegulations, or (ii) the unpaid vested AccoBatance

17.1¢

17.1¢

Deduction Limitation on Benefit Payments. If the Employer reasonably anticipates that the Eygr’s deduction with respect to any

distribution from this Plan would be limited orreinated by application of Code Section 162(m), ttretihe extent permitted by Treas.
Reg. 81.409A-2(b)(7)(i), payment shall be delayedi@emed necessary to ensure that the entire ambamy distribution from this
Plan is deductible. Any amounts for which distribatis delayed pursuant to this Section shall caito be credited/debited with
additional amounts in accordance with Section Btfe delayed amounts (and any amounts creditedaheshall be distributed to the
Participant (or his or her Beneficiary in the evehthe Participant’s death) at the earliest dageEmployer reasonably anticipates that
the deduction of the payment of the amount will metfimited or eliminated by application of Codectian 162(m). In the event that
such date is determined to be after a Participé®#paration from Service and the Participant torwthe payment relates is determi
to be a Specified Employee, then to the extent @gemecessary to comply with Treas. Reg. §1.40942)(ithe delayed payment shall
not made before the end of the-month period following such Participis Separation from Servic

Lost Participants or Beneficiaries.Any Participant or Beneficiary who is entitled tdenefit from the Plan has the duty to keep the

Committee advised of his or her current mailingradd. If benefit payments are returned to the Btare not presented for payment
after a reasonable amount of time, the Committed presume that the payee is missing. The Comeyittfier making such effectors
in its discretion it deems reasonable and apprtaptialocate the payee, shall stop payment on angshed checks and may discont
making future payments until contact with the paigaestored
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Symantec Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has signed this Biacument as of December 15, 2009.
“Company”

Symantec Corporation,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Renee Janosi

Title: Senior Director, Global Benefi
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Symantec Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan

APPENDIX A
LIMITED TRANSITION RELIEF FOR DISTRIBUTION ELECTION S

The capitalized terms below shall have the sameningas provided in Article 1 of the Plan.

Opportunity to Make New (or Revise Existing) Distrbution Elections . Notwithstanding the required deadline for the sigsioin of an

initial distribution election under Articles 4, B 6 of the Plan, the Committee may, to the expentnitted by Notice 2006-79 (which was
modified and superseded by Notice 2007-86) prosgitimited period in which Participants may make rdigtribution elections, or revise
existing distribution elections, with respect toamts subject to the terms of the Plan, by submgittin Election Form on or before the
deadline established by the Committee, which ievent shall be later than December 31, 2007. Astyidution election(s) made by a
Participant, and accepted by the Committee, inra@eetwe with this Appendix A shall not be treatedahange in either the form or timing of
a Participant’s benefit payment for purposes of&8dction 409A or the Plan. If any distributionctilen submitted by a Participant in
accordance with this Appendix A either (a) relatean amount that would otherwise be paid to théidigant in 2007, or (b) would cause an
amount to be paid to the Participant in 2007, slehbtion shall not be effective.
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Name of Subsidiary

SYMANTEC CORPORATION
SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 21.0:

State or other Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Altiris, Inc.

Symantec Asia Pacific Pte. Lt
Symantec Holdings Limite
Symantec International Limite
Symantec Japan In

Symantec Limitec

Symantec Operating Corporati
Symantec (UK) Limitec

Delaware
Singapore
Ireland

Ireland

Japar

Ireland
Delaware
United Kingdom



Exhibit 23.01

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Symantec Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 33-6033364507, 333-07223, 333-18353,
333-18355, 333-39175, 333-71021, 333-71023, 33281533-31540, 333-31632, 333-47648, 333-52200;56834, 333-64174, 333-
81146, 333-102096, 333-106173, 333-116547, 333-18,7333-119872, 333-126403, 333-140252, 333-141388,148107, and 333-
155266) and Form S-3 (Nos. 33-82012, 33-63513,73&872, 333-127958, 333-127959, and 333-139230ywiad@tec Corporation, of our
reports dated May 21, 2010, with respect to thesalidated balance sheets of Symantec Corporatidrsalnsidiaries as of April 2, 2010 and
April 3, 2009, and the related consolidated statgmef operations, stockholders’ equity, and cémlivs for each of the years in the three-year
period ended April 2, 2010, and the related finahsfatement schedule and the effectiveness ahimteontrol over financial reporting as of
April 2, 2010, which reports appear in this anmeglort on Form 10-K of Symantec Corporation.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective April 4, 2009, Symantecpgooation changed its method of
accounting for convertible debt instruments thay fna settled in cash upon conversion (includindiplecash settlement) by retrospectively
adopting new accounting requirements issues b¥fithencial Accounting Standards Board.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California

May 21, 2010



Exhibit 31.01

CERTIFICATION

I, Enrique Salem, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fymantec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrdggstrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/s/ ENRIQUE SALEM

Enrique Salem
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: May 21, 201



Exhibit 31.02

CERTIFICATION

I, James A. Beer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fymantec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrdggstrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/sl AMES A. BEER

James A. Beer
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Date: May 21, 201



Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. &cT1ioN 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SecTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcCT oF 2002

I, Enrique Salem, President, Chief Executive Off@ed Director of Symantec Corporation (the “Comyian
do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectiob0l&s adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@xley Act
of 2002, that, to my knowledge: (i) the Companyisaal report on Form 10-for the period ended April 2, 2010,
which this Certification is attached (the “Form KO fully complies with the requirements of Seati@3(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, grith€iinformation contained in the Form 10-K fgidresents, in
all material respects, the financial condition aesults of operations of the Company.

/sl BNRIQUE SALEM

Enrique Salem
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: May 21, 2010

This Certification which accompanies the Form 1@sKKot deemed filed with the Securities and Excleang
Commission and is not to be incorporated by refegénto any filing of the Company under the Se@sifct of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange A3#, as amended (whether made before or aftefateeof the
Form 1(-K), irrespective of any general incorporation langueg@ained in such filing



Exhibit 32.02

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. &cT1ioN 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SecTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcCT oF 2002

I, James A. Beer, Executive Vice President and {Gfireancial Officer of Symantec Corporation (the
“Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sectiorobd
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowleddehe Company’s annual report on Form 10-K fa greriod
ended April 2, 2010, to which this Certificationatached (the “Form 10-K"), fully complies withehlequirements
of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac284, as amended, and (ii) the information conthinghe
Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respetite financial condition and results of operationthe Company.

/sl AMEs A. BEER

James A. Beer
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Date: May 21, 2010

This Certification which accompanies the Form 1@sKKot deemed filed with the Securities and Excleang
Commission and is not to be incorporated by refegénto any filing of the Company under the Se@sifct of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange A3#, as amended (whether made before or aftefateeof the
Form 1(-K), irrespective of any general incorporation langueg@ained in such filing



